
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 16, 2021 
 

9:00 A.M. 
 

Southern University System Board Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Friday, July 16, 2021 

Southern University System Board Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
9:00 AM 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order 
  

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Special Presentation 
 
A. Procter and Gamble 

 
4. Roll Call  

 
5. Adoption of the Agenda   

 
6. Public Comments 

 
7. Action Item(s): 

 
A. Request Approval of the Legal Analytics Institute for the Southern University Law Center 

(SULC) 
 

 
8. Other Business  

 
9. Adjournment 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                    MEMBERS 
     Mrs. Ann Smith – Chairman, Dr. Leon Tarver, II – Vice-Chair, 

Mr. Myron Lawson, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Ms. Christy Oliver Reeves, Dr. Leroy Davis 
         Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge-- Ex Officio 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FACILITIES AND 

PROPERTY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 

(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 
Friday, July 16, 2021 

Southern University System Board Meeting Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5.  Informational Item 
 
     A.  Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS) 
    
6.  Other Business 
 
7.  Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
     Dr. Rani Whitfield – Chairman, Ms. Arlanda Williams – Vice Chair, 

                    Mr. John Barthelemy, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Mr. Myron Lawson, Dr. Leon Tarver  
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 



Southern Unversity and A&M College
Facilities and Property Report

SU System Campuses Projects

AGENCY PROJECT NAME PROJECT BUDGET COMMENTS

SUAG

SUAG Arena
building
exterior painting and wall
svstem/roof canopy repairs

5,000,000.00$            
Upgrades- Roof, Exterior, Interior 
and Fencing

SUAG
SUAG New Mega Disaster Relief 
Shelter (2,500 beds)

20,010,000.00$          

Design contract awarded to 
Domain Architects and Modus, Inc.  
Zoom call to discuss programming 
with community leaders

SUAG
SUAG Urban Forestry & Natural 
Resources Headhouse 
Renovations

350,000.00$               Construction will begin Aug 1

SUBR New Science "STEM" Complex 
Building

48,000,000.00$          
Prelim-program submitted to 
FP&C; awaiting architect selection.

SUBR
DOTD Ravine Erosion Control & 
Road Improvements

8,000,000.00$            Currently in progress

SUBR

SUBR

J. W. Fisher Renovations Phase 1 - 
classroom Labs hoods, lab 
casework, Mech., Elect, Window 
sys. Interior finishes upgrades pj# 
01-107- 18-02 WBS-F.01003868

8,500,000.00$            
Ready for bidding predecated on 
vacating current personnel

SUBR
SU Laboratory School Addition 
and Upgrades

8,029,200.00$            
Plan review by FP&C and SUBR.  
Will be on Architectural Selection 
agenda in September



SUBR

Repairs of 100ft tower and
parking lot lighting upgrades
to LED's - West and East of
F G Clark Activity Center /
Upgrade lighting system for
classrooms, exits and
stairwells in various buildings
(Disaster Relief Shelter)
WBS:F.19002290

291,000.00$               Construction in progress

SUBR
Navy ROTC (Army ROTC- review 
20 year warranty) Roof 
Replacement

110,000.00$               Plan review by FP&C 

SUBR
J. B. Moore Hall Roof 
Replacement

300,000.00$               Plan review by FP&C 

SUNO

ADA Compliant Restrooms and 
Public accommodations in the 
Cafeteria, University Center, 
Health & Physical Education, 
Library and Administration 
Building,
Planning and Construction

1,650,000.00$            
Program under review from SUNO 
for review by FP&C for selection of 
Designer in April 2021

SUSLA

Lewis Collier Hall Science Building 
Renovaion,
Planning and Construction

4,200,000.00$            

Preliminary program with probable 
costs by Purtle Engineering and 
EJES Architecture has been 
submitted to BOR and FP&C.  Will 
be on the Architectural Selection 
agenda in September



SUSLA
Library Building Roof Replacement 
Building

160,000.00$               
pending proj# to proceed
by fp&c









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 

Friday, July 16, 2021 
Southern University System Board Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5. Action Item 
 

A. Request Approval of Online Graduate and Undergraduate Tuition and Fees. (SUNO) 
 

B. Request Approval of Professional Development Fee for Incoming 2021-2022 for First 
Year Students (SULC) 
 

 
5. Informational Item 
     

A.   Interim Financial Reports 
 
6. Other Business 
 
7. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
MEMBERS 

Dr. Leon R. Tarver–Chairman, Mr. Myron Lawson -Vice Chair 
Mr. Sam Gilliam, Atty. Ed Shorty, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Dr. Rani Whitfield, 

Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
     

 
 
July 6, 2021 
 
Ray L. Belton, PhD 
President – Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System  
 
RE: Request for Approval of Academic Year 2021-2022 SUNO Online  
 Graduate and Undergraduate Tuition and Fees  
 
 
Dear Dr. Belton: 
 
Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) was approved by the Board of Regents to offer 100% 
online graduate and undergraduate degree programs.  Effective fall 2021, SUNO Online will offer 
the following programs 100% online: 
 

• Master of Arts in Criminal Justice 
• Master of Arts in Museum Studies 
• Bachelor of Science in Criminal Justice 
• Bachelor of Science in Health Information Management Systems 
• Bachelor of Science Interdisciplinary Studies 

 
To be competitive in the online marketplace and meet SUNO Online enrollment goals, the 
university requests approval of the following tuition and fees for Academic Year 2021-2022:  
 
Undergraduate Programs 
Tuition Educational Technology Fee* Distance Learning Course Fee** 
$375 Per SCH  $7 Per SCH $30 Per SCH  
Graduate Programs 
Tuition Educational Technology Fee* Distance Learning Course Fee** 
$475 Per SCH  $7 Per SCH $30 Per SCH 

  *Assessed by legislative mandate 
**Approved by the Southern University Board of Supervisors in November 2020 
 
The fees proposed for undergraduate and graduate degree programs are consistent with rates 
charged at other SUS schools as well as the state and national online marketplace.  Additionally, 
the proposed tuition is aligned to the SUNO Strategic Plan: Together Empowers All Mechanisms  
 
Goal I, which is a commitment to student access and affordability as follows: 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

Office of the Chancellor 
 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
Page 2, Online Tuition 
 
 
Goal 1: Continuing to develop and expand the student recruitment, admissions, 

enrollment, and retention strategies. 
Objective 1.2  Increase undergraduate enrollment 
Objective 1.3 Increase graduate enrollment 
Objective 1.4 Increase SUNO Online enrollment 

 
I support this Tuition and Fee Schedule and ask for your support in moving it forward to the Board 
of Supervisors for approval.  Thank you for your consideration. 
 
With kind regards, 
 
 
 
James H. Ammons, Jr., PhD 
Executive Vice President – Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
 
 
 
☐Approved 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, PhD 
President – Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System  
 
 
 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNANCE 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
(Following Finance Committee) 

Friday, July 16, 2021 
Southern University System Board Room 

J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Call to Order 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5.  Action Items  

 
A. Request Approval for Endowed Professorship Policy (SULC) 

 
B. Request Approval of Updated New First Time Student Out of State Fee Waiver Policy 

(SUBR) 
 

C. Request Approval of Updated Transfer Out of State Fee Waiver Policy (SUBR) 
 
6.  Other Business 
 
7.  Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Mr. Myron Lawson- Chairman, Atty. Ed Shorty–Vice-Chair, 

Atty. Jody Amedee, Dr. Leon Tarver, II, Ms. Christy Oliver Reeves, Mr. Sam Gilliam 
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 

 





















 
 
 

The First-Time, First-Year Out-of-State Fee Waiver policy and the Transfer Out-of-State Fee 
Waiver policies are being revised for efficiency, effectiveness, and competitiveness during the 
admissions process.  The changes to the 2019 Board-approved policy includes removing the 
“application” process to ensure all eligible students are awarded, removing conflicting language 
of both waiver and scholarship to streamline awarding process, and allowing students to maintain 
the scholarship if they meet the 15 hours per semester or 30 hours minimum for the academic 
year which will allow students greater flexibility in couse scheduling per semester without 
penalty.  Additionally, the proposed policy limits eligibility to eight (8) semesters and defines the 
appeals process. See below for current (2019) policy language and proposed (2021) policy 
revisions.  
 
 

Current (2019) Policy Language  Proposed (2021) Policy Language 

First-Time, First-Year Out-of-State Fee 
Scholarship; Transfer Out-of-State Fee 
Scholarship. 

First-Time, First-Year Out of State Fee 
Waiver; Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver. 

-Have and maintain a minimum of 15 credit 
hours each semester and  
-maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.50, to be 
evaluated at the end of each spring semester 

-Have and maintain a minimum of 15 credit 
hours each semester or a minimum of 30 

hours for the academic year (Fall and Spring) 
and  
-maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.50, to be 
evaluated at the end of each spring semester  
-eligible for up to eight (8) semesters. 

Complete the out-of-state fee waiver 
application after being admitted to the 
university and submit it with the required 
documents 

**Removes application requirements.** 

**No definition of appeal process included.** Appeals are to be submitted electronically 

through the official appeal application link 

available from the Office of the Vice 

Chancellor of Enrollment Management and 

Student Success. Appeals will be reviewed by 

a committee comprised of campus delegates 

and students will be notified of their appeal 

decision once reviewed by the committee. 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

POLICY TITLE 
Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

2-002 
Responsible Unit: 
Enrollment Management 
 
Responsible Official: 
Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management and Student Success 
 
Policy Classification: 
Enrollment Management- Admissions & Recruitment 

Effective Date: 
July 16, 2021 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
May 9, 2019 
 
Origination Date:  
May 9, 2019 

 
I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 
 
The Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver Policy establishes criteria for the out-of-state fee waiver for 
transfer students. In an effort to streamline the process and remain competitive with other 
Historically Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs) in Louisiana and Texas, effective Fall 
2021, the criteria for providing out-of-state fee waivers to transfer students will be as follows.  
 
Eligibility Criteria 
Applicants must: 

• Satisfy the admission requirements;  
• Have at least a 2.5 transfer cumulative grade point average;  
• Ensure that transfer students with or without an Associate’s Degree must have a 

“C” or better in both College English and Math; 
• Complete and submit a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA);  
• Have a minimum of 15 credit hours each semester or a minimum of 30 hours for 

the academic year (Fall and Spring);  
• Maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.50, to be evaluated at the end of each spring 

semester; and 
• Not exceed an eight (8) semester waiver limit. 

 
II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 
 
This policy applies to the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student 
Success, Office of Admissions and Recruitment, Office of the Registrar, and Office of the Bursar 
in the review and application of out-of-state fee waivers for the Baton Rouge campus. 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 
 
The Southern University System and Baton Rouge campus must remain in compliance with this 
policy to ensure that we meet System, State, and Federal agency regulations such as The Office of 
the Southern University System Internal Auditors, Louisiana Legislative Auditors, and Federal 
Financial Aid Program Guidelines. 
 
IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 
 
The following are terms used in the policy: 
 
Transfer Student 
A transfer student is anyone who has attended another college or university after graduating from 
high school and wishes to enroll in an undergraduate degree program at Southern University Baton 
Rouge campus. 
 
Out-of-State Fee Waiver 
A special type of fee waiver that is designed to waive or removal of university’s out-of-state fees 
from a student’s fee bill each semester. 
 
V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 
 
Upon approval by the Board of Supervisors, the Office of Admissions & Recruitment will review 
all eligible out of state student admissions applications and apply to eligible student accounts after 
all official transcripts are reviewed, articulated, and verified for official final GPA.  
 
The Office of Admission and Recruitment will be responsible for reviewing all applicable 
candidate applications to ensure compliance with the policy in awarding waivers. The Office of 
the Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student Success will be responsible for 
reviewing all appeals for receipt of the out-of-state fee waiver to ensure compliance with the policy 
guidelines.  
 
Appeals are to be submitted electronically through the official appeal application link available 
from the Office of the Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management and Student Success. Appeals 
will be reviewed by a committee comprised of campus delegates and students will be notified of 
their appeal decision once reviewed by the committee. 
 
VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION 
 
N/A 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 
 
This is an existing policy that was last reviewed in 2019.  The effective date of this policy is 
determined by the approval dates of both the Chair of the Southern University System Board of 
Supervisors and the President-Chancellor of the Southern University and A&M College System. 
Additionally, the policy last review and origination dates are identified. This policy is subject to a 
five-year policy review cycle. 
 
VIII. POLICY URL 
 
The information regarding Transfer Out-of-State Fee Waiver Policy will be posted to the System 
Board’s website under Board Policies at www.sus.edu and on Southern University and A&M 
College’s website  www.subr.edu. 
 
XI. POLICY APPROVAL 
 
 
_______________________________________________           _________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  
President-Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 
The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge             Effective Date of Policy  
Chair 
Southern University System Board of Supervisors                                    
 

http://www.sus.edu/
http://www.subr.edu/


1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

POLICY TITLE 
First-Time, First-Year Out-of-State Fee Waiver 

 
POLICY NUMBER 

2-001 
Responsible Unit: 
Enrollment Management 
 
Responsible Official: 
Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student Success 
 
Policy Classification: 
Enrollment Management- Admissions & Recruitment 

Effective Date: 
July 16, 2021 
 
Last Reviewed Date: 
May 9, 2019 
 
Origination Date:  
May 9, 2019 

 
I. POLICY STATEMENT AND RATIONALE 
 
The Out-of-State Fee Waiver Policy establishes criteria for the out-of-state fee waiver. In an effort 
to streamline the process and remain competitive with other Historically  
Black Colleges and Universities (HBCUs) in Louisiana and Texas, effective Fall 2021, the criteria 
for providing the out-of-state fee waiver will be as follows: 
 
Eligibility Criteria 
Applicants must: 
 

• Satisfy the admission requirements;  
• Have a 2.5 cumulative final high school grade point average to be eligible;  
• Complete and submit a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA);  
• Maintain a minimum of 15 credit hours each semester or a minimum of 30 hours 

for the academic year (Fall and Spring) and maintain a cumulative GPA of 2.50; to 
be evaluated at the end of each spring semester; and 

• Not exceed an eight (8) semester waiver limit. 
 

II. POLICY SCOPE AND AUDIENCE 
 
This policy applies to the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student 
Success, Office of Admissions and Recruitment, Office of the Registrar, and Office of the Bursar 
in the review and application of out-of-state fee waivers for the Baton Rouge campus. 
 
 



2 | P a g e  
 

III. POLICY COMPLIANCE 
 
The Southern University System and Baton Rouge campus must remain in compliance with this 
policy to ensure that we meet System, State, and Federal agency regulations such as The Office of 
the Southern University System Internal Auditors, Louisiana Legislative Auditors, and Federal 
Financial Aid Program Guidelines. 
 
IV. POLICY DEFINITIONS 
 
Out-of-State Fee Waiver 
A special type of fee waiver that is designed to waive or removal of university’s out-of-state fees 
from a student’s fee bill each semester. 
 
V. POLICY IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 
 
Upon approval by the Board of Supervisors, the Office of Admissions & Recruitment will review 
all eligible out of state student admissions applications and apply to eligible student accounts after 
final official transcripts are reviewed and final high school GPA is verified.   
 
The Office of Admission and Recruitment will be responsible for reviewing all applicable 
candidate applications to ensure compliance with the policy in awarding waivers. The Office of 
the Vice Chancellor for Enrollment Management and Student Success will be responsible for 
reviewing all appeals for receipt of the out-of-state fee waiver to ensure compliance with the policy 
guidelines.  
 
Appeals are to be submitted electronically through the official appeal application link available 
from the Office of the Vice Chancellor of Enrollment Management and Student Success. Appeals 
will be reviewed by a committee comprised of campus delegates and students will be notified of 
their appeal decision once reviewed by the committee. 
 
VI. POLICY RELATED INFORMATION 
 
N/A 
 
VII. POLICY HISTORY AND REVIEW CYCLE 
 
This is an existing policy that was last reviewed in 2019.  The effective date of this policy is 
determined by the approval dates of both the Chair of the Southern University System Board of 
Supervisors and the President-Chancellor of the Southern University and A&M College System. 
Additionally, the policy last review and origination dates are identified. This policy is subject to a 
five-year policy review cycle. 
 
 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

VIII. POLICY URL 
 
The information regarding First-Time, First-Year Out-of-State Fee Waiver Policy will be posted 
to the System Board’s website under Board Policies at www.sus.edu and on Southern University 
and A&M College’s website  www.subr.edu.  
 
 
XI. POLICY APPROVAL 
 
 
_______________________________________________           _________________________ 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D.         Effective Date of Policy  
President-Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________             ________________________ 
The Honorable Domoine D. Rutledge            Effective Date of Policy  
Chair 
Southern University System Board of Supervisors                                    
 

http://www.sus.edu/
http://www.subr.edu/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PERSONNEL 

AFFAIRS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following Governance Committee) 
Friday, July 16, 2021 

Southern University System Board Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1.  Call to Order  
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
3.  Adoption of the Agenda 
 
4.  Public Comments 
 
5. Action Items 

A. Request Approval of Retirement Incentive Plans for the Southern University Law 
Center (SULC) 

 
B.  Request approval of amended Employment Contract for Dr. Orlando McMeans, 

Chancellor, Southern University Ag and Extension Center/Dean of the College of 
Agriculture, Family and Consumer Sciences (SUAREC) 

 
C. Request approval of amended Employment Contract for John Pierre, Chancellor, 

Southern University Law Center (SULC) 
 

D. Request approval of amended Employment Contract for Dr. James Ammons, 
Chancellor, Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) 

 
E. Request Approval of Equity Increases at the Southern University Agricultural Research and  

Extension Center (SUAREC) 
Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1.  Krystle Allen Asst. Specialist/CED/Program Leader- FCS 
Salary Adjustment 

SUAREC 

$63,000.00 Federal 

2.  Zanetta Augustine Asst. Specialist/ Program Leader -ANR 
Salary Adjustment 

SUAREC 

$65,000.00 Federal 

 
 
 
 
 



 
F.   Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Corinne Blache General Counsel 

Additional Responsibilities 
(SUS) 

$163,000.00 State 

2. Peter Bonnee’ Interim Chief Information Officer (CIO) 
Interim Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$81,000.00 State 

3. Chrisena Brown Director for Accreditation/Assessment 
New Appointment 

(SUBR) 

$73,000.00 Federal 

4. Curtis Chisley Senior Research Associate/Meat Production 
Development Specialist 

Additional Duties 
(SUAREC) 

$72,074.00 Federal/State 

5. Gregory Ford Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs 
New Appointment 

(SUNO) 

$175,000.00 State 

6. Brian Lucas Special Assistant to Executive Vice Chancellor and 
Provost of Academic Affairs 

New Appointment 
(SUBR) 

$84,000.00 State 

7. Akai Smith System Director of Equity, Inclusion and Title IX 
New Appointment 

(SUS) 

$90,000.00 Sate 

8.  Jose Toledo Vice Chancellor of Research 
New Appointment 

(SUAREC) 

$155,000.00 Federal 

 
6.    Other Business 

 
7.    Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS 
Mr. Sam Gilliam–Chairman, Ms. Christy Oliver Reeves–Vice Chair,  

Dr. Leon Tarver, Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Rani Whitfield, Atty. Jody Amedee 
Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 

 
 













 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF 
CHANCELLOR OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AGRICULTURAL, 

RESEARCH AND EXTENSION CENTER AND DEAN OF THE 
COLLEGE OF AGRICULTURE AT SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT 

BATON ROUGE 
ORLANDO F. McMEANS 

 
This amendment is made and entered into on the___ day of July 2021 between the Board 

of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M College (“Board”) and Dr. Orlando F. McMeans 
(“Chancellor”). This Amendment, along with the previous amendments and the original 
employment contract constitutes the Employment Contract of the Chancellor of Southern 
University Agricultural, Research and Extension Center and Dean of The College of Agriculture 
at Southern University in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) (collectively referred herein as 
“Parties”).  This First Amendment shall be effective as of the date referenced above through the 
end of the contract term.  The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the following respects.  All 
other provisions not specifically addressed herein remain in effect.   

I.         TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

a. This Amendment shall extend the term of the contract for two (2) years.  The Amendment 
extends the agreement through December 31, 2024.   
 

III. COMPENSATION 

a. The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of two-hundred forty-seven thousand 
and six hundred dollars ($247,600.00) effective July 1, 2021, through the term of the 
contract.  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.    

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
 

 
 
___________________________________   
Dr. Orlando F. McMeans                  Date  
Chancellor 
 

  
 

  
 
__________________________________   
Dr. Ray L. Belton                             Date   
President-Chancellor 

 

 
 
___________________________________   
Domoine D. Rutledge                       Date  
Chairman, Board of Supervisors  _ 
 

 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF  
CHANCELLOR OF SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY LAW CENTER 

JOHN K. PIERRE  

This amendment is made and entered into on the___ day of July 2021 between the Board 
of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M College (“Board”) and John K. Pierre 
(“Chancellor”). This Amendment, along with the previous amendments and the original 
employment contract constitutes the Employment Contract of the Chancellor of Southern 
University Law Center in Baton Rouge, Louisiana (“University”) (collectively referred herein as 
“Parties”).  This First Amendment shall be effective as of the date referenced above through the 
end of the contract term.  The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the following respects.  All 
other provisions not specifically addressed herein remain in effect.   

I. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

a. This Amendment shall extend the term of the contract for two (2) years.  The Amendment 
extends the agreement through June 30, 2024.   
 

III. COMPENSATION 

a. The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of two-hundred seventy-five thousand 
dollars ($275,000.00) effective July 1, 2021, through the term of the contract.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 

agreement to be executed on the date shown below.    
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  
 

 
 
___________________________________   
John K. Pierre                                Date  
Chancellor 
 

  
 

  
 
__________________________________   
Dr. Ray L. Belton                             Date   
President-Chancellor 

 

 
 
___________________________________   
Domoine D. Rutledge                       Date  
Chairman, Board of Supervisors  _ 
 

 



 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT OF 
CHANCELLOR OF SOUTHERN OF UNIVERSITY NEW ORLEANS  

JAMES H. AMMONS 
 

This amendment is made and entered into on the___ day of July 2021 between the Board 
of Supervisors of Southern University and A&M College (“Board”) and Dr. James H. Ammons 
(“Chancellor”). This Amendment, along with the previous amendments and the original 
employment contract constitutes the Employment Contract of the Chancellor of Southern 
University at New Orleans in New Orleans, Louisiana (“University”) (collectively referred herein 
as “Parties”).  This First Amendment shall be effective as of the date referenced above through the 
end of the contract term.  The Parties wish to amend their agreement in the following respects.  All 
other provisions of the original contract not specifically addressed herein, remain in effect.   

 
 

I. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT 

a. This Amendment shall extend the term of the contract for one (1) year.  The Amendment 
extends the agreement through December 31, 2024.   
 

III. COMPENSATION 

a. The Chancellor shall be paid an annual base salary of two-hundred ten thousand dollars 
($210,000.00) effective July 1, 2021, through the term of the contract.  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement, or caused this 
agreement to be executed on the date shown below.    

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
  

 

 
 
___________________________________   
Dr. James H. Ammons                  Date  
Chancellor 
 

  
 

  
 
__________________________________   
Dr. Ray L. Belton                             Date   
President-Chancellor 

 

 
 
___________________________________   
Domoine D. Rutledge                       Date  
Chairman, Board of Supervisors  _ 
 

 





















 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Five Campuses, One Vision... Global Excellence 
WWW.SUS.EDU 

 
J.S. Clark Administration Building   

4th Floor  
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70813 

 

 

Office of The  
  President-Chancellor 

(225) 771-4680 
 

Fax Number 
(225) 771-5522 

 

       Southern University and A&M College System 
 

 
July 13, 2021 
 
Southern University and A&M College  
Board of Supervisors  
J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor  
Baton Rouge, LA 70813  
 
Re: Request for Salary Adjustment for Corinne M. Blache, General Counsel for the System 
 
Dear Chairman Rutledge and Honorable Members of the Board:  
 
This correspondence seeks your approval for a salary adjustment for our General Counsel, Corinne M. 
Blache, effective July 1, 2021.  Ms. Blache joined my senior leadership cabinet and the Southern 
University System in February of 2020.  She has been a valued asset in legally navigating our 
community through countless matters including, but not limited to, the COVID-19 pandemic, 
employment searches, HBCU loan forgiveness, and changes in Title IX legislation.   
 
From an informal inquiry of salaries of other General Counsel within Louisiana higher education peer 
institutions, it is apparent that others in similar roles are paid significantly higher than the salary level 
of the General Counsel for the Southern University System.  Having reliable and consistent legal 
representation is paramount in the continued progression of the System. 
 
In anticipation of your approval of the new position of System Director for Equity, Inclusion and Title 
IX, Ms. Blache will have additional duties related to administration and implementation of this new 
role within our System.  This roll out is being completed without the support of an Assistant General 
Counsel/Executive Director of Compliance and Ethics as that position is currently open.   
 
It is for the above-referenced reasons, I seek your favorable consideration of this request.  Should you 
have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  
 
Kindest Regards,  
 
 
 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 

http://www.sus.edu/












 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

 
 

 
 
July 6, 2021 
 
Ray L. Belton, PhD 
President–Chancellor 
Southern University and A&M College System  
 
RE: Appointment of an Interim Chief Information Officer (CIO)  
 
 
Dear Dr. Belton: 
 
I am requesting authorization to appoint Mr. Peter Bonnee as Interim Chief Information Officer 
(CIO) for Southern University at New Orleans (SUNO) at a salary of $81,000.  SUNO has 
advertised for this position and will continue to seek permanent leadership for this role.  However, 
in the interim, we have a known leader to run the department in the short-term.  Mr. Bonnee has 
been with SUNO in the Information Technology (IT) department for approximately 30 years.  He 
has worked in a variety of roles in the department, including: 

• Serving as Network Administrator 
• Managing Student User Support Services 
• Advising on acquisitions for computer hardware and software support 
• Providing technological support for faculty and staff 
• Working with issues throughout campus 
• Overseeing Computer Lab for Student/Faculty Research 

In addition to specific roles, Mr. Bonnee brings very valuable personal characteristics that inspire 
confidence among stakeholder groups due to his interpersonal skills and varied experience. He 
also demonstrates the following competencies: 

• Experience partnering with campus colleagues on projects and support services that 
consistently exceed customer expectations. 

• Knowledge of designing processes that create fully-electronic workflows. 
• Building strong partnerships with campus stakeholders (faculty, staff, students, alumni, 

etc.) to ensure operational success and response services are connected and executed 
successfully. 

• Keen interest and ability to motivate and develop staff and student teams making ITS 
a great place to work, grow and succeed. 

 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
6400 Press Drive 

New Orleans, LA  70126 
Phone: (504) 286-5311 Fax: (504) 286-5000 

www.suno.edu 

Office of the Chancellor                                              
 



 

    “An Equal Educational Opportunity Institution” 

Page 2, Interim CIO 
 
 
It is imperative that SUNO has someone in place immediately as it continues to enhance its 
learning management capabilities, online infrastructure, and enterprise management resources. 
Mr. Bonnee has earned the trust and confidence of the SUNO community, and I am confident that 
he will ably manage this role until a permanent CIO is selected.  I ask for your support in moving 
this recommendation forward to the Board of Supervisors for approval.   
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
With kind regards, 

 
James H. Ammons, Jr., PhD 
Executive Vice President – Chancellor 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
 



SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
Personnel Action Form 

CAMPUS: SUS   SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO X SUSLA 

 Academic X Non-Academic Civil Service 
 Temporary Part-Time ( % of Full Time) Restricted 
 Tenured Undergraduate Student Job Appointment 
 Tenured Track Graduate Assistant Probationary 
 Other (Specify) Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status 

Previous Employee  Edmond Cummings Reason Left   Terminated 

Date Left  March 31, 2021 Salary Paid $87, 336.00

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment To 

Effective Date July 19, 2021 

Name Peter Bonnee SS# xxx-xx- Sex Male Race*   Black 

Position Title: Interim Chief Information Officer
Department: Information Technology 

Check One  X  Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):  US 

 New Position Expiration Date: 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience    30 years Southern University Experience  30 years 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): 

Bachelor of Science-Computer Information Sys. 
Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Year: 

1997 

Current Employer  Southern University at New Orleans 

Personnel Action 

Check One New Appointment  Continuation Sabbatical Leave of Absence 
Transfer Replacement Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary   $81,000.00 Salary Budgeted  $81,000.00 

Source of Funds 

Identify Budget: Location 
Form Code: Page Item #   

Change of: 
From To 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 
List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 
Southern University: $81, 000.00 
*See Reverse Side

Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side
Graduate School signature (if, applicable):  

Supervisor Date Dean/Unit Head Date 
7/6/2021 

Vice Chancellor Date Chancellor Date 

Director/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board 
Of Supervisor 

Date 

JOB CLASS 

JOB CODE 

CAL ID 

POSITION 
NUMBER 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify) 



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 
does not affect employment considerations. 

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one):  

    Hispanic or Latino    Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply):  

    White. Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

X Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 
 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
    regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
    Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
    maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognitions. 

COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

   

   
 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 
 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed through the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with   them clearance from the Financial Aid office, Statement 
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring a   pictured 
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/I-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 
Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

 
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):   

TYPE CODES EXPIRES 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization US 
 

Resident Alien RA  
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) H1  
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1  
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) F1  
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”) F0  

 
Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only! 
 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
    Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
    Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
    Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
    Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee) 
    Exemptions Survey Form 
    Proposed Employee Appointment 
    Proposed Employee Clearance 
    Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

 
 
 

Rev. 6/30/2005 

 
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 
 



 
 

CONTACT 
 

pbonnee@gmail.com 
 
 

SKILLS 
 
 Computers and peripherals 

installation, troubleshooting and 
repair 

 Network Installation, 
troubleshooting and repair 

 Windows 3.0-10, Microsoft Office, 
Banner, Moodle, research 
software, DocuSign,  

 Desktop Publishing Software: 
Adobe Creative Suite, Corel Draw 

 Network Printer Management 
Software: Kyocera Net Viewer, 
Fiery Command Workstation, HP 
Web Jetadmin 

 
EDUCATION 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS 
Computer Information Systems 
Degree: Bachelor of Science 
Date of Graduation: May, 1997 

 
TULANE UNIVERSITY COMPUTER TRAINING 
CENTER 

Certified Netware Engineer 
4-Track Curriculum Completed 

 
 
REFERENCES 

Furnished upon request. 

PROFILE 

Results-driven professional offering a variety of skills (from computer-related 
equipment acquisition, installation, networking, enterprise resource planning, 
technical support and desktop publishing   of university-related documents to 24-
hour on-site technical support for visiting accreditation agencies) and accumulated 
nearly 30 years career in academic- related information technology. 

 
EXPERIENCE 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Title III 
Technology Manager/Liaison, 2017 – present 
Assist faculty, staff, and administrators in the selection and acquisition of 
technology-related equipment. Assist faculty, staff, and administrators with 
the use of technology in achieving their departmental goals. Research 
technology-related equipment, including but not limited to computer 
hardware and software, for suitability in achieving various University goals 
and objectives. Provide detailed specifications and pricing to expedite the 
purchase of computer hardware and software to faculty, staff, and 
administrators. Recommend computer systems and applications to be used 
by students in university computer laboratories. Troubleshoot hardware 
and software application issues.   Provide technical support for technology-
related equipment throughout the University. Provide desktop publishing 
and printing assistance for all University-related documents, including 
flyers, banners, pamphlets, brochures, booklets, schedules, and catalogs. 
Research applications based on needs of customer.  Train on software 
application.  Implement DocuSign. 

 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Information Technology Center 
2005 – 2017 
Provide computer hardware and software technical support for faculty and 
staff campus-wide. Advise faculty and staff on computer hardware and 
software purchases. Place orders for computers, computer-related 
equipment, and applications for instructors and computer laboratory users 
that meet education requirements as determined by the corresponding 
college. Install, configure, and maintain computer hardware and software 
as needed by the college faculty and staff. Install, configure, and maintain 
computer hardware and software for student use within each college’s 
computer laboratories. Provide Pass-Port software training materials and 
workshops for faculty, staff, and students within the College of Education. 
Provide Plato software training materials and workshops for faculty, staff, 
and students within the College of Education. 

PETER BONNEÉ III 



PETER BONNEÉ III 
Page 2 

 
EXPERIENCE (Continued) 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, College of Education 
Communications Technologist, 2004 – 2005 
Provide computer hardware and software technical support for faculty and staff throughout College of Education. 
Advise faculty and staff on computer hardware and software purchases. Place orders for computers, computer- 
related equipment, and applications for instructors and computer laboratory users that meet education 
requirements as determined by the college. Install, configure, and maintain computer hardware and software as 
needed by the college faculty and staff. Install, configure, and maintain computer hardware and software for 
student use within the College of Education’s computer laboratories. Provide Pass-Port software training 
materials and workshops for faculty, staff, and students within the College of Education. Provide Plato software 
training materials and workshops for faculty, staff, and students within the college. Develop and maintain 
comprehensive web site for the College of Education with content provided by the faculty and staff. 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Information Technology Center 
Manager, Student User Support Services, 2003 – 2004 
Direct, manage, coordinate and control information technology-related services in supporting academic and 
administrative computing for students at SUNO. Responsible for the effective and efficient operation of all 
computer hardware and software purchased with Student Technology Fee funds. Supervise all Student Lab 
Tech/Supervisor positions and the Student Helpdesk/Specialists position. Provide maintenance support and 
respond to all requests for problem resolution where student lab tech funds have placed computer hardware and 
applications software. Develop strategic plans for long-term future needs and develop procedures regarding the 
use of computer technology in student labs. 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Information Technology Center 
Network Administrator/Laboratory Coordinator, 2000 – 2003 
Coordinate day to day operations of the Research Computer Lab for Students/Faculty, supervise technicians and 
student workers assigned to maintain the Lab, establish policies and practices by which the Lab is to operate, 
order and maintain laboratory equipment and supplies as needed, maintain an inventory of all lab equipment, and 
attend workshops and seminars on new computer technology to better enhance the lab. These job duties are in 
addition to those located below as Network Administrator. 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Information Technology Center 
Network Administrator, 1998 – 2000 
Install and administer Novell servers and workstations on campus-wide local area network. Install 
microcomputers, peripherals, and software campus-wide. Troubleshoot and repair hardware, software and 
network problems. Advise campus staff and faculty regarding computer equipment purchases. 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Computer Lab for Student/Faculty Research 
Network Specialist, 1997 – 1998 
Install and administer local area network in computer lab. Install and repair microcomputers, peripherals, and 
software campus-wide. Advise campus staff and faculty regarding computer equipment purchases. Develop and 
publish workshop materials for faculty and staff training. Conduct or assist laboratory coordinator in training 
sessions as needed. 

 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT NEW ORLEANS, Computer Lab for Student/Faculty Research 
Computer Laboratory Technician, 1991 – 1997 
Setup and maintain microcomputer equipment in computer laboratory. Assist students, faculty, and staff in use of 
hardware and software. Install and repair microcomputers, peripherals, and software campus-wide. Advise 
campus staff and faculty regarding computer equipment purchases. Develop and publish workshop materials for 
faculty and staff training. Conduct or assist laboratory coordinator in training sessions as needed. 





























































SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
Personnel Action Form 

CAMPUS: SUS SUBR SULAC SUAREC SUNO X SUSLA 

 Academic Non-Academic Civil Service 
 Temporary  Part-Time ( % of Full Time) Restricted 
 Tenured  Undergraduate Student Job Appointment 
 Tenured Track  Graduate Assistant Probationary 
 Other (Specify)  Retiree Return To Work Permanent Status 

Previous Employee  David Adegboye Reason Left Resigned 

Date Left    Salary Paid $128,899.00 

Profile of Person Recommended 
Length of Employment 

Effective Date         August 1, 2021 

Name       Gregory Ford 

Position Title:           Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs/
Associate Professor 

SS# 

To 

xxx-xx- Sex  Male Race*   Black 

Department:    Academic Affairs  

Check One  X      Existing Position *Visa Type (See Reverse Side):  US

 New Position Expiration Date: 
(Position vacancy authorization form must be processed and approved to fill 
existing and new positions. Position must be advertised before processing PAF, if 
applicable.) 

Years Experience    Southern University Experience  N/A 
Degree(s): Type/Discipline (BA-Education): Institution/Location (SU-Baton Rouge): Year: 

 Post-doc - Neuroscience   Morehouse School of Medicine - Atlanta, Georgia 2010 
 Ph.D - Biomedical Science  Meharry Medical College-Nashville, Tennessee 2008 

B.S.- Biology  Grambling State University - Grambling, Louisiana 1993 

Current Employer  Fort Valley State University 

Personnel Action 

Check One New Appointment  Continuation Sabbatical  Leave of Absence 
 Transfer Replacement Other (Specify) 

Recommended Salary $175,000.00 

 Source of Funds 

Identify Budget: Location 
Form Code: Page Item #   

Change of: 
From To 

Position 
Status 
Salary Adjustment 

Financial Aid signature (if, applicable): 
List total funds currently paid this employee by Source of Funds Amount 
Southern University: $175,000.00 
*See Reverse Side

Comments: (Use back of form) 

*See Reverse Side
Graduate School signature (if, applicable):

Supervisor Date Dean/Unit Head Date 

Vice Chancellor Date Chancellor Date 

Director/Personnel Date Vice President/Finance 
Business Affairs/Comptroller 

Date 

President Date Chairman/S.U. Board 
Of Supervisor 

Date 

JOB CLASS 

JOB CODE 

CAL ID 

POSITION 
NUMBER 

EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY: 9-MONTH 12-MONTH X OTHER (Specify) 

Salary Budgeted $175,000.00 

5/31/21

6/30/2021

X

X



This information is requested solely for the purpose of determining compliance with Federal Civil Rights Laws and 
does not affect employment considerations. 

ETHIC ORGIN (Please check one): 

    Hispanic or Latino    Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino 

RACE (Please check all that apply): 

    White. Not of Hispanic origin. A person having origins in any of the original people of Europe, North Africa, or the Middle East. 

    Black. Not of Hispanic Origin. A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. 

Hispanic. A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origins, 
    regardless of race. 

Asian or Pacific Islander. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian 
    Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands. This area includes, for example, China, Japan, Korea, the Philippine Islands, and Samoa. 

American Indian or Alaskan Native. A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North American, and who 
    maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or community recognitions. 

COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   

   

   
 

HR USE ONLY: STATUS (circle one): EXEMPT NON-EXEMPT 
 

GUIDELINES: All employees, students graduate assistants being employed  through  the use of this form 
are to report to and be cleared by the Human Resources before any employment is offered and before 
starting to work. All students are to bring with  them  clearance  from  the Financial Aid office, Statement  
of Account (fee receipt), and a class schedule. All prospective employees/students must bring  a  pictured  
ID, social security card, birth certificate, certificate of naturalization, resident alien card, H1-B and J-1 
visas, passport, and F-1/I-94. The latter six (6) documents do not apply to U.S. Citizens. 

Documentation must be provided for review and approval by Human Resources before employment is 
offered. 

 
CLASS OF EMPLOYMENT (VISA STATUS):   

TYPE CODES EXPIRES 

United States Citizen/Certificate of Naturalization US 
 

Resident Alien RA  
H-1 Visa (Distinguished Merit & Ability) H1  
J-1 Visa (Exchange Visitor Program) J1  
F-1 Visa (Student Emp. FT Student at S.U.) F1  
OPT (F-1 Visa-INS Prior Approval-“Practical Work Experience”) F0  

 
Do Not Write Below This Area 

For Human Resource And Budgetary Control Use Only! 
 

PAF APPROVAL PROCESS CHECKLIST (Must have the information outlined below): 
    Approved Position Vacancy Authorization Form (applicable for new and replacement positions) 
    Position Vacancy Announcement (position advertised before processing PAF, if applicable) 
    Pre-Employment Application Form (Civil Service Application for classified employees) 
    Supervisory Criminal/Background Check Forms and Authority to Release (signed by employee) 
    Exemptions Survey Form 
    Proposed Employee Appointment 
    Proposed Employee Clearance 
    Restricted/ Job Appointment/CS Rule 6.5g Letter of Justification (for classified, if applicable) 

 
 
 

Rev. 6/30/2005 

 
EMPLOYEE REGULAR WORK SCHEDULE: 

EMPLOYEE DIRECT SUPERVISOR: 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES SUPERVISED, (if any) 
 





































































































 

 

BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS 



Atty. Domoine D. Rutledge- Ex Officio 
SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

(Following Personnel Committee) 
Friday, July 16, 2021 

Southern University System Board Room 
J. S. Clark Administration Building 2nd Floor 

Baton Rouge, LA 70813 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order  
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Adoption of the Agenda 
 

4. Public Comments 
 

5. Special Presentation 
 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
 

B. Introduction of the 2021-2022 SU Presidential Fellows 
 

6. Action Items 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the June 18, 2021 SU Board of Supervisors 
 

B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations 
 

C. Request Approval to Amend and Restate Management Agreement between 
SUBR and Baton Rouge Student Housing, LLC (SUBR) 

 
D. Request Approval of Proposed Memorandum of Understanding between 

Southern University Law Center and LJB Enterprises, LLC to Develop Finance, 
Develop and Manage a Mixed-Use Parking Garage. (SULC) 

 
E. Request Approval for Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between Southern 

University at New Orleans and West Chester University of Pennsylvania 
(SUNO) 

 
F. Request Approval for Memorandum of Understanding between SULC and 

Charles Winnsboro Corporation (SULC) 
 



G. Request Approval for Memorandum of Understanding between Southern 
University Law Center and International STEM League (SULC) 
 

H. Request Approval for Memorandum of Understanding between the Southern 
University Law Center and the Fulton County Solicitor’s Office. (SULC) 

 
I. Resolutions 

 
7. Informational Items 

A. Legislative Updates 
B. Marijuana Update 
C. System President’s Report 
D. Campus Reports 

 
8. Other Business 

 
9. Adjournment 

 



1 | P a g e
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

Southern University and A&M College System 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

Friday, June 18, 2021 
Southern University at New Orleans 

Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 
6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 

MINUTES 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge. The invocation was given by Board Member 
Myron Lawson and the pledge was led by Dr. James Ammons, Chancellor of Southern 
University at New Orleans.   

PRESENT 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Mr. John Barthelemy, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Myron Lawson, Ms. 
Christy Reeves, Mrs.  Ann A. Smith, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Dr. Rani Whitified, and Ms. 
Arlanda Williams 

ABSENT 
Atty Jody Amedee, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Mr. Richard Hilliard, Atty. 
Edwin Shorty, and Rev. Samuel Tolbert

 Swearing in and Induction of 2021 – 2022 New Student Board Member 

Kevin Taylor-Jarrell II was sworn in by Attorney Brandon Decuir as the student member to the 
SU Board of Supervisors for 2021 – 20122.  Taylor-Jarrell was accompanied by his 
parents Tracey Taylor-Jarrell and Kevin Taylor-Jarrell.  Kevin is the Student Government 
Association president at SUBR.   



2 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
 
 
 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Academic Affairs 
Committee. Academic Affairs Committee Chair Mrs. Ann Smith called the committee 
meeting to order. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: ROLL CALL 
 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr.  Myron Lawson,  Ms.  Chris ty  Reeves ,  Dr. Leon R. 
Tarver II, and Atty. Domoine Rutledge 

 
Absent: Dr. Leroy Davis, 
 

  
AGENDA ITEM 5: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion and seconded the agenda was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 

A. AEP Swepco Check Presentation for STEM Programs (SUSLA) 
 

Chairman Atty Rutledge acknowledged Chancellor Rodney Ellis who introduced Ms. 
Stephanie Rogers, the chief compliance officer. She mentioned The American Electric 
Power (AEP) Foundation presented a $250,000 award to Southern University Shreveport 
(SUSLA).  She gave a summary of the grant.  She welcomed Mr. Michael Corbin, Manager 
of external affairs at AEP Swepco in North Louisiana. He acknowledged and thanked 
everyone for allowing him to be there.  He gave brief remarks. 
Atty Rutledge thanked Mr. Corbin for their donation.  There was a photo op with the check.   



3 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
ACTION ITEM 7: PUBLIC COMMENTS  

  NONE 
 
ACTION ITEM 8: ACTION ITEM(S) 
 

There was a global motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and second by Mr. Myron Lawson to approve in 
global (action items 8A – 8B) 
 
Motion approved. 
   

A. Request Approval of the College of Agriculture, Family and Consumer Sciences 
Proposal to Establish a New Online Degree Program in “Hospitality and Food 
Industry Leadership” (SUBR)  
 
Dr. Sahoo introduced Ms.Tracy Barley who gave a brief summary of the New Online 
Degree program.   
 

B. Request to Approve Memorandum of Understanding Between Southern University 
New Orleans and Bayou Community Academy (SUNO) 
 
Dr. Ammons gave a brief summary. 
 

 
ACTION ITEM 9:  OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 

ACTION ITEM 10:  ADJOURNMENT  
Motion was made to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
ATHLETICS COMMITTEE 

(Following Academic Affairs Committee) 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Athletics Committee. 
Chair Mr. John Barthelemy called the committee        meeting to order. 

 
Present: Dr. Rani Whitfield, Mr. Myron Lawson, Mrs. Ann Smith, and Atty. Domoine 
Rutledge. 

 
Absent:  Atty Jody Amedee and Atty Edwin Shorty 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the agenda 
was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S):  
 
Motion was made by Mr. Myron Lawson and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve Action 
Items (5A – 5D) in global.   
 
Motion Approved.  
 

A. Request Approval of Contract Extension for Athletic Director (SUBR) 
 

B. Request Approval of Contract for SU Baseball Coach (SUBR) 
AD Banks Introduced Coach Crenshaw the new SU Baseball Coach.  Coach Crenshaw 
gave brief remarks and thanked everyone for their support.  Atty Rutledge acknowledged 
and congratulated Coach Crenshaw for all his hard work during the season.   
Board Members picture with the new coach.   



5 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
C. Request Approval of Salary Adjustments for the following Athletic Personnel 

 
Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1. Trayvean Scott Deputy Athletic Director 
Additional Duties 

(SUBR) 

$128,450.00 State 

2. Rodney Kirschner Senior Associate Athletic Director/ 
SID Director of Media Relations 

Additional Duties 
(SUBR) 

$83,585.00 State 

 
D.  Request Approval for Salary Adjustments in Accordance with NCAA Gender Equity 
Requirements 
 
Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 

1. Ajeanne Dillon Director of Student Athletic Academic 
Services 

Gender Equity Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$65,165.00 State 

2. Aretha Hunt Assistant Athletic Director for Ticket 
Sales 

Gender Equity Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$69,697.00 State 

3. Karmen King Associate Athletic Director for Student 
Services 

Gender Equity Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$69,697.00 State 

4. Ajohnee Rodney Athletics Chief of Staff 
Gender Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$70,697.00 State 

5. Lashonda Stirgus Athletics Chief Financial Officer/SWA 
Gender Equity Adjustment 

(SUBR) 

$86,250.00 State 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:   OTHER BUSINESS  
 
 None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. Lawson to adjourn the meeting.   
 
The Meeting was Adjourned.   
 



6 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
FACILITIES AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE 

(Following Athletics Committee) 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Facilities and 
Property Committee. Chair Dr. Rani Whitfield called the committee        meeting to order. 

 
Present: Mr. John Barthelemy, Mr. Myron Lawson, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Ms. Arlanda 
Williams, and Atty. Domoine Rutledge. 

 
Absent: Mr. Richard Hilliard 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the agenda 
was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM:  
 

A. Facilities Planning Project Updates (SUS)  
 

Facilities Update was presented by Mr. Maurice Pitts, Executive Director and Interim Director of 
Facilities Planning.  He gave a brief update on funding for projects that will be approved.  He 
mentioned there were some updates in the packet which is the document report for the SU System 
campuses, which indicates continuous progress of site and building construction, renovations and 
building upgrades for your files.   
He also gave some additional information for each campus. Mr. Pitts asked for any questions or 
comments.   
Mr. Sam Gilliam thanked Mr. Pitts for visiting Shreveport, LA campus.  He asked him to give 
details of the roof renovation and discuss the Metro Center elevator.  He also asked Mr. Pitts to 
keep him informed on all projects on the SUSLA campus.   



7 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
Dr. Rani Whitfield thanked Mr. Pitts for the outstanding update and commended him on a 
phenomenal job. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS.   
NONE   
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 

 Motion by Ms. Arlanda Williams and second by Mr. Sam Gilliam to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(Following Facilities and Property Committee) 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Finance Committee. 
Chair Dr. Leon Tarver called the committee        meeting to order. 

 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Myron Lawson, Dr. Rani Whitfield, and Atty. Domoine 
Rutledge. 

 
Absent:  Mr. Richard Hilliard and Atty Edwin Shorty 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and seconded by Mr. Myron Lawson the agenda 
was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S):  
 
Motion was made by Mr. Myron Lawson and second by Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve Action 
Items 5A (1-6) in global.   
 
Motion Approved.  
 

A. Ratification of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget Adjustment (BA-7) for the Southern    
     University System: 
     1. Southern University Board of Supervisors 
     2. Southern University Baton Rouge (SUBR) 
     3. Southern University Law Center (SULC) 
     4. Southern University New Orleans (SUNO) 



9 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

     5. Southern University Shreveport (SUSLA) 
     6. Southern University Agricultural Extension and Research Center (SUAREC) 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
      

A.  Finance Update 
      1.  Interim Financial Reports 
 

The financial report for Fiscal year Ending June 30, 3021 as of May 31, 2021, was provided by 
Mr. McClinton for all campuses Mr. McClinton mentioned “the detailed information is provided 
in the board packet for each campus.  He also mentioned he monitors the expenditures monthly 
and he also make sure we are in line with the revenue projections.  All Campuses are in balance. 
Mr. McClinton mentioned he would entertain any questions from the members regarding the 
interim financial report.  
Mr. Sam Gilliam inquired about the Cares Act $ that SUSLA received.    

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. Sam Gilliam to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

(Following Finance Committee) 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Governance 
Committee. Chair Mr. Myron Lawson called the committee           meeting to order. 

 
Present: Mr. Sam Gilliam, Ms.  Chris ty  Reeves ,  Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, and Atty. Domoine 
Rutledge 

 
Absent: Atty Edwin Shorty and Atty Jody Amedee, 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Ms. Christy Reeves and seconded by Mr. Sam Gilliam the agenda  
was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S)  

 
Motion was made by Dr. Leon Tarver and second by Mr. Sam Gilliam to approve Action Items 
(5A – 5C) in global.   

 
Motion Approved.  
 

A. Request Approval for Research Financial Conflict of Interest Policy (SUBR) 
 

B. Request Approval of Instructional Faculty Policy (SULC) 
 

C. Request Approval of SUSLA Institutional Policies in Compliance with Safety Audit 
Requirements (SUSLA) 

1. Request Approval for General Safety Policy (SUSLA) 
2. Request Approval for Property Control and Purchasing Policy (SUSLA) 



11 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

3. Request Approval for Authorized Driver Policy (SUSLA) 
4. Request Approval for Bonds, Crime, Property and Security Policy (SUSLA) 
5. Request Approval for Key Control Policy (SUSLA) 
6. Request Approval for Blood-Borne Pathogen Policy (SUSLA)  

 
 
6.  Other Business - None 
 
7.  Adjournment 

Motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Dr. Tarver and Ms. Christy Reeves to adjourn 
the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
PERSONNEL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

(Following Governance Committee) 
Friday, June 18, 2021 

Southern University at New Orleans 
Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 

6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Personnel Affairs 
Committee. Chair Mr. Sam Gilliam called the committee           meeting to order. 

 
Present: Ms. Chr is ty  Reeves,  Mr. John Barthelemy, Dr. Leon Tarver II, Dr. Rani 
Whitfield, and Atty. Domoine Rutledge 

 
Absent: Atty Jody Amedee 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Dr. Rani Whitfield the agenda 
was recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  ACTION ITEM(S)  

 
Motion was made by Chairman Atty Domoine Rutledge and second by Dr. Leon Tarver that Action 
Item (5A – 5E) be approved in global.   
 
Motion was approved. 
 
Action Items 

 
A.  Request Approval of Faculty Salary Adjustments 
 1. SUBR 
 2. SUNO 
 3. SULC 
 4. SUSLA 
 5. SUAREC 



13 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

 
  B.  Request Approval of Staff Salary Adjustments 
 1. SU System 
 2. SUBR 
 3. SULC 
 4. SUSLA 
 5. SUAREC 
 6. SUNO 
 
C. Request Approval of the Appointment of the Executive Vice-Chancellor for Academic Affairs 
and Provost (SUBR) 
 
D.  Request Approval of Personnel Action on Positions equal to or greater than $60,000 
 

Name Position/Campus Salary Funding Source 
1. Linda Antione Director of Purchasing 

Salary Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$85,000.00 State 

2. Genara Freeman-Morris Career Services Counselor 
New Appointment 

(SULC) 

$72,000.00 State 

3. Renita Marshall Vice-Chancellor of Academics and Student Support/ 
Associate Dean College of Ag, Family and 

Consumer Sciences 
Salary Adjustment/Additional Duties 

(SUAREC/SUBR) 

$146,650.00 Federal/State 

4. Monica Mealie Associate Vice Chancellor for Financial 
Operations/Comptroller 

Salary Adjustment 
(SUBR) 

$130,000,00 State 

5. Catherine Miles Associate Vice-President for Financial and Treasury 
Services 

Salary Adjustment 
(SUS) 

$140,000.00 State 

6. Grady Patterson Associate Comptroller for  
Administration and Finance 

New Appointment 
(SUNO) 

$68,000.00 State 
 
 
 

7. Melanie Rey Career Services Counselor 
New Appointment 

(SULC) 

$72, 000.00 State 

8. Jessica Sparks-Johnson Academic Counselor and Instructor and Coordinator 
of Legal Analysis & Writing 

Additional Duties 
(SULC) 

$93,000.00 State 

9. Michael Stubblefield Vice-Chancellor for Research and Sponsored 
Programs 

Salary Adjustment  
(SUBR) 

$136,000.00 State 

10. Ahvery Thomas Career Services Counselor 
New Appointment 

(SULC) 

$72,000.00 State 

 
 



14 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

  E.  Request Approval for Unpaid Sabbatical Request for Professor Adam Crepelle (SULC) 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 
1. Update of Human Resources Processes  

a.  Hiring and Onboarding  
b.  Transfers and Terminations  
 

Attorney Tracy Woods gave a presentation on the Human Resource Process.  She is 
available for questions.  

  
Chairman Atty Domoine Rutledge thanked Atty Woods for presentation.  He commented 
that he requested this presentation because there is too many processes with paper, etc.  He 
is requesting “How to improve the system process” He is requesting that 2021 be the year 
to improve the process and have a uniform approach to automate the system so it is better.   
Again, he is requesting information on the process.  Requesting Atty Woods to report back 
to the Board in August or September with all the information.    
Dr. Tarver recommend hiring an outside consultant firm to assist with new ways to improve 
the process.  There must be an automated way.   
There were additional comments and recommendations from Ms. Arlanda Williams 
(Adobe Sign for documents to decrease time for signing documents) and Mr. Myron 
Lawson. 
Dr. Belton acknowledge the work of Atty Woods.  He mentioned, “the process has 
improved but there is a lot more to do.  The system is committed to do it.” 
Mr. Sam Gilliam asked Chairman Rutledge if this could be discussed at the retreat?   
Chairman Rutledge agreed and requested Atty Woods be available and ready to discuss at 
the retreat.   
Attorney Woods thanked everyone for the recommendations and comments.  

 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  OTHER BUSINESS 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Dr. Tarver and Ms. Christy Reeves to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

RECRUITMENT AND ADMISSIONS COMMITTEE 
(Following Personnel Affairs Committee) 

Friday, June 18, 2021 
Southern University at New Orleans 

Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 
6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 

Board Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge announced the convening of the Recruitment and 
Admissions Committee. Chair Ms. Christy Reeves called the committee           meeting to order. 
 
Present: Mr.  Sam Gi l l iam,  Ms.  Ann Smi th,  Mr .  Kevin Taylor-Jar rel l  I I ,  Ms.  
Ar landa Wi l l i ams ,  and Atty Domoine  Rut ledge  

 
Absent: Mr. Richard Hilliard 

 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Upon the motion by Dr. Leon Tarver and seconded by Mr. Sam Gilliam the agenda was 
recommended for adoption. 

 
Motion passed. 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

 
     A. Fall 2021: An overview of Registration Processes, Enrollment Projections and Housing  
          Implications (if applicable)   
 1. SUBR – Presentation by Dr. Jacqueline Preastley 
 2. SUNO – Presentation by Dr. Adriel Hilton 
 3. SUSLA – Presentation by Dr. Melva Williams 
 4. SULC – Presentation by Chancellor Pierre 
 
Each campus representative made a presentation on behalf of their campus.  They were each 
available for questions.   
There were questions and comments from Board Members Ann Smith, Arlanda Williams, Myron 
Lawson, and Dr. Leon Tarver, Kevin Taylor-Jarrell II and Atty Domoine Rutledge.   
Based on conversation, there will need to be additional conversation in later board meetings or 
maybe retreat with updates from each campus. 
  



16 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM 6:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
NONE 
 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mr. Sam Gilliam and second by Ms. Arlanda Williams to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



17 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
(Following Recruitment and Admissions Committee) 

Friday, June 18, 2021 
Southern University at New Orleans 

Millie Charles School of Social Work Auditorium 
6803 Leon C. Simon Dr. 
New Orleans, LA 70128 

9:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

The meeting of the Southern University Board of Supervisors was called to order by Board 
Chair Atty. Domoine Rutledge. 
 
PRESENT 
Atty. Domoine Rutledge, Mr. John Barthelemy, Mr. Sam Gilliam, Mr. Myron Lawson, Ms. Christy 
Reeves, Mrs. Ann A. Smith, Dr. Leon R. Tarver II, Mr. Kevin Taylor-Jarrell II and Dr. Rani Whitified 
and Ms. Arlanda Williams 
 
ABSENT 
Atty Edwin Shorty, Atty Jody Amedee, Dr. Leroy Davis, Mr. Raymond Fondel, Mr. Richard 
Hilliard, and Rev. Samuel Tolbert  
 
AGENDA ITEM 3: ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 
Upon the motion by Mr. John Barthelemy and seconded by Dr. Leon Tarver the agenda was 
amended to delete Items 5B and 5C to be presented at a later board meeting. The 
amended agenda was recommended for adoption. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS 4: PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
NONE 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5:  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS   
 

A. Above and Beyond Award 
 

Dr. Ammons introduced Mr. Derrick James who is the Director of the Physical Plant.  Mr. Derrick 
James acknowledge Ms. Amanda Washington who is his assistant.  He acknowledged her for her 
hard work.  He mentioned, “she goes above and beyond in the department.”  He asked her to come 
and receive the award.  Ms. Amanda Washington thanked Mr. James, The Southern University 
Board of Supervisors, and the Southern University at New Orleans for the award.   

 



18 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

B. Recognition of Procter & Gamble 
 

C. Check Presentation- Ancient Egyptian Arabic Order Noble Mystic Shrine 
HBCU Initiative (SUNO) 

 
Motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. Sam Gilliam that Action Item (5A – 
5E) be approved in global.   
 
Motion was approved. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6:  ACTION ITEMS 

A. Approval of Minutes of the May 21, 2021, SU Board of Supervisors 
 

B. Approval of Committee Reports and Recommendations 
 

C. Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) between the Shreveport Memorial 
Library and Southern University Law Center (SULC)   
 

D. Request Approval for Memorandum of Understanding Between SULC and 
American Diabetes Association (SULC) 
 

E. Request Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between Radiant 7, Inc. 
and SUBR to support Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning 
applications at SUBR (SUBR) 
 

Motion was made and second to go into an executive session to discuss the annual evaluation of 
Campus Chancellors.  

 
F. Annual Evaluation of Campus Chancellors  

(*Executive Session May be Required) 
1.  Dr. James Ammons (SUNO) 
2.  Dr. Rodney Ellis (SUSLA) 
3.  Dr. Orlando McMeans (SUAREC) 
4.  Atty. John Pierre (SULC) 
 

Motion was made by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Ms. Arlanda Williams to reconvene with 
the meeting.   
 
Motion Approved 
 

G. Resolutions 
 

Dr. Katara Williams, Chief of Staff read resolutions and commendations for the following: 
 

•  Bro. Houston Johnson, Jr. 
• Atty James Edward Burks  



19 | P a g e  
Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes June 21, 2021 

• Mr. Vernon Johnnie Jordan, Sr. 
• Mrs. Edith Rebecca “Becky” Nissen 

 
Chairman Rutledge extended condolences to Ms. Arlanda Williams.  Ms. Arlanda 
Williams thanked the board office for preparing the resolution and sending flower for her 
stepdad service. She and the family appreciate all the support and prayers.   
 
Upon Motion from Dr. Rani Whitfield to approve the read resolutions and Mr. Myron 
Lawson second the motion.   
 
Motion Approved. 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7:  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

A. Legislative Updates 
Legislative update was provided by Dr. Robyn Merrick.   
 

B. Marijuana Update 
Dr. Orlando McMeans asked to postpone the Marijuana update until July.  Dr. 
Snowden could not be in attendance today to give the report.   
 

C. System President’s Report 
Dr. Belton thanked everyone in attendance today.  He appreciates everyone 
who made a presentation today on all items.    
 

D. Campus Reports - (See each report in detail in board office files) 
 Dr. Ammons presented brief report on behalf of SUNO. 
 Dr. Ellis presented brief report on behalf of SUSLA. 
 Dr. McMeans presented brief report on behalf of SUAREC. 
 Chancellor Pierre presented brief report on behalf of SULC. 
 Dr. Sahoo presented brief report on behalf of SUBR.  

 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8:  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Chairman Rutledge thanked everyone for their time today during the long meeting.  He announced the Board 
Retreat will be in Lafayette, LA on August 19 – 21, 2021.  The board office will be sending additional details 
closer to the meeting.   
 
Chairman Rutledge asked the Board office to coordinate with president office and send emails to board 
members not present in reference to the president evaluations.  He asked for a motion to adjourn.   
 
AGENDA ITEM 9:  ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Dr. Rani Whitfield and second by Mr. Myron Lawson to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Meeting was adjourned.   



  
Five Campuses, One Vision…Global Excellence 

WWW.SUS.EDU 
 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 
July 2, 2021 
 
 
Southern University System Board of Supervisors 
Chairman, Domoine Rutledge  
J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, La 70813 
 
 
RE: Amended and Restated Management Agreement between SUBR and Baton Rouge 
Student Housing, LLC 
 
 
Dear Honorable Board Members:  
 
If you recall, at the September 2020 Board meeting, you approved a Use Agreement between 
Southern University and A&M College and Baton Rouge Student Housing, LLC. that allowed 
Baton Rouge Student Housing to use its affiliation with Southern University in renaming the 
Palisades Apartments.  Today I am requesting that the attached Amended and Restated 
Management Agreement be set on the Board’s agenda for consideration and approval.  The 
original agreement contained construction provisions that are no longer applicable.  For ease of 
reference and review, I am also attaching a redline version of the agreement.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or wish to discuss in greater detail.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Ray L. Belton, Ph.D. 
President-Chancellor 
Southern University System 
 
 
 
 

FAX NUMBER 
(225) 771-5522 

OFFICE OF THE 
PRESIDENT-CHANCELLOR 

(225) 771-4680 
 



4817-3242-4119.2  

AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (this 
“Agreement”) is made as of ______ __, 2021 by and between SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND 
A & M COLLEGE AT BATON ROUGE (“SUBR”), and BATON ROUGE STUDENT 
HOUSING, L.L.C., a Louisiana limited liability company (“Owner”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, SUBR and Owner previously entered into a Marketing Agreement dated as 
of September 1, 2003 (the “Original Marketing Agreement”) and now desire to amend and restate 
the Original Marketing Agreement as provided in this Agreement;  

WHEREAS, SUBR is authorized by the statutes and laws of the State of Louisiana to enter 
into this Agreement with the consent and approval of the Southern University System; 

WHEREAS, Owner is a single-member Louisiana limited liability company, wholly 
owned by Student Housing of America, Inc., a Georgia non-profit corporation (the “Member”), 
formed for the purpose of developing the Facilities (as hereinbelow defined); 

WHEREAS, Owner has constructed and operates certain housing facilities located at 7804 
Scenic Hwy, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70807, consisting of fourteen buildings that contain 
approximately 564 beds/276 units for the purpose of providing residence and related facilities for 
(i) students enrolled at SUBR, (ii) faculty members of SUBR, and (iii) key personnel employed in 
the management or maintenance of the Facilities; 

WHEREAS, Owner has entered into an Amended and Restated Management Agreement 
dated as of October 1, 2019 pursuant to which Asset Campus USA, LLC, as manager (the 
“Manager”) has agreed to act as managing agent of the Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, SUBR has determined that the Facilities will provide much needed housing 
for SUBR, and, therefore, will promote the educational purposes of SUBR. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties desire to memorialize their understandings with respect 
to the Facilities pursuant to this Agreement. 

In consideration of the foregoing and in further consideration of the anticipated benefits to 
SUBR and Eligible Residents and Tenants, Owner and the SUBR covenant and agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. 

The following terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Affiliate” means with respect to a designated Person, any other Person that, 
directly or indirectly, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such 
designated Person. For purposes of this definition, the term “control” (including the 
correlative meanings of the terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”), as 
used with respect to any Person, means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power 



 2 
4817-3242-4119.2  

to direct or cause the direction of the management policies of such Person, whether through 
ownership of voting securities or by contract or otherwise. 

“Annual Budget” means the annual budget for the Project, as approved by the 
Committee, showing all projected Gross Revenues and Annual Expenses on a monthly 
basis for any Fiscal Year, itemizing the proposed Occupancy Rentals, Annual Expenses, 
capital expenditures for repairs and deposits for reserves to be made during such Fiscal 
Year and shall provide for the charging of the minimum level of rent to provide for no 
negative Net Cash Flow (assuming reasonable vacancy losses and bad debt expense), and 
compliance with all financial covenants set forth in the Bond Documents and the other 
documentation relating to any Permitted Mortgage, for the funding of sufficient capital 
expenditures to the Project to comply with the Owner’s duties hereunder and under the 
Bond Documents and such other documentation as to maintenance and repair, and for the 
funding of reserves as required by the Bond Documents and such other reasonably required 
reserves as shall be approved by the Committee. Management fees shall not exceed six 
percent of Gross Revenues. All other Operating Expenses shall not exceed the amount 
reasonably necessary in the Project’s marketplace to operate a first class student housing 
facility. 

“Annual Expenses” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year, (1) the sum of (a) 
Operating Expenses; (b) debt service on the debt secured by the Indenture and any 
Permitted Mortgage including (i) principal and interest to any Permitted Mortgagee, and 
(ii) any other fees or expenses in connection with or related to a Permitted Mortgage, 
including but not limited to, issuer fees, remarketing expenses, rating fees, credit 
enhancement expenses, trustee fees and expenses and other professional fees and expenses 
and any fees or expenses due to any Enhancement Provider under any Credit Facility and 
other related costs, (c) deposits for Reserve Amounts; and (d) fees under the Oversight 
Consulting Agreement; plus (2) any deficit in Net Cash Flow from the preceding Fiscal 
Year approved in the Annual Budget; plus (3) any other amounts due under the Bond 
Documents or any other documentation relating to a Permitted Mortgage. 

“Applicable Laws” means all present and future laws, statutes, regulations, 
ordinances, codes, resolutions and orders of any Governmental Authority, other than 
SUBR Regulations. 

“Assignment of Contract Documents” means the Assignment of Contract 
Documents dated as of September 1, 2003, between the Owner and the Trustee. 

“Award” means any payment or other compensation received or receivable as a 
consequence of a Taking. 

“Bond Documents” means the Loan Agreement, the Permitted Mortgage, the 
Assignment of Contract Documents, the Indenture, the Credit Facility, the Management 
Agreement and other instruments executed by Owner in connection with the Bonds, all as 
amended and supplemented from time to time. 



 3 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“Bonds” shall mean the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and 
Community Development Authority Revenue Bonds, (Baton Rouge Student Housing, 
L.L.C. Project), Series 2003A and Series 2003B (the “2003 Bonds”) and all additional 
bonds issued under the Indenture. 

“Campus” means the main campus of SUBR in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 

“Campus Occupancy Report” means a report of the information, projections or 
estimates of on-campus or other SUBR-sponsored housing prepared by SUBR. 

“Committee” means the Board of Managers of the Owner. 

“Credit Facility” means any policy of municipal bond insurance and any letter of 
credit issued to secure any Bonds or any other indebtedness secured by a Permitted 
Mortgage, and any amendments and extensions thereof. 

“Data/Voice System” means data and voice communication systems in the Project, 
including telephone, cable television and internet service, comparable to and compatible 
with the data and voice communications systems provided to other SUBR facilities, and 
using the switches, routers and hubs maintained by SUBR on the Campus unless otherwise 
approved by SUBR. 

“Deposits” means any security deposit, damage deposit, pet deposit or fee or charge 
payable by any Tenant as security for his or her obligations under any Housing Contract. 

“Effective Date” means the effective date of this Agreement as set forth in the 
introductory paragraph hereof. 

“Eligible Residents” means the following categories of residents, listed in order of 
priority (1) post baccalaureate and married students of SUBR, (2) faculty members of 
SUBR who are residing in the Facilities in connection with an established program of 
SUBR to provide enhanced educational benefits to students of SUBR; (3) key personnel 
employed in the management or maintenance of the Facilities, whose availability at the 
Facilities during non-working hours is deemed by Owner to be beneficial to its ability to 
operate and maintain the Facilities. 

“Enhancement Provider” means a banking institution or nationally recognized 
insurer of municipal bonds which provides a Credit Facility for the benefit of the Holders 
(as defined in the Indenture) of the Bonds or any party succeeding to the Administrative 
Rights (as such term is defined in the Indenture) of an Enhancement Provider as provided 
in Section 302(e) of the Indenture. 

“Expiration Date” means the scheduled expiration date of the Term of this 
Agreement. 

“Event of Default” means any matter identified as an event of default under 
Section 8. 



 4 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“Facilities” means all improvements constructed or to be constructed on the Land, 
including the complex of 15 buildings constructed on the Owned Land which include two 
hundred seventy-six (276) apartment units and a clubhouse and approximately four 
hundred and fifty parking spaces (450) and certain drainage facilities constructed on the 
Owned Land or the Servitude, the Data/Voice System and related facilities for use by 
Tenants as permitted under this Agreement. 

“Facility Equipment” means all fixtures, furnishings, equipment, machinery and 
other personal property of Owner installed and used in connection with the operation of 
the Premises which are not permanently affixed to the Facilities. 

“Fall Semester” means, with respect to any fall academic term of SUBR, such fall 
academic term commencing during the month of August of each year and ending during 
the month of December of such year. 

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 of each calendar year during 
the term and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year. 

“Force Majeure” means any (a) Act of God, landslide, lightning, earthquake, 
hurricane, tornado, blizzard and other unusual or unseasonably adverse and inclement 
weather, fire, explosion, flood, act of a public enemy, war, blockade, insurrection, riot or 
civil disturbance; (b) labor dispute, strike, work slowdown or work stoppage; (c) order or 
judgment of any Governmental Authority or delay by any Governmental Authority to issue 
building or occupancy permits within the time frame normally required by such 
Governmental Authority, if not the result of willful or negligent action of Owner; (d) 
adoption of or change in any Applicable Laws after the date of execution of this 
Agreement; (e) any wrongful acts or omissions by SUBR which cause delay or other 
damage; or (f) any other similar cause or similar event beyond the reasonable control of 
Owner. 

“Foreclosure” means a foreclosure of any Permitted Mortgage or any conveyance 
in lieu of foreclosure of any Permitted Mortgage. SUBR shall have the right to be the 
purchaser at any Foreclosure of any Permitted Mortgage. 

“Governmental Authority” means any and all jurisdictions, entities, courts, boards, 
agencies, commissions, offices, divisions, subdivisions, departments, bodies or authorities 
of any nature whatsoever of any governmental unit other than SUBR (federal, state, county, 
district, municipality, city or otherwise) whether now or hereafter in existence. 

“Gross Revenues” means with respect to any Fiscal Year, all gross receipts of 
Owner from the Premises, computed on a cash basis and otherwise in a manner reasonably 
acceptable to SUBR and Owner, and as otherwise permitted by the Bond Documents, 
including all Occupancy Rentals, laundry and vending machine revenues, and any forfeited 
Deposits. 

“Hazardous Material” means (a) any “hazardous waste” as defined by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. Section 691 et seq.), as amended from 
time to time, and regulations promulgated thereunder; (b) any “hazardous substance” as 



 5 
4817-3242-4119.2  

defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 
of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Section 691 et seq.), as amended from time to time, and regulations 
promulgated thereunder; (c) polychlorinated biphenyls; (d) underground storage tanks, 
whether empty, filled or partially filled with any substance, (e) any substance the presence 
of which on the Owned Land is prohibited by any governmental requirements; and (f) any 
other substance which by any Applicable Law requires special handling or notification of 
any Governmental Authority in its collection, storage, treatment or disposal. 

“Housing Contract” means the lease or occupancy agreement between Owner and 
a Tenant for the rental of all or part of a housing unit (one (1) bed) in the Facilities, in the 
form provided by the Owner or the Manager.  

“Indenture” means that Indenture of Trust, dated as of September 1, 2003, between 
the Issuer and the Trustee, as trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time. 

“Institutional Investor” means (a) any one or more of the following which has, 
either individually or in the aggregate, assets of $10,000,000.00 or more or is a subsidiary 
of or under common control with any such entity: (i) any bank, savings and loan 
association, trust company or savings bank, whether chartered by a state or the United 
States; (ii) any insurance company organized under the laws of any state or the United 
States; (iii) any real estate investment trust; or (iv) any pension, retirement or welfare fund 
or trust supervised by a governmental authority of any state or the United States or any 
such fund or trust administered by an entity which is supervised by a governmental 
authority; or (b) a trustee acting on behalf of owners of bonds, debentures or other 
investment securities. 

“Land” means the Owned Land and the Servitude. 

“Minimum Occupancy” means occupancy of the Facilities based on signed leases 
of ninety-five percent (95%). 

“Net Cash Flow” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year, Gross Revenues minus 
Annual Expenses for such Fiscal Year. 

“Occupancy Rentals” means all rentals and fees paid by Occupants to occupy 
housing at the Facilities pursuant to the payment provisions of any Housing Contracts or 
other leases or occupancy agreements, but excluding any Deposits required thereunder. 

“Occupants” means Eligible Residents, other students of SUBR, and, to the extent 
approved by tax counsel to the Member as not being inconsistent with the Members 
501(c)(3) status, another institution of higher learning. 

“Operating Expenses” means all costs (subject to the limitations set forth below 
and as set forth in the Bond Documents) that Owner incurs in any Fiscal Year or portion 
thereof in connection with the leasing, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, and 
security of the Project, reasonably determined to be expense items rather than capital items 
in accordance with GAAP, including the following costs: (A) the cost of all water, sewer, 
gas and other utilities other than costs for telephone, electricity, and cable television 



 6 
4817-3242-4119.2  

payable directly by Tenants; (B) the cost of all insurance required hereunder; (C) the cost 
of repairs, replacements, and general maintenance of the Facilities or Facility Equipment; 
(D) the cost of service or maintenance contracts with independent contractors for the 
operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, or security of the building (including alarm 
service, window cleaning, and elevator maintenance); (E) Taxes; (F) any lease payments 
made by Owner under any equipment leases permitted hereunder for any Facility 
Equipment; excluding, however, any costs, payments or disbursements that constitute 
capital expenditures under any equipment leases permitted hereunder; and (G) the cost to 
operate the Data/Voice System. Operating expenses shall not include depreciation or 
amortization or fees payable under the Oversight Consulting Agreement. 

“Oversight Consultant” means Student Housing of America, Inc., a Georgia non-
profit corporation, and its permitted assigns, including without limitation RHA Consulting 
and Management Services, Inc. in the event that the Oversight Consulting Agreement 
should be assigned to that entity. 

“Oversight Consulting Agreement” means the Oversight Consulting Agreement 
entered into between the Owner and the Oversight Consultant. 

“Owned Land” means the tract of approximately 7.922 acres of land, more 
particularly described in the Permitted Mortgage. 

“Owner” means Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C., a Louisiana limited liability 
company. 

“Owner’s Interest” means Owner’s fee simple title to the Owned Land and the 
improvements thereon and Owner’s interest in the Servitude and improvements thereon 
(all subject to Permitted Encumbrances) and Owner’s interest in this Marketing 
Agreement. 

“Permitted Assignee” means (a) any Permitted Mortgagee, any purchaser at a 
Foreclosure, or any other Person selected by a Permitted Mortgagee subsequent to a 
Foreclosure of a Permitted Mortgage, (b) any Affiliate of Owner or (c) any non-profit 
corporation approved by SUBR in its reasonable discretion and which has been formed for 
the purpose of serving as Owner hereunder and which has received a Letter of 
Determination issued by the Internal Revenue Service to confirm its status as an entity 
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Permitted Encumbrances” means those easements, rights of way, restrictions and 
other matters affecting title to the Owned Land as of the Effective Date, as set forth in the 
Permitted Mortgage. 

“Permitted Mortgage” means the Mortgage and Assignment of Rents and Leases, 
from the Owner for the benefit of the Trustee and its assignees, in connection with the 
issuance of the Bonds, and any other mortgage or security interest issued to secure the 
Bonds or any permitted refunding thereof or any Credit Facility therefor. 



 7 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“Permitted Mortgagee” means, initially, the Trustee, and thereafter any holder of 
or indenture trustee for the debt secured by a Permitted Mortgage or beneficiary of the 
Permitted Mortgage that is either an Institutional Investor, an Enhancement Provider, a 
bank or trust company duly authorized to exercise trust powers in Louisiana (in the case of 
any such indenture trustee), any other Person approved by SUBR, or a transferee claiming 
by, through or under either of the foregoing, including, but not limited to, an entity created 
by the Permitted Mortgage to claim any and all rights of the Owner hereunder as a result 
of foreclosure or assignment under the Permitted Mortgage. 

“Person” means an individual, a trust, an estate, a Governmental Authority, or a 
partnership, joint venture, corporation, limited liability company, company, firm or any 
other entity whatsoever. 

“Premises” means, collectively, the Owned Land and the Facilities, and the 
leasehold interest of the Owner in the Servitude and any improvements located thereon, 
provided, however, that with respect to any provision hereof relating to the remedy or 
clean-up of environmental conditions on the Premises or compliance with environmental 
laws or Hazardous Materials detection, the term “Premises” shall be deemed to exclude the 
Servitude. 

“Project” means, collectively, the Land, Facilities and Facilities Equipment for the 
324 unit, 576 bed student housing facility located on the Owned Land, to be known as the 
Palisades or such other name as may be mutually agreed upon by SUBR and Owner during 
the Term of this Agreement, and the Owner’s leasehold interest in the Servitude and the 
improvements located or to be located thereon, which are contemplated to be limited to 
drainage and parking facilities. 

“Reserve Amounts” means the amounts required to be established and funded 
pursuant to documents evidencing any loan or otherwise for debt service, operating and 
capital reserves, including without limitation any repair and replacement fund. 

“Semester”/”Semesters” means the Fall Semester, Spring Semester and Summer 
Session, collectively referred to herein as Semesters and individually referred to herein as 
a Semester. 

“Servitude” means the parking and drainage servitude in favor of the Owner 
encumbering a tract of approximately 4.002 acres of land. 

“Spring Semester” means, with respect to any spring academic term of SUBR, such 
spring academic term commencing during the month of January of each year and ending 
during the month of May of such year. 

“Student Center” means the building or room(s) and related facilities located on 
Campus and designated by SUBR from time to time as the student center for use by SUBR 
students as a lounge, central gathering place and other student activities permitted under 
SUBR Regulations. 



 8 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“SUBR” means Southern University and A & M College at Baton Rouge and 
Southern University Law Center. 

“SUBR Regulations” means all present and future rules, policies, procedures and 
regulations of SUBR pertaining to SUBR-sponsored student housing, SUBR facilities and 
property and student academic/social standing, behavior or conduct, including SUBR’s 
Student Code of Conduct, as amended from time to time, and all other regulations as set 
forth in SUBR’s publications or otherwise disseminated as official SUBR rules or policies 
pertaining to such matters; provided, however, such regulations shall not apply in a 
discriminatory fashion to the Project as opposed to other student housing, and shall not 
materially adversely affect the financial operations of the Owner. Owner shall have the 
right to dispute the applicability of any SUBR Regulation to the Project pursuant to the 
dispute resolution process. 

“SUBR Representative” means one or more of the Persons designated and 
authorized in writing from time to time by SUBR to represent SUBR in exercising SUBR’s 
rights and performing SUBR’s obligations under this Agreement. The initial SUBR 
Representative shall be the Chancellor of SUBR. 

“SUBR Sponsored Housing” means any apartment or dormitory style housing 
which SUBR has approved for use by SUBR students, faculty or staff, excluding student 
housing which is on Campus (regardless of who operates such on-Campus student housing, 
and regardless of whether it is leased to a third party or constructed by a third party on a 
portion of the Campus ground leased to it). 

“Summer Session” means with respect to any summer academic term of SUBR, 
such summer academic term commencing during the month of June of each year and 
ending during the month of August of such year. 

“Taking” means the acquisition, by condemnation, eminent domain or similar 
proceeding or by any sale or lien thereof, by or at the direction of any Governmental 
Authority or other Person with the power of eminent domain. 

“Taxes” means all federal, state and local ad valorem or property taxes, general 
assessments, special assessments, personal property taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, rental 
taxes, excises levies, license and permit fees of any kind and other similar charges which 
are levied, assessed or imposed on or with respect to the Project or any Occupancy Rentals 
therefrom, and all taxes or similar charges imposed in substitution for any of the foregoing, 
excluding, however, income taxes and franchise taxes payable by Owner or Manager. 

“Tenants” means Occupants who have entered into Housing Contracts with the 
Owner.  

“Term” means the period commencing on the Effective Date hereof and ending on 
the first date after the issuance of the Bonds when all indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds, 
all obligations of the Owner to any Enhancement Providers or their successors in interest 
with respect thereto and all other amounts owed by the Owner under the Bond Documents 
have been fully paid. 



 9 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“Trustee” means, initially, Bank of New York Trust Company of Florida, N.A., as 
trustee under the Indenture, and thereafter means any other trustee serving as indenture 
trustee under the Indenture or any other trust indenture securing indebtedness secured by a 
Permitted Mortgage. 

Section 2. Referrals. 

(a) Priority Referral to Facilities. SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents to the 
Facilities as follows: 

(i) Each semester, SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents to the Facilities.  In  
order to ensure that the Facilities will be fully occupied by Occupants, SUBR will not refer 
any Eligible Residents to any other SUBR Sponsored Housing Facility until (based on 
signed Housing Contracts) the Facilities have achieved Minimum Occupancy. SUBR shall 
notify the Eligible Residents of their referral to the Facilities by written notice in the form 
provided by the Owner or Manager.  In order to insure that the Facilities will be fully 
occupied by either Eligible Residents or other Occupants, SUBR will not refer any Eligible 
Residents to any SUBR Sponsored Housing Facility other than the Facilities for any 
Semester until Minimum Occupancy is obtained for that Semester. 

(ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 2, SUBR shall not 
be obligated to require any Eligible Resident to lease a unit in the Facilities. Thus, if any 
Eligible Resident rejects a referral to the Facilities, then SUBR may subsequently refer 
such Eligible Resident to another housing facility on or off the Campus. 

(iii) Owner shall notify SUBR each Semester when the Facilities are sufficiently 
occupied to achieve the Minimum Occupancy for the applicable Semester. During each 
Semester, Owner shall every 2 months notify SUBR of any vacancies that occur at the 
Facilities in order to give SUBR an indication of the number of units that will need to be 
leased for the immediately succeeding Semester. 

(b) Occupancy Rentals; Housing Contracts. Owner shall charge Occupancy Rentals 
to Tenants of the Facilities during each Fiscal Year at the rates set forth in the Annual Budget for 
such Fiscal Year. The Occupancy Rentals shall be established as shall be necessary to (i) assure 
maximum occupancy and use of the Facilities and the services related thereto; (ii) satisfy the 
applicable covenants contained in the Bond Documents, including the payment of the debt service 
on any debt secured by any Bond Documents, the Reserve Amounts and all other payments and 
charges required under the Bond Documents; and (iii) generate sufficient revenues for the payment 
of all other Annual Expenses. 

(i) Owner shall arrange for each Tenant to execute and deliver to Owner a 
Housing Contract. Owner shall be entitled to amend the form of Housing Contract from 
time to time, in which event Owner shall deliver the amended form to SUBR for its consent, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(ii) SUBR will have no obligation to Owner if any Tenant fails to pay the 
Occupancy Rentals in accordance with the terms of its Housing Contract. 



 10 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(iii) SUBR agrees to facilitate the assignment to Owner of the financial aid of 
any Occupant who is a student of SUBR, to pay for Occupancy Rentals, provided Owner 
obtains the Occupant’s written consent for the assignment. 

(iv) SUBR reserves the right to build, or cause to be constructed, any academic, 
athletic, or student housing on its Campus, whether owned and/or operated by SUBR or by 
a third party, and to assign its students to such facilities, subject to Section 2(a). 

(c) SUBR Promotions. 

(i) SUBR shall actively promote and market the Facilities to Eligible Residents 
as an integral part of the overall housing program of SUBR in the following ways: 

(1) Provide information regarding the Project on SUBR’s website or a 
link to the Owner’s and/or any Manager’s website regarding the Project. 

(2) Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all response 
mailings to prospective students seeking information about enrolling at SUBR. 

(3) Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all mailings to 
student applicants which notify them of their admittance to SUBR. 

(4) Provide Owner with a convenient space at no cost on the first floor 
of the Student Center for a project information booth, in a location and of a size and 
design mutually agreeable to the parties, and subject to all SUBR Regulations. 

(5) Provide Owner upon request with a list of those students who have 
indicated an interest in living in SUBR-sponsored student housing, to the extent 
same is reasonably available or accessible to SUBR, which includes to the extent 
available their first and last name, classification, mailing address and telephone 
number. 

(6) Allow Owner to use a reasonable number of signs, flags and banners 
provided by Owner on the Campus to market the Project. 

(7) Incorporate information about the Project in all appropriate SUBR 
publications. 

(8) Jointly with Owner organize an “open house” at the Project at the 
beginning of each Semester and invite all deans and faculty of SUBR. 

(9) Permit the management staff for the Project to participate in all 
residence staff training programs and other similar programs made available to the 
staff of other housing facilities at SUBR. 

(10) With the written approval of the referred Occupant, disburse directly 
to Owner the housing portion of such referred Occupant’s financial aid award. 



 11 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(11) Include the Project on the regularly scheduled bus route of Jag Tran, 
SUBR bus service. 

(12) Make reasonable efforts to support and maintain a safe environment 
at the Facilities. 

(13) Provide Project staff with copies of University Student Life 
materials, manuals, handbooks, policies and procedures so that maximum 
consistency may be provided. 

(14) Provide for and allow residents of the Project the option of utilizing 
the on campus meal plan program, counseling and on-line library services afforded 
to on campus residents. 

(15) Upon notification by any undergraduate students of SUBR that they 
do not elect to live on campus, SUBR shall refer them to the Facilities. 

(ii) Owner shall cooperate in promoting and marketing the Project by causing 
the following actions to be taken, all at Owner’s cost: 

(1) Prepare a housing brochure which reflects the floor plans, amenities 
and benefits of the Project. 

(2) Maintain an on-site leasing office at the Project. 

(3) Prepare color mounted renderings of the Project for use by SUBR in 
its promotion and marketing of the Project. 

(d) Campus Occupancy Reports. SUER shall use reasonable efforts to provide Owner 
with a report of the information, projections or estimates of SUBR-sponsored student housing, 
including the information described in this Section (the “Campus Occupancy Report”). The 
Campus Occupancy Report shall be a written report certified by the Director of Housing for SUBR 
as being true and correct and shall set forth the following: 

(i) A list of all Occupants for the applicable Semester (including a listing of 
the name and address of each occupant); 

(ii) A schedule showing the amounts of (1) the prepaid Occupancy Rentals and 
security deposits received by SUBR from all Tenants, (2) the Occupancy Rentals to be paid 
by the Tenants for the remainder of the applicable Semester, and (3) the Occupancy Rentals 
charged for other SUBR-sponsored student housing; and 

(iii) Such other information or documents as Owner (or the Enhancement 
Provider) shall reasonably request in order for Owner (and the Enhancement Provider) to 
verify the referral of Eligible Residents to the Facilities. Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section to the contrary, SUBR shall not be obligated to include any of 
the foregoing information in a Campus Occupancy Report to the extent SUBR is precluded 
from disclosing such information by Applicable Laws. 



 12 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(e) Dedication of Project to Occupants. Owner shall offer units in the Facilities for 
lease only to Occupants. Owner shall cooperate with SUBR in marketing the Facilities to Eligible 
Residents. 

(f) Restriction on Other SUBR Sponsored Housing. SUBR covenants that it will not 
undertake or otherwise approve additional SUBR Sponsored Housing unless an independent 
consultant acceptable to the Trustee certifies that the Project is then at least ninety percent (90%) 
occupied by Occupants, and Owner has met the rate covenant set forth in Section 8.08 of the Loan 
Agreement for each of the two (2) preceding fiscal years of Owner. 

Section 3. Payments to SUBR. 

(a) Net Cash Flow. In consideration for the obligations and responsibilities of SUBR 
contained herein, SUBR shall receive, so long as the Indenture is in effect, all funds payable to 
SUBR from the Surplus Fund pursuant to Section 509 of the Indenture at the times and subject to 
the conditions stated therein. 

(b) Replacement Reserve. During the Term, Owner will, subject to and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Indenture, monthly place in a separate account the monthly Replacement 
Reserve set out in the Annual Budget and in accordance with the Indenture. Except as otherwise 
set forth in the Indenture, such fund shall be used solely for scheduled capital repairs to the 
Facilities or Facility Equipment. 

Section 4. Use of Premises. 

(a) Purpose of Agreement.  In consideration for the obligations and responsibilities of 
SUBR contained herein, Owner agrees that the Premises shall be used by Owner only for the 
purpose of leasing, operating, maintaining, repairing and replacing the Project to provide SUBR 
Sponsored Housing for Occupants in accordance with this Agreement, all Applicable Laws and all 
SUBR Regulations. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Owner shall not use the Project for 
any other purpose. Owner shall not cause or permit any waste of the Land, Facilities or Facility 
Equipment, or any public or private nuisance or illegal activities on the Premises. Owner shall at 
all times enforce any Management Agreement and all Housing Contracts in accordance with the 
terms thereof.  

(b) Benefit of SUBR.  Subject to Section 2(e), Owner shall lease and hold the Project 
for the support, maintenance or benefit of SUBR and Occupants, and the Project shall be leased 
for a purpose related to the performance of the public and school purposes, duties and functions of 
SUBR, specifically student housing, and subject to SUBR Regulations.  

(c) Conveyance of Project. Upon the last to occur of (i) payment in full or defeasance 
of all of the Bonds and payment of all obligations of the Owner to any Enhancement Providers and 
(ii) the expiration or termination of this Agreement, however such expiration or termination may 
be brought about, Owner shall, at the sole discretion of SUBR, convey the Project in good working 
order and in a clean, safe and habitable condition, ordinary wear and tear, damage by a Taking or 
insured casualty excepted (subject to the terms hereof), (A) to SUBR, provided it is elects in 
writing to accept such conveyance, (B) if SUBR does not elect in writing to accept such 
conveyance, to Southern University System Foundation, Inc., provided that it elects in writing to 



 13 
4817-3242-4119.2  

accept such conveyance, and Cc) if neither SUBR nor such foundation elect in writing to accept 
such conveyance, to any organization described in Section 170(c)(1) or (2) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended, which is designated as the recipient of such conveyance, by SUBR and 
which is willing to accept such conveyance. If either SUBR or such foundation do not elect in 
writing to accept such conveyance within ninety (90) days of being notified by the Borrower that 
the Borrower is required to make such conveyance to the notified party hereunder provided that 
the notified party elects to accept it, such notified party’s right to elect to accept such conveyance 
shall terminate. Owner shall pay over to the party to whom it conveys the Project as aforesaid an 
amount equal to the aggregate amount of Deposits with respect to all Housing Contracts then in 
effect, and Owner shall cause the Manager to cooperate with such party in the orderly transition 
of all management and accounting matters. The provisions of this Section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

Section 5. Maintenance, Repairs, Casualty Damage.   

(a) Repairs. Throughout the Term of this Agreement, Owner shall keep and maintain, 
or cause to be kept and maintained, the Premises and all Facility Equipment located thereon in a 
good state of repair, in a clean and attractive condition and in compliance with all Applicable Laws 
and SUBR Regulations, damage caused by casualty, condemnation and Force Majeure excepted 
(subject to Owner’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement relating to Force Majeure). All 
mechanical equipment shall be maintained in accordance with manufacturers’ recommended 
maintenance requirements, and preventative maintenance and repair to all HVAC related systems 
shall be performed by manufacturers’ certified personnel. The Premises shall be maintained free 
of litter and trash and shall comply with all Applicable Laws. All parking lots shall be kept clean, 
and all fire lanes, handicapped access and parking spaces shall be regularly striped. Landscaping 
will be maintained in good and live condition throughout the Term of this Agreement.  SUBR shall 
have the right at reasonable times to make reasonable inspections of the Project during normal 
business hours with prior notice to Owner and Manager and make recommendations as to proper 
maintenance of the Project.  

(b) Renovations. Owner shall have the right at any time and from time to time to do 
such alterations, renovations, repairs or replacements to any portion of the Facilities and/or the 
Facility Equipment as Owner determines is reasonably necessary in order to comply with the 
requirements of the Bond Documents, any Permitted Mortgage, this Marketing Agreement or the 
Management Agreement, subject to the prior approval of SUBR and the Enhancement Provider, if 
applicable, for major alterations, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(c) Damage from Casualties. Subject to the other terms of this Agreement, the Bond 
Documents and any Permitted Mortgage, in the event any portion of the Project is damaged by fire 
or otherwise, regardless of the extent of such damage or destruction, as soon as practicable 
thereafter, Owner shall arrange for all affected Tenants to receive a refund of a pro rata portion of 
paid Occupancy Rental pursuant to such Persons’ Housing Contracts and in no event longer than 
ninety (90) days following the date of such damage or destruction, Owner shall commence the 
work of repair, reconstruction or replacement of the damaged or destroyed portions of the Project 
and prosecute the same with reasonable diligence until the same is substantially completed, so that 
the Facilities shall be restored to substantially the same size, function and value (without regard to 
physical depreciation) as the Facilities existing prior to the damage. All or any portion of the 



 14 
4817-3242-4119.2  

insurance proceeds payable as a consequence of a casualty affecting the Facilities shall be 
deposited and disbursed in accordance with such loan documents or contractual agreements with 
Owner pending the completion of repairs to the Facilities. If the proceeds available under the 
insurance required hereunder (or which would be available if such insurance were provided) are 
insufficient, in the reasonable judgment of Owner, to permit restoration in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, or if payment of the insurance proceeds is contested or not settled 
promptly for any reason, then SUBR shall grant an appropriate extension of the time for 
commencing repairs to allow Owner to obtain reasonable replacement financing or to obtain the 
insurance proceeds. If Owner shall in good faith be unable to (a) obtain reasonable replacement 
financing to restore the Project to substantially the same size, function and value as the Facilities 
existing prior to the damage or (b) obtain the insurance proceeds then Owner may terminate this 
Marketing Agreement by written notice to SUBR. In the event of termination under this Section, 
this Agreement shall terminate ten (10) days after the date of such notice with the same force and 
effect as if such date were the date herein fixed for the expiration of the Term; provided, however, 
that subject to payment in full of all of the Bonds and all obligations to any Enhancement Provider 
(i) all remaining insurance proceeds and any undisbursed Gross Revenues on the date on which 
title to the Project is required to be conveyed to SUBR pursuant to Section shall be promptly paid 
to SUBR. 

Section 6. Operation and Management of Facilities. 

(a) Management Agreements. Owner shall be responsible for the leasing, 
management, operation and maintenance of the Land and Project in accordance with this 
Marketing Agreement, all Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations without cost or expense to 
SUBR. Owner shall have the right to delegate some or all of such responsibilities to a Manager 
approved by SUBR by entering into a Management Agreement.  Owner shall require the Manager 
at all times to keep in effect all real estate, operating and other licenses or permits required by 
Applicable Laws. 

(b) Books and Records. Owner shall keep, or cause to be kept, accurate, full and 
complete books and accounts showing exclusively its assets and liabilities and all operations, 
transactions and the financial condition of the Project. All financial statements shall be accurate in 
all material respects, shall present fairly the financial position and results of the Project’s 
operations and shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP. Owner and the Manager shall 
determine methods to be used in the preparation of financial statements, in connection with all 
items of income and expense including, but not limited to, valuation of assets, the method or 
methods of depreciation, elections, credits and accounting procedures. The books, accounts and 
records of Owner and the Project shall be maintained at the principal office of Owner or of the 
Oversight Consultant. 

(c) Audits. SUBR may, at its option and at its own expense with reasonable notice to 
Owner and Manager and during customary business hours, conduct or cause to be conducted 
internal audits of the books, records and accounts of Owner, Manager and the Project. Audits may 
be made on either a continuous or a periodic basis or both and may be conducted by employees of 
or independent auditors retained by SUBR or any Governmental Authority regulating SUBR. All 
such audits shall be conducted without materially or unreasonably interrupting or interfering with 
the normal conduct of business affairs by Owner and the Oversight Consultant. SUBR covenants 



 15 
4817-3242-4119.2  

with Owner to keep the results of any such audits confidential, except as required by SUBR 
Regulations and by Applicable Law. Owner shall cause annual audits to be conducted in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond Documents. 

(d) Committee. The Committee shall have responsibility for the following: 

(i) Issues including the approval of the Annual Budget, successors to the 
Manager, and approval of the policies and operating procedures governing the Project. 

(ii) The Manager will operate the Project in conformity with the Annual 
Budgets. A draft annual budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year, including recommendations 
for Occupancy Rental rates and any estimated capital expenditures for the Project for 
which accumulated Replacement Reserve funds would be needed during such Fiscal Year, 
will be prepared and submitted by the Manager to the Committee not later than May 1 
each year for approval by the Committee by June 1 each year for the upcoming Fiscal 
Year. Each Annual Budget will be in such detail as the Committee may reasonably require. 
If at any time during a Fiscal Year Owner reasonably believes that the amounts set forth 
in an Annual Budget require adjustment, the Manager must submit a revised Annual 
Budget to the Committee for approval in accordance with this Section; provided, however, 
that no such adjustments shall result in any increase in Occupancy Rentals under any 
Housing Contracts already in effect at the time of such adjustment. 

(iii) If the Committee is unable in good faith after using commercially 
reasonable efforts to reach a decision regarding an Annual Budget (including the 
Occupancy Rentals), then Owner shall operate pursuant to the Annual Budget for the 
previous Fiscal Year for any line item of the Annual Budget in dispute. 

(iv) The Committee may, by resolution, delegate its powers, but not its 
responsibilities, to employees of either SUBR or Owner or to any other Person, to the 
extent permitted by law. 

(v) All actions of the Committee shall be subject to satisfaction and conformity 
with the applicable covenants contained in the Bond Documents. 

(e) Utilities. Owner shall pay or cause to be paid, before the same become delinquent, 
all Operating Expenses, including any initial connection fees for water, electricity, sewer and any 
other utilities used on the Premises throughout the Term. Owner shall provide, at its expense, all 
off-site utilities to the perimeter of the Owned Land in sufficient capacity to serve the Project. 
Payments made by Owner pursuant to this Section 6(e) shall be paid as Annual Expenses under 
the Annual Budget for the Project. 

(f) Payment of Taxes. Owner shall pay all Taxes before the same become delinquent, 
as a portion of Operating Expenses, and upon request by SUBR Owner shall provide SUBR 
evidence of such payment to the appropriate collecting authorities. Owner may pay the Taxes in 
installments if payment may be so made without penalty other than the payment of interest. The 
obligations of Owner to pay Taxes under this Section 6(f) shall apply only to the extent that Owner 
and the Project are not exempt from paying such Taxes and to the extent that such Taxes are not 



 16 
4817-3242-4119.2  

otherwise abated. Owner shall at all times pay, and cause the Manager to pay, before the same 
become delinquent, all income taxes and franchise taxes due and owing by such Person. 

(g) Contested Tax Payments. Owner shall not be required to pay, discharge or remove 
any Taxes so long as Owner is contesting the amount or validity thereof by appropriate proceedings 
which shall operate to prevent or stay the collection of the amount so contested. Owner hereby 
agrees to indemnify and save SUBR harmless from all liability for damages occasioned thereby 
and shall, in the event of a judgment of foreclosure on any lien arising in respect to such contested 
amounts which are Owner’s responsibility, cause the same to be discharged and removed prior to 
the execution of such judgment. SUBR shall cooperate with Owner in completing such contest and 
SUBR shall have no right to pay the amount contested during the contest. Upon the termination of 
such proceeding, Owner shall deliver to SUBR proof of the amount due as finally determined and 
proof of payment thereof. SUBR, at Owner’s expense, shall join in any such proceeding if any law 
shall so require. 

(h) Additional Operational Provisions. Owner shall cause the Manager to contract on 
behalf of the Project exclusively with SUBR for the Data/Voice System services, including 
telephone, cable television and computer systems services. The charges to Tenants for telephone 
and cable television shall not exceed the charges for such services at other SUBR sponsored 
student housing. If SUBR fails, within sixty (60) days after the execution of this Agreement, to 
commit in writing to detailed arrangements reasonably acceptable to Owner to provide the 
Data/Voice System services at rates equal to or less than those available to Manager directly from 
the carriers or other providers of such services, then Manager will be permitted to contract for such 
Data/Voice System services from sources other than SUBR. 

(i) SUBR shall have the right, at its option, to make or cause to be made annual  
inspections of the Project to ascertain the quality of maintenance provided by Owner. Upon 
any such inspection, SUBR shall notify Owner of all items of repair or replacement deemed 
reasonably necessary to maintain the Project in a clean, safe and presentable condition and 
in good working order. SUBR shall provide a copy of such notice to each Permitted 
Mortgagee entitled to notices under this Agreement. Upon receipt of such notice, Owner 
shall make or cause to be made, within thirty (30) days after such notice is given, such 
corrective  maintenance or repair of the Project as reasonably necessary to meet the 
minimum  standard of maintenance or repair of other SUBR sponsored student housing.  

(ii) Owner shall enforce the Management Contract, and Owner shall cause the 
Manager to enforce all Housing Contracts, in accordance with their terms and shall not 
agree to any material amendment thereto without SUBR’s consent. Owner shall lease, 
manage and operate the Project in accordance with the applicable Annual Budgets. 

Section 7. Insurance, Indemnification, Subrogation. 

(a) Indemnification by Owner. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless SUBR, the 
Enhancement Provider, their trustees, officers, faculty, employees, agents, representatives and 
contractors, as applicable, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, damages, 
expenses, fees, fines, penalties, suits, proceedings, actions and causes of action of any and every 
kind and nature to the extent arising, or growing out of or in any way connected with, directly or 



 17 
4817-3242-4119.2  

indirectly, the use, occupancy, leasing, management, maintenance, repair, operation or control of 
the Project by Owner, Manager or their respective members, officers, directors, employees, agents, 
representatives, contractors or subcontractors. This obligation to indemnify shall include 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of court, and third-party investigation costs and all other 
reasonable costs, expenses and liabilities from the first notice that any claim or demand has been 
made. 

(b) SUBR Not Liable. It is expressly understood and agreed that Owner is and shall be 
deemed to be an independent contractor responsible to all parties for its respective acts or 
omissions and that SUBR shall in no way be responsible therefor. SUBR shall not be liable for 
any bodily injury, death or personal injury to any Persons or any loss of or damage to any property 
sustained by Owner or other Persons and caused by any act or omission of any occupant of the 
Project. 

(c) Insurance. Subject to Section 15(h), Owner shall at all appropriate times maintain, 
with respect to the Project, for the duration of this Agreement and any extensions thereof, insurance 
issued by a company or companies qualified, permitted or admitted to do business in the State of 
Louisiana in the following types and amounts, which companies and the form and substance of 
such policies shall be subject to SUBR’s prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld: 

TYPE AMOUNT 

(1) Comprehensive General (Public) 
Liability  to include coverage for the 
following, where the exposure exists: 

Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage in an amount 
acceptable to the SUBR Representative, not 
to exceed $5,000,000. 

(a) Premises/Operations 
(b) Independent Contractors 
(c) Projects/Completed Operations 
(d) Personal Injury 
(e) Contractual Liability (including Owner’s liability under Section 10.1) 
(f) Explosion, collapse and under-ground property damage 
(g) Contents of the Project owned by Tenants 

(2) All Risk Property Damage Insurance 
– for coverage being for physical 
damage to Facilities and Facility 
Equipment: 

Coverage being for 100% of the replacement 
cost of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(3) Builder’s Risk Insurance – all risk of 
physical loss during term of any 
construction contract and until the 
Facilities and Facility Equipment are 
Substantially Completed: 

Coverage being for 100% of the replacement 
cost of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(4) Business Interruption Insurance.  



 18 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(d) Owner and the Trustee as Insureds. With respect to the above required insurance, 
SUBR and the Trustee shall: 

(i) Be named on the property insurance policy and comprehensive general 
liability policy described above as insureds. SUBR shall promptly endorse insurance 
checks or otherwise release insurance proceeds, provided no Event of Default is continuing 
hereunder. SUBR shall, regardless of the existence of an Event of Default, promptly 
endorse insurance checks or otherwise’ release insurance proceeds as required by any Bond 
Document(s). 

(ii) Be provided with thirty (30) days advance notice, in writing, of cancellation 
or material change in coverage. 

(iii) Be provided with a certificate evidencing the above required insurance at 
the time the policies are required to be obtained and thereafter with certificates evidencing 
renewals or replacements of said policies of insurance at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
expiration or cancellation of any such policies. 

(e) Additional Insurance. SUBR may review Owner’s required insurance coverages 
and limits as stated herein at the time of renewal of the said policies or at the time of a material 
change, and SUBR reserves the right to require reasonable additional limits or coverages. Owner 
shall comply with any such reasonable request by SUBR. 

(f) Blanket Policies. Owner may submit any blanket general insurance policy 
containing the requirements of this Section 7 to SUBR for its approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

Section 8. Defaults, Remedies. 

(a) Owner Events of Default. Any one of the following events shall be deemed to be 
an Event of Default by Owner under this Agreement: 

(i) Owner fails to obtain and maintain any insurance required pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

(ii) Owner fails to maintain, repair, or make capital expenditures for scheduled 
repair and replacement of the Facilities or the Facility Equipment according to an annual 
schedule for maintenance, repair and replacement; provide through employees or third 
party contractors all work, labor and services necessary or appropriate to maintain and 
repair the Premises in accordance with the Annual Budget and Capital Budget unless 
otherwise provided herein; promptly notify SUBR upon learning that the condition of the 
Premises materially fails to meet any standard of maintenance and repair required under 
any contract, legal requirement or insurance requirement; promptly notify SUBR upon 
learning of any Hazardous Materials detection, casualty, or condemnation (or threatened 
condemnation) with respect to the Premises; consult with, and make recommendations to, 
SUBR concerning repairs or replacement after any Hazardous Materials detection, casualty 
or condemnation; at the expense of the Owner, take such action as SUBR may reasonably 
determine to be necessary with respect to the maintenance, repair, alteration, addition or 



 19 
4817-3242-4119.2  

replacement of or to the Premises; at the expense of the Owner and in accordance with the 
terms of a Management Agreement approved by SUBR, execute all contracts for such 
maintenance, repair, alteration, addition, or replacement of or to the Premises and monitor 
the performance of such contracts; or fails to perform any other covenant or agreement, 
other than as described in Subsections (i) or (ii) of this Section 8(a), to be performed by 
Owner under the terms and provisions of this Agreement and such failure shall not be cured 
within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice from SUBR of such failure; provided 
that if such failure is of such nature that it cannot reasonably be cured during such period, 
then within a reasonable time after such notice, provided that Owner commences its 
curative work promptly upon receipt of such notice and continues such work thereafter 
diligently and without unnecessary delays until such failure is cured. 

(iii) The taking by execution of Owner’s interest in the Project for the benefit of 
any Person or purchaser at a Foreclosure. 

(iv) A court having jurisdiction shall enter an order for relief in any involuntary 
case commenced against Owner, as debtor, under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, as now or 
hereafter constituted, or the entry of a decree or order by a court having jurisdiction over 
the Premises appointing a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or 
other similar official of or for Owner or any substantial part of the properties of Owner or 
ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of Owner, and the continuance of any 
such decree or order unstayed and in effect for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days. 

(v) The commencement by Owner of a voluntary case under the Federal 
Bankruptcy Code, as now or hereafter constituted, or the consent or acquiescence by Owner 
to the commencement of a case under such Code or to the appointment of or taking 
possession by a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or other 
similar official of or for Owner or any substantial part of the properties of Owner. 

(vi) Owner fails to diligently pursue financing of the Project. 

(b) SUBR’s Remedies. Subject to the rights of a Permitted Mortgagee described in 
Section 8(d) below, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, SUBR 
may at its option declare this Agreement and all rights and interests created by it to be terminated, 
may seek any and all damages occasioned by the Event of Default or may seek any other remedies 
available at law or in equity. 

(c) Assignments. Except as provided in this Section 8(c), Owner shall not assign this 
Agreement or any interest in this Agreement except with SUBR’s prior consent. Any assignment 
made or given without SUBR’s consent, unless such consent is not required pursuant to this 
Section 8(c), will be null and void. The Owner shall have the right, without SUBR’s prior consent, 
to grant the Permitted Mortgagee all of its rights and remedies under this Agreement. Furthermore, 
SUBR hereby agrees to such assignment to the Permitted Mortgagee pursuant to the terms of the 
Bond Documents. 

(d) SUBR’s Agreements. SUBR hereby agrees to the following for the benefit of any 
Permitted Mortgagee: 



 20 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(i) SUBR shall not terminate this Agreement (or Owner’s rights hereunder) for 
any Event of Default without first advising such Permitted Mortgagee, in writing, of such 
Event of Default and permitting such Permitted Mortgagee to cure such Event of Default 
on behalf of Owner within ninety (90) days after SUBR has given notice to such Permitted 
Mortgagee any Event of Default. If, during such ninety (90) day period, the Permitted 
Mortgagee takes action to cure such Event of Default but is unable, by reason of the nature 
of the default involved, to cure such failure within such period, then the Permitted 
Mortgagee, provided it promptly commenced its curative work promptly upon receipt of 
such notice and has diligently and continuously proceeded such curative work thereafter, 
shall have a reasonable time thereafter to cure the same, during which period SUBR shall 
not terminate this Agreement. Further, if any Event of Default is not cured within such 
period as provided above, and (1) the Permitted Mortgagee shall have given the notices 
necessary to commence Foreclosure of its Permitted Mortgage prior to the expiration of 
such period and thereafter Foreclosure is diligently prosecuted (unless the Permitted 
Mortgagee is enjoined or stayed from giving such notices or exercising its right of 
Foreclosure, in which event such cure period shall be extended by the period of such 
injunction or stay provided that such Permitted Mortgagee shall diligently attempt to 
remove any such injunction or stay), and (2) the purchaser or assignee at the Foreclosure 
has fully cured any monetary default or has promptly commenced to cure any non-
monetary default that is not reasonably curable within thirty (30) days and thereafter 
diligently pursues completion thereof within a reasonable time thereafter in accordance 
with this Agreement, then SUBR will not terminate this Agreement because of the 
occurrence of such Event of Default. SUBR shall accept amounts paid or actions taken by 
or on behalf of any Permitted Mortgagee to cure any Event of Default during the periods 
described above. Nothing under this Section 8(d) shall be construed to obligate a Permitted 
Mortgagee to either cure any Events of Default or Foreclose the liens and security interests 
under its Permitted Mortgage as a consequence of an Event of Default regardless of 
whether such Event of Default is subsequently cured. 

(ii) Those Events of Default, which by their very nature, are not reasonably 
susceptible to being cured (as, for example, the bankruptcy of Owner) shall not constitute 
grounds of enforcement of rights, recourses or remedies hereunder by SUBR including 
termination of the Agreement, if a Permitted Mortgagee either before or after a 
Foreclosure of its Permitted Mortgage (1) makes all payments and performs all obligations 
hereunder capable of being performed by the Permitted Mortgagee, and (2) thereafter 
continues to comply with those provisions of this Agreement. 

(iii) If a Permitted Mortgagee enforces the rights and remedies pursuant to the 
terms of its Permitted’ Mortgage (including Foreclosure of the Permitted Mortgage) such 
enforcement shall not constitute an Event of Default by Owner hereunder. 

(iv) If a Permitted Mortgagee should foreclose its Permitted Mortgage and 
should, as a result of such Foreclosure, succeed to any of the rights of Owner hereunder, 
then such Permitted Mortgagee shall be subject to all the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and shall be entitled to all the rights and benefits of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that (1) such Permitted Mortgagee shall have no responsibility for any act or 
omission of Owner prior to the date of such Foreclosure; and (2) such Permitted 



 21 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Mortgagee shall not be bound by any amendment, modification, surrender or waiver of 
the terms of this Agreement made without the prior written consent of such Permitted 
Mortgagee (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). 

(v) SUBR shall not agree to any termination, amendment, modification, 
surrender or waiver of the terms of this Agreement without the prior written consent of any 
Permitted Mortgagees, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

(vi) In the event of the termination of this Agreement prior to the Expiration 
Date, except by a Taking pursuant to Section 9 hereof, SUBR will serve upon any Permitted 
Mortgagees written notice that this Agreement has been terminated together with a 
statement of any and all sums which would have at that time been due under the Agreement 
but for such termination and of all other Events of Default, if any, under this Agreement 
then known to SUBR whereupon the Permitted Mortgagee holding the most senior 
Permitted Mortgage shall have the option, but not the obligation, to enter into a new 
agreement (the “New Marketing Agreement”) with SUBR relating to the Premises, which 
shall be in the same form as this Agreement, by giving notice to SUBR to such effect within 
ninety (90) days after receipt by such Permitted Mortgagee of notice of such termination, 
which New Marketing Agreement shall be (1) effective as of the date of termination of this 
Agreement, (2) for the remainder of the Term, and (3) upon all of the agreements, terms, 
covenants and conditions hereof. In the event such Permitted Mortgagee does not exercise 
its option to enter into such New Marketing Agreement within such ninety (90) day period, 
the University shall have no further obligations whatsoever with respect to the Project or 
to the Permitted Mortgagee or to its successors and assigns. 

(vii) All notices given hereunder by SUBR to Owner shall also be given 
concurrently to each Permitted Mortgagee. 

(viii) The liability of the Permitted Mortgagee under this Agreement (if not 
terminated) or any New Marketing Agreement shall be limited to the period during which 
the Permitted Mortgagee shall own or be in possession of the Project, or may own the 
interest of Owner hereunder. Upon the Permitted Mortgagee’s assignment or transfer of its 
rights and interests in and to this Agreement or any New Marketing Agreement to a third 
party, the Permitted Mortgagee shall have no further liability for any obligations arising 
after such transfer date, which liability shall be borne by such assignee or transferee. 

(e) Limitation on Liability of Permitted Mortgagee. Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this Agreement, SUBR agrees that any Permitted Mortgagee permitted under this 
Agreement shall in no manner or respect whatsoever be (i) liable or responsible for any of Owner’s 
obligations or covenants under this Agreement (nor shall any rights of such Permitted Mortgagee 
be contingent on the satisfaction of such obligations or covenants), or (ii) required to cure any 
default by Owner under this Agreement, provided; however, that if such Permitted Mortgagee 
becomes the successor to the rights of the Owner hereunder, then such Permitted Mortgagee shall 
be responsible and liable for all obligations and covenants accruing during the period in which 
such Permitted Mortgagee is entitled to the benefits of this Agreement. 



 22 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(f) SUBR Defaults. If SUBR fails to perform any of its respective obligations or 
covenants under this Agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after written 
notice thereof, except for the obligations of SUBR in Section 2(a)(i) for which there shall not be a 
period to cure, then Owner shall be entitled to enforce any one or more of the following rights and 
remedies, and shall have all rights and remedies available to it at law and equity. 

(i) Owner shall be entitled to perform such obligation or covenant on behalf of 
SUBR and to offset all costs reasonably incurred in connection therewith against any Rent 
due by Owner hereunder; and 

(ii) Owner shall be entitled to require SUBR to specifically perform its 
obligations under this Agreement or restrain or enjoin SUBR from continuing the activities 
that constitute the default of SUBR. 

Section 9. Condemnation. 

(a) Total or Material Taking. Upon the permanent Taking of the entire Premises or a 
material portion thereof such that Owner reasonably determines that the Project cannot be 
economically and feasibly used for its intended purposes, or if the award payable as a consequence 
of a Taking (after payment of all or any portion of such Award towards amounts owed under any 
Loan Agreement) is insufficient, in the reasonable judgment of Owner, to permit the restoration of 
the remainder of the Project as required under Section 9(d), this Agreement shall terminate as of 
the date of such Taking, and both Owner and SUBR shall thereupon be released from any liability 
accruing hereunder after the date of such termination. 

(b) Partial Taking. Upon a temporary Taking or a Taking of less than all or such 
material portion of the Premises, this Agreement shall terminate with respect to the part so taken 
(but only for the period taken in any temporary Taking) and remain in full force and effect with 
respect the remainder of the Project in accordance with its terms for the balance of the Term, except 
that the Project shall be defined as providing a lower number of beds for Tenants, as determined 
based on the repaired or reconstructed architectural unit or units approved as provided in Section 
9(d). 

(c) Allocation of Awards. SUBR, Owner and the Permitted Mortgagee shall each 
receive notice of any proceedings relating to a Taking and shall each have the right to participate 
therein: (a) Upon the Taking as a result of which this Agreement is terminated under Section 9(a), 
(i) the Permitted Mortgagee shall be entitled (free of any claim by Owner) to a portion of the 
Award equal to the aggregate amount of all sums due under the debt under the Bond Documents; 
and (ii) Owner shall be entitled (free of any claim by SUBR or the Permitted Mortgagee) to the 
balance of the Award. (b) In the event of a Taking as a result of which this Agreement is not 
terminated, then (i) the Permitted Mortgagee shall be entitled (free of any claim by Owner) to the 
portion of the Award attributable to the part so taken, not to exceed the portion of the aggregate 
amount of the debt secured by the Loan Agreement reasonably allocable to the Premises so taken; 
(ii) Owner shall be entitled (free of any claim by SUBR, other than its right to enforce Section 
9(d)) to the portion of the Award attributable to the damage to the remainder of the Project and 
relocation benefits, if any, for removal and relocation of Facility Equipment from the part of the 



 23 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Premises so taken; and (iii) SUBR shall be entitled (free of any claim by Owner or the Permitted 
Mortgagee) to the balance of the Award. 

(d) Repair After Taking. Should a Taking occur that does not result in termination as 
provided by Section 9(a), Owner, at its expense, shall promptly commence and diligently and 
continuously proceed to repair or reconstruct the Facilities to a complete architectural unit or units. 
Any and all such repairs or reconstruction shall be subject to prior reasonable approval of SUBR. 
The portion of the Award payable to Owner as a consequence of a Taking affecting the Project 
shall be deposited with and disbursed by the Permitted Mortgagee until the repair or restoration of 
the Premises is substantially complete. 

(e) No Condemnation by SUBR. SUBR does not presently intend to exercise its right 
of eminent domain to condemn all or any portion of the Project, and in the event of any such 
Taking, all of the Award shall be payable to Owner and the Permitted Mortgagee. SUBR 
acknowledges and agrees that each Permitted Mortgagee and the Enhancement Provider is a third-
party beneficiary of this prohibition and that the Permitted Mortgagee and the Enhancement 
Provider may rely upon such agreement. 

Section 10. Assignment and Subletting. 

(a) Assignments. Except as provided in this Section 10(a), Owner shall not assign this 
Marketing Agreement or sublet all or any part of the Project or any interest in this Agreement 
except with SUBR’s prior consent. Any assignment or sublease made or given without SUBR’s 
consent, unless such consent is not required pursuant to this Section 10(a), will be null and void. 
An assignment of any ownership interest in Owner (other than to SUBR or to Southern University 
System Foundation, Inc.) shall be deemed to be an assignment of this Agreement by Owner, 
subject to the provisions of this Section 10(a). The Owner shall have the right, without SUBR’s 
prior consent, to assign this Agreement to any Permitted Assignee as in conjunction with Owner’s 
assignment of the Management Agreement, all Housing Contracts then in effect for the Project, 
and any and all Deposits paid or payable under such Housing Contracts; or merge into or 
consolidate with any Permitted Assignee; or sublease units in the Facilities to Tenants pursuant to 
Housing Contracts in accordance with this Agreement. Owner shall not enter into, or permit to be 
entered into, any sublease of any portion of the Project with any Person providing laundry services, 
vending machines or other ancillary services or amenities to the Facilities, and all such services or 
amenities shall be provided, if at all, pursuant to written license agreements terminable by Owner 
on not more than thirty (30) days’ notice. 

(b) SUBR’s Consent. SUBR and Owner acknowledge that Owner is in the business of 
developing, constructing, leasing and managing student apartment housing projects pursuant to 
development agreements, management agreements and other operating or service agreements; and 
that Owner is a single member limited liability company, the sole member of which is a non-profit 
corporation organized for the purpose of developing student housing projects in compliance with 
its qualification as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as 
amended. In those instances for which SUBR’s consent to an assignment is required, such consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and such consent shall be based solely on SUBR’s 
reasonable determination that the creditworthiness, tax-exempt status, experience and expertise 
with development, construction, leasing, management and operation of student apartment housing 



 24 
4817-3242-4119.2  

projects of such proposed assignee and its agents is equal to or better than that of Owner and 
Manager as of the Effective Date hereof, and that such prospective assignee and its agents are not 
debarred from participating in any federally funded projects under applicable federal procurement 
regulations and other Applicable Laws. With respect to any subleases for which SUBR’s consent 
is required, such consent may be withheld in SUBR’s sole discretion. 

Section 11. SUBR’s Standard Provisions. 

(a) Dispute Resolution Process. SUBR and Owner will attempt to resolve any claim 
for breach of contract made by Owner or Owner’s agents and contractors, including Manager (all 
references in this Section 11(a) to Owner shall be deemed to include such additional Persons). 

(i) A claim by Owner for breach of this Agreement that the parties cannot 
resolve in the ordinary course of business shall be submitted to binding arbitration pursuant 
to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or any other mutually agreed upon 
arbitration rules. To initiate the process, Owner shall submit written notice to SUBR, Office 
of General Counsel. 

(ii) Neither the occurrence of an event nor the pendency of a claim constitutes 
grounds for the suspension of performance by Owner, in whole or in part. 

(b) Subject to Southern University System Approval. Owner expressly acknowledges 
that the validity and enforceability of this Agreement is contingent upon acceptance of the 
contractual terms by SUBR pursuant to authorization by the Southern University System 
Approval. 

(c) Minority and HUB Participation. Owner agrees to make a good faith effort to 
award at least twenty-five percent (25%) of all procurements and purchases of personal property 
and all contracts for services to certified HUB’s. 

(d) Non-discrimination.  Any discrimination by Owner, the Manager or their 
respective officers, employees, agents, representatives, contractors or subcontractors on account 
of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin or handicap, in employment practices or in the 
performance of the terms, conditions, covenants and obligations of this Agreement, or any 
agreement or contracts contemplated in this Agreement, is prohibited. It is the policy of SUBR to 
ensure that minority and women business enterprises have the opportunity to fully compete for 
and participate in SUBR contracts. Owner shall use its best efforts, and cause the Manager to use 
their best efforts, to carry out this policy through award of subcontracts to minority and women-
owned business enterprises to the extent consistent with the efficient performance of this 
Agreement and all agreements or contracts contemplated in this Marketing Agreement 

Section 12. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Notices. All notices and other communications to SUBR or Owner required or 
appropriate under this Agreement shall be in writing, effective (a) upon receipt when sent by (1) 
personal delivery or (ii) expedited delivery service with proof of delivery, or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (iii) telecopy with confirmation of completed transmission 
on a business day; or (b) two (2) business days after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service, sent by 



 25 
4817-3242-4119.2  

registered or certified United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; in all cases 
addressed as follows: 

if to SUBR: 

Office of the President - Chancellor 
Southern University A&M College at Baton Rouge 
J.S. Clark Administration Building, 4th Floor 
Baton Rouge, LA 70813 

With a copy to: 

Brandon DeCuir, Esq. 
Decuir, Clark & Adams 
732 North Boulevard 
Baton Rouge, LA 70802 
Fax: (225) 336-1950 

if to Owner: 

Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C. 
c/o Student Housing of America, Inc. 
One Buckhead Plaza, Suite 1150 
3060 Peachtree Road, N.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30305 
Fax: (404) 760-3443 

with a copy to: 

Peter M. Wright, Esq. 
One Buckhead Plaza, Suite 900 
3060 Peachtree Road, N.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30305 
Fax: (404) 760-3443 

or to such other address or to the attention of such other person as hereafter shall be designated be 
such party by ten (10) days’ prior notice given in accordance herewith. 

(b) Effect of Force Majeure. Except as otherwise provided in this Marketing 
Agreement, if because of an event of Force Majeure, either party hereto is unable to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement (other than any obligation to pay money or apply credits or 
adjustments in connection with the performance of this Agreement), the affected Person’s 
obligations hereunder shall be excused to the extent made necessary by such event of Force 
Majeure and during its continuance. The affected Party shall promptly give the other party hereto 
verbal notice followed by a written notice which specifies the nature, duration and the estimated 
remedy time of such event. The Party giving such notice shall use commercially reasonable efforts 
to cure such Force Majeure event insofar as possible with a minimum of delay. Neither Party shall 
be obligated to settle any strike, lockout, or other labor disturbance in a manner contradictory to 



 26 
4817-3242-4119.2  

its best business judgment or to comply with any Applicable Law, the validity or applicability of 
which is contested in good faith. 

(c) Conflict of Interest.  Owner certifies (and this Agreement is made in reliance 
thereon) that neither Owner nor any person having a financial or economic interest in this 
Agreement by, through or under Owner is a trustee, officer, faculty or employee of SUBR. 

(d) Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed 
by the parties hereto, or by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, 
partners, joint venturers, or any other similar such relationship, between the parties hereto. It is 
understood and agreed that no provision contained herein nor any acts of the parties hereto creates 
a relationship other than the relationship of SUBR and Owner. 

(e) Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Louisiana, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are 
performable in East Baton Rouge Parish, Louisiana. 

(f) Approval of Ancillary Agreements. SUBR agrees that in the event it becomes 
necessary or desirable for SUBR to give written approval for any ancillary agreements or to 
perform any ministerial acts or documents concerning the Project or concerning the construction, 
operation or maintenance of the Facilities or to alter or amend any such ancillary agreements 
between SUBR and Owner or to give any approval or consent of SUBR required under the terms 
of this Agreement, SUBR hereby authorizes, designates and empowers SUBR Representative to 
execute any such agreement, approvals or consents necessary or desirable. However, any 
agreements to amend or alter this Agreement in any material way must be approved by Southern 
University System and SUBR. 

(g) Rights Cumulative.  All rights, options, and remedies of SUBR and Owner 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed and held to be cumulative and no one of them shall 
be exclusive of the other. SUBR and Owner shall each have the right to pursue any one or all of 
such remedies or any other remedy or relief which may be provided by law or in equity whether 
or not stated in this Agreement. 

(h) Non-waiver.  No waiver by SUBR or Owner of a breach of any of the covenants, 
conditions or restrictions of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of 
any of the covenants, conditions or restrictions of this Agreement. The failure of SUBR or Owner 
to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict performance of any of the covenants of the 
Agreement, or to exercise any option herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver or 
relinquishment for the future of such covenant or option. A receipt by SUBR or acceptance of 
payment by SUBR of Net Cash Flow with knowledge of the breach of any covenant hereof shall 
not be deemed a waiver of such breach. No waiver, change, modification or discharge by SUBR 
or Owner of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been made or shall be 
effective unless expressed in writing and signed by the party to be charged. 

(i) Severability. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable under present or future laws’ effective during the Term of this Agreement, then and 



 27 
4817-3242-4119.2  

in that event, it is the intention of the parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected thereby. 

(j) Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with the exhibits attached hereto, 
contains the final and entire agreement between the parties hereto and contains all of, the terms 
and conditions agreed upon, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject 
matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind the parties hereto; it being the intent 
of the parties that neither shall be bound by any term, condition or representations not herein 
written. 

(k) Amendment. No amendment, modification or alteration of this Agreement shall 
be binding unless the same be in writing, dated on or subsequent to the date hereof and duly 
executed by the parties hereto. No such amendment, modification or alteration, and no termination 
of this Agreement, shall be effective without the prior written consent of the Enhancement 
Provider. 

(l) Successors and Assigns. All of the covenants, agreements, terms and conditions to 
be observed and performed by the parties hereto shall be applicable to and binding upon their 
respective successors and assigns including any successor by merger or consolidation of SUBR 
into another educational institution. 

(m) Bonds.  Following the issuance of any Bonds, and so long as any thereof remain 
outstanding: 

(i) The Enhancement Provider and the Trustee for the Bonds shall be third-
party beneficiaries of this Agreement entitled to enforce the terms hereof. 

(ii) Owner shall provide written notice to the Enhancement Provider if this 
Agreement is terminated as a result of a Taking pursuant to Section 9 hereof. 

(iii) Owner agrees that it will not amend any of the Bond Documents, or enter 
into any Credit Facility, or cause any Bonds other than the Series 2003 Bonds to be issued, 
without the prior written consent of SUBR, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. It 
shall not be unreasonable for SUBR to withhold its consent to any such action if such action 
would adversely affect any of its rights hereunder. 

(n) Continuing Disclosure. SUBR shall provide Owner with any information 
concerning SUBR required for Owner- to comply with its annual continuing disclosure 
requirements pursuant to a continuing disclosure agreement and SEC Rule 15c2-12 entered into 
with respect to any bonds issued to finance the development, construction, procurement and 
installation of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(o) Privacy of Information. Unless otherwise provided herein, and subject to 
Applicable Laws, any information provided by SUBR pursuant to this Agreement shall not be 
disseminated to third parties without SUBR’s prior written consent. 

(p) Legal Opinion.  In connection with the issuance of any bonds or other obligations 
for the Project, SUBR agrees to deliver a legal opinion from outside counsel to SUBR that this 



 28 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Agreement has been duly authorized by SUBR, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of 
SUBR, and is enforceable against SUBR in accordance with its respective terms, subject to 
customary exceptions and qualifications. Such legal opinion shall be in a form and substance 
reasonably acceptable to bond counsel to any such financing. 

(q) Subordination to Bond Documents. Notwithstanding anything else herein 
contained, the provisions of the Bond Documents shall control in all respects the Owner’s 
obligations to maintain insurance coverage, to repair, replace, rebuild, restore and re-equip the 
Facilities and Facility Equipment and the receipt, handling and application of any and all insurance 
proceeds, including the use of insurance proceeds to redeem Bonds, it being acknowledged and 
agreed that the Trustee shall have a first and prior security interest therein. 

(r) No Liability of the Member or Mangers. Notwithstanding anything else herein 
contained, no Person that was at any time the Member or a Manager of the Owner shall have any 
liability on account of the covenants of the Owner contained herein, except for actions taken by 
such Person that were fraudulent or unlawful. 

(s) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed, approved and delivered in any 
number of counterparts, each at which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an 
original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



4817-3242-4119.2  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Agreement to be 
executed in their respective names as of the date first above written. 

 
 
 
 

BATON ROUGE STUDENT HOUSING, L.L.C., a 
Louisiana limited liability company 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE 
AT BATON ROUGE 
 
 
By:  
Name: Ray L. Belton  
Title: President - Chancellor  
 
 

 



4817-3242-4119.2  

KUTAK ROCK LLP 
DRAFT 03/27/2020 

MARKETINGAMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT  
between 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE AT BATON 
ROUGE 

and 

BATON ROUGE STUDENT HOUSING, L.L.C. 

dated as of September 1, 2003 

for the 

PALISADES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

P
A
G
E 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................ 2 
Section 1.1. Terminology .......................................................................................... 2 
Section 1.2. Definitions ........................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

ARTICLE 2. PAYMENTS TO THE LTNIVESITY .................................................. 11 

Section 2.1. Net Cash Flow ..................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.2. Replacement Reserve   12 

ARTICLE 3. USE OF PREMISES ............................................................................. 12 
Section 3.1. Purpose of Marketing Agreement. .....................................................  12 
Section 3.2. Benefit of SUBR. ................................................................................ 12 
Section 3.3. Conveyance of Project. ......................................................................  12 



 2 
4817-3242-4119.2  

ARTICLE 4. CONSTRUCTION ................................................................................ 13 
Section 4.1. Owner to Pay Costs ............................................................................  13 
Section 4.2. Personal Property. ..............................................................................  14 
Section 4.3. Architectural and Design Considerations.  .........................................  14 

ARTICLE 5. MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, CASUALTY DAMAGE ..................... 15 

Section 5.1. Repairs.  ..............................................................................................  15 
Section 5.2. Renovations ........................................................................................  15 
Section 5.3. Damage from Casualties. ...................................................................  16 

ARTICLE 6. OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF FACILITIES ...................  16 

Section 6.1. Management Agreements. ..................................................................  16 
Section 6.2. Books and Records.  ...........................................................................  16 
Section 6.3. Audits. ................................................................................................  17 
Section 6.4. Policy Committee ...............................................................................  17 
Section 6.5. Utilities ...........................................................................................  18 
Section 6.6. Payment of Taxes ...............................................................................  18 
Section 6.7. Contested Tax Payments ....................................................................  18 
Section 6.8. Additional Operational Provisions .....................................................  18 

ARTICLE 7. INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION, SUBROGATION ................... 19 
Section 7.1. Indemnification by Owner. ................................................................. 19 
Section 7.2. SUBR Not Liable. ..............................................................................  19 
Section 7.3. Insurance. ...........................................................................................  19 
Section 7.4. Owner and the Initial Enhancement Provider as Insureds. ................. 20 
Section 7.5. Additional Insurance. .......................................................................... 21 
Section 7.6. Blanket Policies.  ................................................................................. 21 

ARTICLE 8. OWNER DEFAULTS, REMEDIES ..................................................... 21 
Section 8.1. Events of Default.  ............................................................................... 21 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 

 

Section 8.2. Right to Expel. .............................................................................................   22 
Section 8.3. SUBR's Remedies.  ......................................................................................   22 
Section 8.4. Assignments. ................................................................................................   22 
Section 8.5.1. SUBR's Agreements.................................................................................   22 
Section 8.5.2. Limitation on Liability of Permitted Mortgagee ......................................   24 

ARTICLE 9. MARKETING AGREEMENT ..........................................................................   24 
Section 9.1. Priority Referral to Project ...........................................................................   24 
Section 9.2. Occupancy Rentals; Housing Contracts ......................................................   25 
Section 9.3. SUBR Promotions .......................................................................................   26 



 3 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Section 9.4. Campus Occupancy Reports ........................................................................   27 
Section 9.5. Dedication of Project to Occupants. ............................................................   28 
Section 9.6. Advertising. .................................................................................................   28 

ARTICLE 10. DEFAULT BY SUBR .....................................................................................   28 

Section 10.1. SUBR Defaults .........................................................................................   28 

ARTICLE 11. CONDEMNATION .........................................................................................   28 
Section 11.1. Total or Material Taking. .........................................................................   28 
Section 11.2. Partial Taking ...........................................................................................   292-8 
Section 11.3. Allocation of Awards. ..............................................................................   29 
Section 11.4. Repair After Taking. ................................................................................   29 
Section 11.5. No Condemnation by SUBR ....................................................................   29 

ARTICLE 12. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING ............................................................   29 
Section 12.1. Assignments. ............................................................................................   29 
Section 12.2. SUBR's Consent. ......................................................................................   30 

ARTICLE 13. FORCE MAJEURE .........................................................................................   30 

Section 13.1. Effect of Force Majeure. ..........................................................................   30 
ARTICLE 14. SUBR'S STANDARD PROVISIONS .............................................................   3 Lao  

Section 14.1. Dispute Resolution Process .......................................................................  3130 
Section 14.2. Subject to Southern University System Approval. ...................................  31 
Section 14.3. Minority and HUB Participation ...............................................................  31 

ARTICLE 15. MISCELLANEOUS .........................................................................................  31 
Section 15.1. Non-Discrimination.  ................................................................................  31 
Section 15.2. Conflict of Interest. ...................................................................................  31 
Section 15.3. Notices.  ....................................................................................................  323-1-  
Section 15.4. Relationship of Parties. .............................................................................  34 
Section 15.5. Choice of Law.. .........................................................................................  34 
Section 15.6. Approval of Ancillary Agreements ...........................................................  34 
Section 15.7. Rights Cumulative. ...................................................................................  34 
Section 15.8. Non-Waiver ...............................................................................................  34 
Section 15.9. Severability.  .............................................................................................  35 
Section 15.10. Entire Agreement. .....................................................................................  35 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 11 

Section 15.11. Section 15.12. Section 15.13. Section 15.14. Section 15.15. Section 15.16. Section 15.17. Section 15.18. Section 
15.9  



 4 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Amendment ................................................................................................... 35 
Successors and Assigns ................................................................................. 35 
Hazardous Materials.  ..................................................................................  35 
Bonds. ........................................................................................................... 35 
Continuing Disclosure. ................................................................................. 36 
Privacy of Information. ................................................................................. 36 
Legal Opinion. .............................................................................................. 36 
Subordination to Bond Documents. .............................................................. 36 

No Liability of the Member or Mangers ........................................   
 
EXHIBITS  

Exhibit A —Exhibit B — Exhibit C —Exhibit D —Exhibit E —Exhibit F —Exhibit G —Exhibit H —Exhibit I —  



 5 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Legal Description of Land 
Permitted Encumbrances 
Description of Plans and Specifications 
Development Agreement 
Address of Permitted Mortgagee 
Form of Management Agreement 
Form of Referral to Housing Facilities 
Form of Housing Contract 
Form of Oversight Consulting Agreement 

So. University/Marketing Agreement iii 

MARKETING AGREEMENT 
This Marketing AgreementTHIS AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT (this 

"“Agreement"”) is made and entered into as of September' 1, 2003,______ __, 2020 by and between SOUTHERN 
UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE AT BATON ROUGE ("“SUBR"”), and BATON ROUGE STUDENT HOUSING, 
L.L.C., a Louisiana limited liability company ("“Owner"”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, SUBR has determined that there is a shortage of reasonably convenient,and Owner previously entered 
into a Marketing Agreement dated as of September 1, 2003 (the “Original Marketing Agreement”) and now desire to amend 
and restate the Original Marketing Agreement as provided in this Agreement;  



 6 
4817-3242-4119.2  

suitable and affordable housing for post baccalaureate students, married students, faculty and staff 
of SUBR; 

WHEREAS, SUBR is authorized by the statutes and laws of the State of Louisiana to enter into this Agreement with 
the consent and approval of the Southern University System; 

WHEREAS, Owner is a single-member Louisiana limited liability company, the sole member of which iswholly 
owned by Student Housing of America, Inc., a Georgia non-profit corporation (the "Member") which entity is developing 
student housing by the acquisition or renovation of existing student housing facilities or the construction of new student housing 
and the owning and operating of student housing facilities“Member”), formed for the purpose of developing the Facilities (as 
hereinbelow defined); 

WHEREAS, SUBR and Owner have determined to enter into this Marketing Agreement 
whereby Owner will develop, construct, operate and lease Facilities for use by residents as set forth 
herein; 

WHEREAS, SUBR hereby recognizes and finds for the uses permitted herein that (1) the Rent to be paid, (2) the 
construction and installation of the Facilities and Facility Equipment on the Owned Land and, in the case of drainage and parking 
facilities, on the Servitude, for the benefit of SUBR and (3) the residual value of the Facilities and Facility Equipment at the 
conclusion of the Term hereof accruing to SUBR, constitute fair and equitable consideration for the SUBR commitments granted 
herein Owner has constructed and operates certain housing facilities located at 7804 Scenic Hwy, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70807, consisting of fourteen buildings that contain approximately 564 beds/276 units for the purpose of providing residence 
and related facilities for (i) students enrolled at SUBR, (ii) faculty members of SUBR, and (iii) key personnel employed in 
the management or maintenance of the Facilities; 

 
WHEREAS, all necessary consents and approvals have been obtained in connection with 

SUBR and Owner, respectively, entering into this Agreement upon the terms and conditions set 
forth herein; 

WHEREAS, coincident herewith, the Louisiana Local Government Environmental 
Facilities and Community Development Authority (the "Issuer") is issuing its Revenue Bonds, 
(Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C. Project), Series 2003A and Series 2003B (collectively, the 
"2003 Bonds," and together with all additional bonds issued under the Indenture, the "Bonds"), 
pursuant to that certain Trust Indenture between the Issuer and Bank of New York Trust Company 
of Florida, N.A., as trustee (the "Bond Trustee") dated as of September 1 2003 (as supplemented 
from time to time, the "Indenture") and is applying the proceeds of the Bonds to make a loan to 
the Owner for the purpose of financing the costs of developing, acquiring, constructing and 
equipping the Facilities pursuant to the terms of a Loan Agreement dated as of September 1, 2003 
(the "Loan Agreement") between the Issuer and the Owner; 

So, University/Marketing Agreement 1Owner has entered into an Amended and Restated 
Management Agreement dated as of October 1, 2019 pursuant to which Asset Campus USA, LLC, as 
manager (the “Manager”) has agreed to act as managing agent of the Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the 2003 Bonds will be secured by a policy of municipal bond insuranceWHEREAS, 
SUBR has determined that the Facilities will provide much needed housing for SUBR, and, therefore, 
will promote the educational purposes of SUBR. 



 7 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(the "Initial Credit Facility") issued by ACA Financial Guaranty Corporation (the "Initial 
Enhancement Provider"); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, conditions and agreements which follow, the parties 
hereby agree as follows: THEREFORE, the parties desire to memorialize their understandings with respect to the Facilities 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1. Terminology. Unless the context of this Agreement clearly requires otherwise, 
(a) pronouns, wherever used herein, and of whatever gender, shall include natural persons and 
corporations and associations of every kind and character; (b) the singular shall include the plural 
wherever and as often as may be appropriate; (c) the word "includes" or "including" shall mean 
"including without limitation"; (d) the word "or" shall have the inclusive meaning represented by 
the phrase "and/or"; (e) the words "hereof," "herein," "hereunder," and similar terms in this 
Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular section or article in 
which such words appear. The section, article and other headings in this Marketing Agreement 
and the Table of Contents to this Marketing Agreement are for reference purposes and shall not 
control or affect the construction of this Marketing Agreement or the interpretation hereof in any 
respect. Article, section and subsection and exhibit references are to this Marketing Agreement 
unless otherwise specified. All exhibits attached to this Agreement constitute a part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein. All references to a specific time of day in this Agreement 
shall be based upon Central Standard Time (or the other standard of measuring time recognized 
in Baton Rouge, Louisiana). 

In consideration of the foregoing and in further consideration of the anticipated benefits to SUBR and Eligible 
Residents and Tenants, Owner and the SUBR covenant and agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions.  

The following terms shall have the following meanings: 

"Fiscal Year" — means the period commencing on July 1 of each calendar year during the 
Term and ending on June 30 of the following calendar year. 
"“Affiliate" —” means with respect to a designated Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly, 

controls, is controlled by or is under common control with such designated Person. For purposes of this definition, 
the term "“control"” (including the correlative meanings of the terms "“controlled by"” and "“under common control 
with"”), as used with respect to any Person, means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or 
cause the direction of the management policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting securities or 
by contract or otherwise. 

"“Annual Budget" —” means the annual budget for the Project, as approved by the Committee, showing all 
projected Gross Revenues and Annual Expenses on a monthly basis for any Fiscal Year, itemizing the proposed 
Occupancy Rentals, Annual Expenses, capital expenditures for repairs and deposits for reserves to be made during 
such Fiscal Year and shall provide for the charging of the minimum level of Rentrent to provide for no negative Net 
Cash Flow (assuming reasonable vacancy losses and bad debt expense), and compliance with all financial covenants 
set forth in the Bond Documents and the other documentation relating to any Permitted Mortgage, for the funding 
of sufficient capital expenditures to the Project to comply with the Owner'’s duties hereunder and under the Bond 
Documents and such other 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 2 documentation as to maintenance and repair, and for the 
funding of reserves as required by the Bond Documents and such other reasonably required 



 8 
4817-3242-4119.2  

reserves as shall be approved by the Committee. Management fees shall not exceed six percent 
of Gross Revenues. All other Operating Expenses shall not exceed the amount reasonably 
necessary in the Project'’s marketplace to operate a first class student housing facility. 

"“Annual Expenses" —” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year, (1) the sum of (a) Operating 
Expenses; (b) debt service on the debt secured by the Indenture and any Permitted Mortgage 
including (i) principal and interest to any Permitted Mortgagee, and (ii) any other fees or 
expenses in connection with or related to a Permitted Mortgage, including but not limited to, 
issuer fees, remarketing expenses, rating fees, credit enhancement expenses, trustee fees and 
expenses and other professional fees and expenses and any fees or expenses due to any 
Enhancement Provider under any Credit Facility and other related costs, (c) deposits for 
Reserve Amounts; and (d) fees under the Oversight Consulting Agreement; plus (2) any 
deficit in Net Cash Flow from the preceding Fiscal Year approved in the Annual Budget; plus 
(3) any other amounts due under the Bond Documents or any other documentation relating to 
a Permitted Mortgage. 

"“Applicable Laws" —” means all present and future laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, 
codes, resolutions and orders of any Governmental Authority, other than SUBR Regulations. 

"“Assignment of Contract Document" —Documents” means the Assignment of Contract 
Documents dated as of September 1, 2003, between the Owner and the Trustee. 

"“Award" —” means any payment or other compensation received or receivable as a 
consequence of a Taking. 

"“Bond Documents" —” means the Loan Agreement, the Permitted Mortgage, the Assignment 
of Contract Documents, the Indenture, the Credit Facility, the Management Agreement and 
other instruments executed by Owner in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, all as 
amended and supplemented from time to time. 
"“Bonds" —” shall mean the Issuer'sLouisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Community 

Development Authority Revenue Bonds, (Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C. Project), Series 2003A and Series 
2003B (the "“2003 Bonds"”) and all additional bonds issued under the Indenture. 



 9 
4817-3242-4119.2  

"Business Day" — means a day excluding Saturday, Sunday and any Holiday. "Campus" —“Campus” means the 
main campus of SUBR in Baton Rouge, Louisiana. 

"“Campus Occupancy Report" —” means a report of the information, projections or estimates of on-campus 
or other SUBR-sponsored housing prepared by SUBR. 

"Commencement of Construction" — means the date on which foundation work for the 
Facilities is begun, following issuance of a foundation permit by the applicable Governmental 
Authority. 
"“Committee" —” means the Board of Managers of the Owner. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 3 

"Construction Contract" — means the AIA Construction Contract dated September 23, 
2003, by and between Owner, as Owner, and General Contractor, as contractor. 

"Construction Deliverables" — means, with respect to any construction or repairs of the 
Facilities or any procurement and installation of initial Facility Equipment, (i) two (2) sets of final 
as-built plans, specifications, electrical and plumbing schematics, working drawings and change 
orders; (ii) two (2) sets of all operating and safety manuals; (iii) the original certificates of 
occupancy and all other final inspections and permits and all operating licenses or permits required 
by Applicable Laws, and (iv) all suppliers', manufacturers' and other contractors' and 
subcontractors' warranties and guaranties. 

"“Credit Facility" — means, initially, the policy of municipal bond insurance issued by the Initial Enhancement 
Provider in favor of the Trustee, and thereafter "Credit Facility" shall mean any other” means any policy of municipal 
bond insurance and any letter of credit issued to secure any Bonds or any other indebtedness secured by a Permitted 
Mortgage, and any amendments and extensions thereof. 

"“Data/Voice System" —” means data and voice communication systems in the Project, including telephone, 
cable television and internet service, comparable to and compatible with the data and voice communications systems 
provided to other SUBR facilities, and using the switches, routers and hubs maintained by SUBR on the Campus 
unless otherwise approved by SUBR. 

"Date of Opening" — means the date the Facilities are opened for occupancy by Tenants 
after the Facilities and initial Facility Equipment have been Substantially Completed. 
"“Deposits" —” means any security deposit, damage deposit, pet deposit or fee or charge payable by any 

Tenant as security for his or her obligations under any Housing Contract. 

"Developer" — means Educational Development Company of America, L.L.C., a Texas 
limited liability company. 

"Development Agreement" — means the Development and Project Management Contract 
between Owner and Developer for the development of the Project, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as EXHIBIT "D". 

"Director of Housing" — means the Director of Housing at SUBR. 
"“Effective Date" —” means the effective date of this Agreement as set forth in the introductory paragraph 

hereof. 



 10 
4817-3242-4119.2  

"“Eligible Residents" —” means the following categories of residents, listed in order of priority: (1) Postpost 
baccalaureate and married students of SUBR; 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 4(2) , (2) faculty members of SUBR who are residing in 
the Facilities in connection with an established program of SUBR to provide enhanced 
educational benefits to students of SUBR; and(3) (3) key personnel employed in the 
management or maintenance of the Facilities, whose availability at the Facilities during non-
working hours is deemed by Owner to be beneficial to its ability to operate and maintain the 
Facilities. 

"“Enhancement ,Provider" —” means the Initial Enhancement Provider or a banking 
institution or nationally recognized insurer of municipal bonds which provides a Credit Facility 
for the benefit of the Holders (as defined in the Indenture) of the Bonds or any party succeeding 
to the Administrative Rights (as such term is defined in the Indenture) of an Enhancement 
Provider as provided in Section 302(e) of the Indenture. 

“Expiration Date” means the scheduled expiration date of the Term of this Agreement. 

"“Event of Default" —” means any matter identified as an event of default under 
Section 10.1.8. 

"Expiration Date" — means the scheduled expiration date of the Term of this Agreement. 

"“Facilities" —” means all improvements constructed or to be constructed on the Land, including the 
complex of 15 buildings constructed or to be constructed on the Owned Land which include two hundred seventy-

six (276) apartment units and a clubhouse and approximately four hundred and fifty parking spaces (450) and 
certain drainage facilities constructed or to be constructed on the Owned Land or the Servitude, the 

DatalloiceData/Voice System and related facilities for use by Tenants as permitted under this Agreement. 
"“Facility Equipment" —” means all fixtures, furnishings, equipment, machinery and other personal property 

of Owner installed and used in connection with the operation of the Premises which are not permanently affixed to 
the Facilities. The initial Facility Equipment to be installed by Owner prior to the Date of Opening is more fully described 
in the Plans and Specifications. 

"“Fall Semester" —” means, with respect to any fall academic term of SUBR, such fall academic term 
commencing during the month of August of each year and ending during the month of December of such year. 



 11 
4817-3242-4119.2  

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 of each calendar year during the term and ending on 
June 30 of the following calendar year. 

"“Force Majeure" —” means any (a) Act of God, landslide, lightning, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, 
blizzard and other unusual or unseasonably adverse and inclement weather, fire, explosion, flood, act of a public 
enemy, war, blockade, insurrection, riot or civil disturbance; (b) labor dispute, strike, work slowdown or work 
stoppage; (c) order or judgment of any Governmental Authority or delay by any Governmental Authority to issue 
building or occupancy permits within the time frame normally required by such Governmental Authority, if not the 
result of willful or negligent action of Owner; (d) adoption of or change in any Applicable Laws after the date of 
execution of this Agreement; (e) any wrongful acts or omissions by SUBR which cause delay or other damage; or 
(f) any other similar cause or similar event beyond the reasonable control of Owner. 

"“Foreclosure" —” means a foreclosure of any Permitted Mortgage or any conveyance in lieu of foreclosure 
of any Permitted Mortgage. SUBR shall have the right to be the purchaser at any Foreclosure of any Permitted 
Mortgage. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 5 

"GAAP" — means generally accepted accounting principals consistently applied, using accrual basis 
accounting. 

"General Contractor" — means Summit Construction, Inc., the general contractor of the Facilities. 
"“Governmental Authority" —” means any and all jurisdictions, entities, courts, boards, agencies, 

commissions, offices, divisions, subdivisions, departments, bodies or authorities of any nature whatsoever of any 
governmental unit other than SUBR (federal, state, county, district, municipality, city or otherwise) whether now or 
hereafter in existence. 

"“Gross Revenues" —” means with respect to any Fiscal Year, all gross receipts of Owner from the Premises, 
computed on a cash basis and otherwise in a manner reasonably acceptable to SUBR and Owner, and as otherwise 
permitted by the Bond Documents, including all Occupancy Rentals, laundry and vending machine revenues, and 
any forfeited Deposits. 

"“Hazardous Material" —” means (a) any "“hazardous waste"” as defined by the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act of 1976 (42 U.S.C. Section 691 et seq.), as amended from time to time, and regulations promulgated 
thereunder; (b) any "“hazardous substance"” as defined by the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (42 U.S.C. Section 691 et seq.), as amended from time to time, and 
regulations promulgated thereunder; (c) polychlorinated biphenyls; (d) underground storage tanks, whether empty, 
filled or partially filled with any substance, (e) any substance the presence of which on the Owned Land is prohibited 
by any governmental requirements; and (f) any other substance which by any Applicable Law requires special 
handling or notification of any Governmental Authority in its collection, storage, treatment or disposal. 

"Holiday" — means any day which shall be a legal holiday in the State of Louisiana or a day on which 
banking institutions in the State of Louisiana are authorized or required by law to close. 

"“Housing Contract" —” means the lease or occupancy agreement between Owner and a Tenant for the rental 
of all or part of a housing unit (one (1) bed) in the Facilities, substantially in the form attached hereto as EXHIBIT 
"H".provided by the Owner or the Manager.  



 12 
4817-3242-4119.2  

"“Indenture"” means that Indenture of Trust, dated as of September 1, 2003, as amended or supplemented, 
between the Issuer and the Trustee, as trustee, as amended and supplemented from time to time. 

"HUB" — means a historically underutilized business enterprise, as certified by the State of Louisiana or 
any other Governmental Authority whose RUB certification process and standards are reasonably acceptable to 
SUBR. 

"Independent Professional" — means any architect, engineer or consultant selected and retained by SUBR 
to inspect the Facilities or Facility Equipment on behalf of SUBR. 

"Initial Enhancement Provider" — means ACA Financial Guaranty Corporation. "Initial 

Manager" — means Campus Advantage, Inc., a Texas corporation. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 6 

"“Institutional Investor" —” means (a) any one or more of the following which has, either individually or in 
the aggregate, assets of $10,000,000.00 or more or is a subsidiary of or under common control with any 
such entity:(i)  (i) any bank, savings and loan association, -trust company or savings bank, whether 
chartered by a state or the United States;(ii)  (ii) any insurance company organized under the laws of any 
state or the United States;(iii)  (iii) any real estate investment trust; or(iv)  (iv) any pension, retirement or 
welfare fund or trust supervised by a governmental authority of any state or the United States or any such 
fund or trust administered by an entity which is supervised by a governmental authority; or (b)  a trustee 
acting on behalf of owners of bonds, debentures or other investment securities. 

"Issuer" means the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Community 
Development Authority. 

"“Land"” means the Owned Land and the Servitude. 

"Loan Agreement" means the Loan Agreement between the Issuer and the Owner dated January 1, 
2003. 

"Management Agreement" — means the Management Agreement between Owner and 
Manager for the operation and management of the Premises, substantially in the form attached hereto as 
EXHIBIT "F". 

"Manager" — means Campus Advantage, Inc. or another Person approved by Owner, and the 
Enhancement Provider, if applicable, and the Enhancement Provider, if appropriate. 

"Marketing Agreement or Agreement" — means this Marketing Agreement by and 
between SUBR with the consent and approval of the Southern University System and the Owner, as the same 
may be amended, supplemented, restated or replaced from time to time. 

"Member" means, initially, Student Housing of America, Inc., and thereafter, the member 
of the Owner identified in Owner's Articles of Organization and Operating Agreement as from time to time 
amended. 

"“Minimum Occupancy" —” means occupancy of the Facilities based on signed leases of ninety-five percent 
(95%). 



 13 
4817-3242-4119.2  

"“Net Cash Flow" —” means, with respect to any Fiscal Year, Gross Revenues minus Annual Expenses for 
such Fiscal Year. 

Sn. University/Marketing Agreement 7 

"Occupants" — means Eligible Residents, other students of SUBR, and, to the extent 
approved by tax counsel to the Member as not being inconsistent with the Member's 501(c)(3) 
status, another institution of higher learning. 
"“Occupancy Rentals" —” means all rentals and fees paid by Occupants to occupy housing at the Facilities 

pursuant to the payment provisions of any Housing Contracts or other leases or occupancy agreements, but excluding 
any Deposits required thereunder. 

“Occupants” means Eligible Residents, other students of SUBR, and, to the extent approved by tax counsel 
to the Member as not being inconsistent with the Members 501(c)(3) status, another institution of higher learning. 

"“Operating Expenses" —” means all costs (subject to the limitations set forth below and as set forth in the 
Bond. Documents) that Owner incurs in any Fiscal Year or portion thereof after the initial Facilities and Facility 
Equipment are Substantially Complete, in connection with the leasing, operation, maintenance, repair, replacement, 
and security of the Project, reasonably determined to be expense items rather than capital items in accordance with 
GAAP, including the following costs: (A) the cost of all water, sewer, gas and other utilities other than costs for 
telephone, electricity, and cable television payable directly by Tenants; (B) the cost of all insurance required 
hereunder; (C) the cost of repairs, replacements, and general maintenance of the Facilities or Facility Equipment; 
(D) the cost of service or maintenance contracts with independent contractors for the operation, maintenance, repair, 
replacement, or security of the Buildingbuilding (including alarm service, window cleaning, and elevator 
maintenance); (E) Taxes; (F) any lease payments made by Owner under any equipment leases permitted hereunder 
for any Facility Equipment; excluding, however, any costs, payments or disbursements that constitute capital 
expenditures under any equipment leases permitted hereunder; and (G) the Costcost to operate the Data/Voice 
System. Operating expenses shall not include depreciation or amortization or fees payable under the Oversight 
Consulting Agreement. 

"“Oversight Consultant" —” means Student Housing of America, Inc., a Georgia non-profit corporation, and 
its permitted assigns, including without limitation RHA Consulting and Management Services, Inc. in the event that 
the Oversight Consulting Agreement should be assigned to that entity. 

"“Oversight Consulting Agreement" —” means the Oversight Consulting Agreement entered into between 
the Owner and the Oversight Consultant substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "I". 

"“Owned Land" —” means the tract of approximately 7.922 acres of land, more particularly described on 
EXHIBIT "A-1" attached heretoin the Permitted Mortgage. 

"“Owner" —” means Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C., a Louisiana limited liability company. 

"“Owner'’s Interest" —” means Owner'’s fee simple title to the Owned Land and the improvements thereon 
and Owner'’s interest in the Servitude and improvements thereon (all subject to Permitted Encumbrances) and 
Owner'’s interest in this Marketing Agreement. 

"“Permitted Assignee" —” means (a) any Permitted Mortgagee, any purchaser at a Foreclosure, or any other 
Person selected by a Permitted Mortgagee subsequent to a Foreclosure of a Permitted Mortgage, (b) any Affiliate of 



 14 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Owner or (c) any non-profit corporation approved by SUBR in its reasonable discretion and which has been formed 
for the purpose of serving as 

So. University/Marketing Agreement S Owner hereunder and which has received a Letter of 
Determination issued by the Internal Revenue Service to confirm its status as an entity 
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

"“Permitted Encumbrances" —” means those easements, rights of way, restrictions and other 
matters affecting title to the Owned Land as of the Effective Date, as set forth in EXHIBIT 
"B" attached heretothe Permitted Mortgage. 
"“Permitted Mortgage" —” means the Mortgage and Assignment of Rents and Leases, of even date herewith, 

from the Owner for the benefit of the Trustee and its assignees, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, and 
any other mortgage or security interest issued to secure the Bonds or any permitted refunding thereof or any Credit 
Facility therefor. 

"“Permitted Mortgagee" —” means, initially, the Trustee and the Initial Enhancement Provider, and thereafter 
any holder of or indenture trustee for the debt secured by a Permitted Mortgage or beneficiary of the Permitted 
Mortgage that is either an Institutional Investor, an Enhancement Provider, a bank or trust company duly authorized 
to exercise trust powers in Louisiana (in the case of any such indenture trustee), any other Person approved by SUBR, 
or a transferee claiming by, through or under either of the foregoing, including, but not limited to, an entity created 
by the Permitted Mortgage to claim any and all rights of the Owner hereunder as a result of foreclosure or assignment 
under the Permitted Mortgage. 

"“Person" —” means an individual;, a trust;, an estate;, a Governmental Authority;, or a partnership, joint 
venture, corporation, limited liability company, company, firm or any other entity whatsoever. ' 

"Plans and Specifications" — means the final plans, specifications and working drawings 
approved by SUBR and Owner prior to the Effective Date for the construction of the Facilities 
and the procurement and installation of the initial Facility Equipment, as listed in the approval by 
SUBR which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT "C", as the same may be amended from time to time 
as permitted in Section 4.1. The Plans and Specifications shall include specifications provided by 
or acceptable to SUBR for all cabling and wiring in the Facilities necessary to provide the 
Data/Voice System. 
"“Premises" —” means, collectively, the Owned Land and the Facilities, and the leasehold interest of the 

Owner in the Servitude and any improvements located thereon, provided, however, that with respect to any provision 
hereof relating to the remedy or clean-up of environmental conditions on the Premises or compliance with 
environmental laws or Hazardous Materials detection, the term "“Premises"” shall be deemed to exclude the 
Servitude. 

"“Project" —” means, collectively, the Land, Facilities and Facilities Equipment for the 324 unit, 576 bed 
student housing facility located on the Owned Land, to be known as the Palisades or such other name as may be 
mutually agreed upon by SUBR and Owner during the Term of this Agreement, and the Owner'’s leasehold interest 
in the Servitude and the improvements located or to be located thereon, which are contemplated to be limited to 
drainage and parking facilities. 



 15 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement 9 

"“Reserve Amounts" —” means the amounts required to be established and funded pursuant to 
documents evidencing any loan or otherwise for debt service, operating and capital reserves, 
including without limitation any repair and replacement fund. 

"“Semester"”/"”Semesters" —” means the Fall Semester, Spring Semester and Summer Session, collectively 
referred to herein as Semesters and individually referred to herein as a Semester. 

"“Servitude" —” means the parking and drainage servitude in favor of the Owner encumbering a tract of 
approximately 4.002 acres of land, more particularly described on EXHIBIT "A-2" attached hereto. 

"“Spring Semester" —” means, with respect to any spring academic term of SUBR, such spring academic 
term commencing during the month of January of each year and ending during the month of May of such year. 

"“Student Center" —” means the building or room(s) and related facilities located on Campus and designated 
by SUBR from time to time as the student center for use by SUBR students as a lounge, central gathering place and 
other student activities permitted under SUBR Regulations. 

"“SUBR" —” means Southern University and A & M College at Baton Rouge and Southern University Law 
Center. 

"“SUBR Regulations" —” means all present and future rules, policies, procedures and regulations of SUBR 
pertaining to SUBR-sponsored student housing, SUBR facilities and property and student academic/social standing, 
behavior or conduct, including SUBR'’s Student Code of Conduct, as amended from time to time, and all other 
regulations as set forth in SUBR'’s publications or otherwise disseminated as official SUBR rules or policies 
pertaining to such matters; provided, however, such regulations shall not apply in a discriminatory fashion to the 
Project as opposed to other student housing, and shall not materially adversely affect the financial operations of the 
Owner. Owner shall have the right to dispute the applicability of any SUBR Regulation to the Project pursuant to 
the dispute resolution process described in Article 19 hereof. 

"“SUBR Representative" —” means one or more of the Persons designated and authorized in writing from 
time to time by SUBR to represent SUBR in exercising SUBR'’s rights and performing SUBR'’s obligations under 
this Agreement. The initial SUBR Representative shall be Dr. Edward R. Jackson,the Chancellor of SUBR. 

"“SUBR Sponsored Housing" —” means any apartment or dormitory style housing which SUBR has 
approved for use by SUBR students, faculty or staff, excluding student housing which is on Campus (regardless of 
who operates such on -Campus student housing, and regardless of whether it is leased to a third party or constructed 
by a third party on a portion of the Campus ground- leased to it). 

"Substantially Completed" — means Developer and the General Contractor have signed 
and issued to SUBR a certificate of completion for the Project confirming that (a) construction 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 10 



 16 
4817-3242-4119.2  

and installation of the Facilities and Facility Equipment on the Land have been substantially 
completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and all Applicable Laws, subject only 
to minor punchlist items that do not materially interfere with the use of the Project for its intended 
use and that can reasonably be completed within two (2) weeks after the date of such certificate; 
(b) all utilities are connected and services are being furnished to the Facilities; (c) pedestrian and 
vehicular access to the Facilities are available in accordance with the Plans and Specifications; 
(d) all final inspections have been made and all final certificates, licenses and approvals required 
under Applicable Laws have been issued by applicable Governmental Authorities; provided, 
however, that SUBR's Representative shall have the right, prior to the issuance of such certificate 
of completion, to perform a final walkthrough of the Project with Owner, Developer and the 
General Contractor and to participate in the preparation of the punchlist of items to be completed 
and the determination of the time period for completion of such items. 
"“Summer Session" —” means with respect to any summer academic term of SUBR, such summer academic 

term commencing during the month of June of each year and ending during the month of August of such year. 

"“Taking"• —” means the acquisition, by condemnation, eminent domain or similar proceeding or by any 
sale or lien thereof, by or at the direction of any Governmental Authority or other Person with the power of eminent 
domain. 

"“Taxes" —” means all federal, state and local ad valorem or property taxes, general assessments, special 
assessments, personal property taxes, sales taxes, use taxes, rental taxes, excises levies, license and permit fees of 
any kind (other than permits needed for the construction of the Facilities) and other similar charges which are levied, 
assessed or imposed on or with respect to the Project or any Occupancy Rentals therefrom, and all taxes or similar 
charges imposed in substitution for any of the foregoing, excluding, however, income taxes and franchise taxes 
payable by Owner, Developer or Manager. 

" 
“Tenants” means Occupants who have entered into Housing Contracts with the Owner.  

“Term" —” means the period commencing on the Effective Date hereof and ending on the first date after the 
issuance of the Series 2003 Bonds when all indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds and, all obligations of the Owner 
to the Initial Enhancement Provider and to any otherany Enhancement Providers or their successors in interest with 
respect thereto and all other amounts owed by the Owner under the Bond Documents have been fully paid. 

"Tenants" — means Occupants who have entered into Housing Contracts with the Owner. 

" 
“Trustee"” means, initially, Bank of New York Trust Company of Florida, N.A., as trustee 

 under the Indenture, and thereafter means any other trustee serving as indenture trustee under 
the Indenture or any other trust indenture securing indebtedness secured by a Permitted 
Mortgage. 

ARTICLE 2. PAYMENTS TO THE UNIVESITY 
Section 2. Referrals. 

(a) Priority Referral to Facilities. SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents to the Facilities as follows: 

(i) Each semester, SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents to the Facilities.  In  order to ensure that the 
Facilities will be fully occupied by Occupants, SUBR will not refer any Eligible Residents to any other SUBR 
Sponsored Housing Facility until (based on signed Housing Contracts) the Facilities have achieved Minimum 
Occupancy. SUBR shall notify the Eligible Residents of their referral to the Facilities by written notice in the form 
provided by the Owner or Manager.  In order to insure that the Facilities will be fully occupied by either Eligible 



 17 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Residents or other Occupants, SUBR will not refer any Eligible Residents to any SUBR Sponsored Housing Facility 
other than the Facilities for any Semester until Minimum Occupancy is obtained for that Semester. 

(ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 2, SUBR shall not be obligated to require 
any Eligible Resident to lease a unit in the Facilities. Thus, if any Eligible Resident rejects a referral to the Facilities, 
then SUBR may subsequently refer such Eligible Resident to another housing facility on or off the Campus. 

(iii) Owner shall notify SUBR each Semester when the Facilities are sufficiently occupied to achieve the 
Minimum Occupancy for the applicable Semester. During each Semester, Owner shall every 2 months notify SUBR 
of any vacancies that occur at the Facilities in order to give SUBR an indication of the number of units that will need 
to be leased for the immediately succeeding Semester. 

(b) Occupancy Rentals; Housing Contracts. Owner shall charge Occupancy Rentals to Tenants of the Facilities 
during each Fiscal Year at the rates set forth in the Annual Budget for such Fiscal Year. The Occupancy Rentals shall be 
established as shall be necessary to (i) assure maximum occupancy and use of the Facilities and the services related thereto; 
(ii) satisfy the applicable covenants contained in the Bond Documents, including the payment of the debt service on any 
debt secured by any Bond Documents, the Reserve Amounts and all other payments and charges required under the Bond 
Documents; and (iii) generate sufficient revenues for the payment of all other Annual Expenses. 

(i) Owner shall arrange for each Tenant to execute and deliver to Owner a Housing Contract. Owner 
shall be entitled to amend the form of Housing Contract from time to time, in which event Owner shall deliver the 
amended form to SUBR for its consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(ii) SUBR will have no obligation to Owner if any Tenant fails to pay the Occupancy Rentals in 
accordance with the terms of its Housing Contract. 

(iii) SUBR agrees to facilitate the assignment to Owner of the financial aid of any Occupant who is a 
student of SUBR, to pay for Occupancy Rentals, provided Owner obtains the Occupant’s written consent for the 
assignment. 

(iv) SUBR reserves the right to build, or cause to be constructed, any academic, athletic, or student 
housing on its Campus, whether owned and/or operated by SUBR or by a third party, and to assign its students to 
such facilities, subject to Section 2(a). 

(c) SUBR Promotions. 

(i) SUBR shall actively promote and market the Facilities to Eligible Residents as an integral part of the 
overall housing program of SUBR in the following ways: 

(1) Provide information regarding the Project on SUBR’s website or a link to the Owner’s and/or 
any Manager’s website regarding the Project. 

(2) Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all response mailings to prospective 
students seeking information about enrolling at SUBR. 

(3) Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all mailings to student applicants which 
notify them of their admittance to SUBR. 

(4) Provide Owner with a convenient space at no cost on the first floor of the Student Center for 
a project information booth, in a location and of a size and design mutually agreeable to the parties, and 
subject to all SUBR Regulations. 

(5) Provide Owner upon request with a list of those students who have indicated an interest in 
living in SUBR-sponsored student housing, to the extent same is reasonably available or accessible to SUBR, 



 18 
4817-3242-4119.2  

which includes to the extent available their first and last name, classification, mailing address and telephone 
number. 

(6) Allow Owner to use a reasonable number of signs, flags and banners provided by Owner on 
the Campus to market the Project. 

(7) Incorporate information about the Project in all appropriate SUBR publications. 

(8) Jointly with Owner organize an “open house” at the Project at the beginning of each Semester 
and invite all deans and faculty of SUBR. 

(9) Permit the management staff for the Project to participate in all residence staff training 
programs and other similar programs made available to the staff of other housing facilities at SUBR. 

(10) With the written approval of the referred Occupant, disburse directly to Owner the housing 
portion of such referred Occupant’s financial aid award. 

(11) Include the Project on the regularly scheduled bus route of Jag Tran, SUBR bus service. 

(12) Make reasonable efforts to support and maintain a safe environment at the Facilities. 

(13) Provide Project staff with copies of University Student Life materials, manuals, handbooks, 
policies and procedures so that maximum consistency may be provided. 

(14) Provide for and allow residents of the Project the option of utilizing the on campus meal plan 
program, counseling and on-line library services afforded to on campus residents. 

(15) Upon notification by any undergraduate students of SUBR that they do not elect to live on 
campus, SUBR shall refer them to the Facilities. 

(ii) Owner shall cooperate in promoting and marketing the Project by causing the following actions to be 
taken, all at Owner’s cost: 

(1) Prepare a housing brochure which reflects the floor plans, amenities and benefits of the 
Project. 

(2) Maintain an on-site leasing office at the Project. 

(3) Prepare color mounted renderings of the Project for use by SUBR in its promotion and 
marketing of the Project. 

(d) Campus Occupancy Reports. SUER shall use reasonable efforts to provide Owner with a report of the 
information, projections or estimates of SUBR-sponsored student housing, including the information described in this 
Section (the “Campus Occupancy Report”). The Campus Occupancy Report shall be a written report certified by the 
Director of Housing for SUBR as being true and correct and shall set forth the following: 

(i) A list of all Occupants for the applicable Semester (including a listing of the name and address of 
each occupant); 

(ii) A schedule showing the amounts of (1) the prepaid Occupancy Rentals and security deposits received 
by SUBR from all Tenants, (2) the Occupancy Rentals to be paid by the Tenants for the remainder of the applicable 
Semester, and (3) the Occupancy Rentals charged for other SUBR-sponsored student housing; and 



 19 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(iii) Such other information or documents as Owner (or the Enhancement Provider) shall reasonably 
request in order for Owner (and the Enhancement Provider) to verify the referral of Eligible Residents to the 
Facilities. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section to the contrary, SUBR shall not be obligated to 
include any of the foregoing information in a Campus Occupancy Report to the extent SUBR is precluded from 
disclosing such information by Applicable Laws. 

(e) Dedication of Project to Occupants. Owner shall offer units in the Facilities for lease only to Occupants. 
Owner shall cooperate with SUBR in marketing the Facilities to Eligible Residents. 

(f) Restriction on Other SUBR Sponsored Housing. SUBR covenants that it will not undertake or otherwise 
approve additional SUBR Sponsored Housing unless an independent consultant acceptable to the Trustee certifies that the 
Project is then at least ninety percent (90%) occupied by Occupants, and Owner has met the rate covenant set forth in Section 
8.08 of the Loan Agreement for each of the two (2) preceding fiscal years of Owner. 

Section 3. Payments to SUBR. 

(a) Section 2.1. Net Cash Flow. In consideration for the obligations and responsibilities of SUBR contained 
herein, SUBR shall receive, so long as the Indenture is in effect, all funds payable to SUBR from the Surplus Fund pursuant 
to Section 509 of the Indenture at the times and subject to the conditions stated therein. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 11 

Section 2.2. Replacement Reserve. During the Term, Owner will, subject to and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, monthly place in a separate account the 
monthly Replacement Reserve set out in the Annual Budget and in accordance with the 
Indenture. Except as otherwise set forth in the Indenture, such fund shall be used solely for 
scheduled capital repairs to the Facilities or Facility Equipment. 

ARTICLE 3. USE OF PREMISES 
Section 4. Use of Premises. 

(a) Section 3.1. Purpose of Marketing Agreement.  In consideration for the obligations and responsibilities of 
SUBR contained herein, Owner agrees that the Premises shall be used by Owner only for the purpose of developing and 
constructing the Facilities and procuring and installing the Facility Equipment in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, 
and thereafter leasing, operating, maintaining, repairing and replacing the Project to provide SUBR Sponsored Housing for 
Occupants in accordance with this Agreement, all Applicable Laws and all SUBR Regulations. Except as otherwise provided 
herein, the Owner shall not use the Project for any other purpose. Owner shall not cause or permit any waste of the Land, 
Facilities or Facility Equipment, or any public or private nuisance or illegal activities on the Premises. Owner shall at all 
times enforce the Construction Contract, Development Agreement, any Management Agreement and all Housing Contracts 
in accordance with the terms thereof.  

(b) Section 3.2. Benefit of SUBR.  Subject to Section 9.5,2(e), Owner shall lease and hold the Project for the 
support, maintenance or benefit of SUBR and Occupants, and the Project shall be leased for a purpose related to the 
performance of the public and school purposes, duties and functions of SUBR, specifically student housing, and subject to 
SUBR Regulations.  

(c) Section 3.3. Conveyance of Project. Upon the last to occur of (ai) payment in full or defeasance of all of the 
Bonds and payment of all obligations of the Owner to the Initial Enhancement Provider and any otherany Enhancement 



 20 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Providers and (bii) the expiration or termination of this Agreement, however such expiration or termination may be brought 
about, Owner shall, at the sole discretion of SUBR, convey the Project in good working order and in a clean, safe and 
habitable condition, ordinary wear and tear, damage by a Taking or insured casualty excepted (subject to the terms hereof), 
(aA) to SUBR, provided it is elects in writing to accept such conveyance, (bB) if SUBR does not elect in writing to accept 
such conveyance, to Southern University System Foundation, Inc., provided that it elects in writing to accept such 
conveyance, and (cCc) if neither SUBR nor such foundation elect in writing to accept such conveyance, to any organization 
described in Section 170(c)(1) or (2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which is designated as the recipient 
of such conveyance, by SUBR and which is willing to accept such conveyance. If either SUBR or such foundation do not 
elect in writing to accept such conveyance within ninety (90) days of being notified by the Borrower that the Borrower is 
required to make such conveyance to the notified party hereunder provided that the notified party elects to accept it, such 
notified party'’s right to elect to accept such conveyance shall terminate. Owner shall pay over to the party to whom it 
conveys the Project as aforesaid an amount equal to the aggregate amount of Deposits with respect to all Housing Contracts 
then in effect, and Owner shall cause the Manager to cooperate with such party in the orderly transition of all management 
and accounting matters. The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

Section 5. So. University/Marketing Agreement 12Maintenance, Repairs, Casualty Damage.   

ARTICLE 4. CONSTRUCTION 

Section 4.1. Owner to Pay Costs. Owner will develop and construct the Facilities and 
procure and install the Facility Equipment on the Land at its own cost and expense. SUBR shall 
not have any financial obligation or other obligation of any kind under this Marketing Agreement 
except as specifically set forth herein. Owner will cause the development and the construction of 
the Facilities and the installation of the Facility Equipment to be Substantially Completed by 
August 1, 2004. 

A. ' Prior to Commencement of Construction, Owner shall deliver to SUBR 
Representative, (1) a copy of the signed Development Agreement, (2) a copy of 
the signed Construction Contract, and (3) a copy of the payment and performance 
bonds in an amount equal to the contract price set forth in the Construction 
Contract. 

B. Owner shall engage the General Contractor, which shall furnish all supervision, 
tools, implements, machinery, labor, materials and accessories such as are 
necessary and proper for the construction of the Facilities and installation of 
Facility Equipment, shall pay all permit and license fees and shall construct and 
complete the Facilities and Facility Equipment in a good, substantial and 
workmanlike manner all in accordance with this Agreement, the Plans and 
Specifications and all documents executed pursuant hereto and thereto, and all 
Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations. 

C. Subject to the provisions of Section 4.1.D below, Owner shall have sole control of 
the selection of construction professionals and construction, means and methods for 
construction of the Facilities. All original construction and all subsequent, 
alteration, renovation, replacements or additions of or to the Project undertaken by 
Owner shall be in conformance with all Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations. 
Owner shall have the right to contest any such Applicable Laws or SUBR 
Regulations for reasonable grounds by ordinary and proper procedures. 



 21 
4817-3242-4119.2  

D. SUBR has previously reviewed and approved the Plans and Specifications. 
Changes in work and materials are subject to prior review and approval of the 
Independent Professional or other SUBR Representative, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld; however, minor changes in work or materials, not 
affecting the scope, quality, durability or general character of the Facilities or 
Facility Equipment may be made in the Plans and Specifications at any time by 
Owner without the approval of the Independent Professional or SUBR 
Representative. Changes in excess of $5,000 individually or $25,000 in the 
aggregate with all other changes shall not be considered as minor. Owner shall 
notify the Independent Professional and/or SUBR Representative of any changes 
in work or materials that require the Independent Professional's or SUBR 
Representative's approval and if either fail to respond within five (5) business days 
after receipt of Owner's notice, it shall be deemed that the Independent Professional 
or SUBR Representative, as the case may be, has approved any such change. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 13 

E. After the Facilities and initial Facility Equipment have been Substantially 
Completed, at least sixty (60) days prior to undertaking any structural alteration, 
renovation, remodeling or capital repairs or replacements of the Facilities during 
the Term, Owner shall submit plans (including the estimated budget and 
construction schedule) for such work to the SUBR Representative. The SUBR 
Representative shall either approve, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, or disapprove any such plans within thirty (30) days after receipt of such 
plans from Owner. If the SUBR Representative fails to respond within such thirty 
(30) day period, it shall be deemed that approval has been given for any such work. 
Upon receipt of such approval, Owner shall promptly commence and then diligently 
proceed with such work until Substantially Completed in according with such 
approved plans, all Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations. 

F. Owner shall, or shall require the Developer to, upon written request of SUBR, 
make, in such detail as may reasonably be required, and forward to SUBR, reports 
in writing as to the actual progress of the construction of the Facilities. During such 
period, the construction work shall be subject to inspection by the Independent 
Professional and by authorized personnel of SUBR in order to verify reports of 
construction, determine compliance with Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations, 
determine compliance with the Plans and Specifications or subsequently any other 
approved plans, or such other inspections as may be necessary in the reasonable 
opinion of the SUBR Representative. 

G. Before erecting or placing any sign upon the Premises, Owner shall submit the 
design and specifications of such sign to the SUBR Representative for approval, 
which approval shall not be withheld if such signage is consistent with SUBR's 
current signage policy or such signage was included in the Plans and 
Specifications. 

H. Within fifteen (15) days after any construction, repair, renovation or replacement 
of the Facilities and/or Facility Equipment is Substantially Completed, Owner will 



 22 
4817-3242-4119.2  

deliver to SUBR's Representative all Construction Deliverables relating to such 
work. 

Section 4.2. Personal Property. All Facility Equipment shall be owned by and remain the 
property of Owner; with SUBR's prior approval, Owner shall have the right to lease certain 
Facility Equipment from time to time. The Facility Equipment will be provided to Tenants as part 
of the Occupancy Rental, and there will not be additional rent paid by the Tenants for the Facility 
Equipment. The Owner may require the Tenants to pay for any services required to utilize intemet 
service, local and long distance telephone and cable television service. 

Section 4.3. Architectural and Design Considerations. SUBR has reviewed and approved 
the layout and general character and appearance of the Facilities, which the Owner represents and 
warrants conform to the provisions of this Section 4.3. The Facilities shall consist of student 
housing which shall be durable and aesthetically pleasing. Sources of exterior noise shall be 
minimized wherever reasonably possible, and the housing designed and sited so that sound is not 
created nor directly transmitted from one unit to another by proximity of the units. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 14 

The Facilities, including all walkways and parking lots, and all Facility Equipment shall be 
designed and constructed or procured and installed in compliance with applicable portions of (i) 
the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1992, as amended and (ii) any other Applicable Laws 
relating to handicapped access, architectural barriers and the like. All Facility Equipment and all 
other fixtures, supplies and materials used in construction shall be new, and all mechanical 
components for each mechanical system (i.e., heating system, interior components of air 
conditioning system, exterior components of air conditioning system, etc.) shall be from a single 
vendor. All changes in exterior materials and colors from those set forth in the Plans and 
Specifications are subject to the approval of SUBR, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. All exterior lighting shall be of the type and sited so as to provide adequate light for 
security purposes with minimal lighting spillover into housing windows. Waste disposal areas shall 
be located on the Land, be easily accessible to a collection vehicle and the Tenants and must be 
adequately screened. Transformer or other utility boxes or meters which are placed in landscape 
areas or on other areas within the Premises shall be screened by use of building enclosures, 
landscaping or a combination thereof. All exterior signage shall conform to SUBR Regulations 
and all other design standards of SUBR and shall be subject to the approval of SUBR, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Landscaping shall create a pleasing and functional 
outdoor living environment. All parking lots and access roads to the Facilities shall meet or exceed 
requirements of the codes and ordinances of Baton Rouge, Louisiana. A perimeter fence with 
locking gates shall be installed around the Facilities. Any changes to the aforementioned 
requirements, whether as a result of the initial construction, any reconstruction or maintenance 
thereof, shall be subject to the prior written approval of SUBR. 

ARTICLE 5. MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS, CASUALTY DAMAGE 
(a) Section 5.1. Repairs. Throughout the Term of this Agreement, Owner shall keep and maintain, or cause to be 

kept and maintained, the Premises and all Facility Equipment located thereon in a good state of repair, in a clean and 
attractive condition and in compliance with all Applicable Laws and SUBR Regulations, damage caused by casualty, 
condemnation and Force Majeure excepted (subject to Owner'’s compliance with the terms of this Agreement relating to 
Force Majeure). All mechanical equipment shall be maintained in accordance with manufacturers'’ recommended 
maintenance requirements, and preventative maintenance and repair to all HVAC related systems shall be performed by 



 23 
4817-3242-4119.2  

manufacturers'’ certified personnel. The Premises shall be maintained free of litter and trash and shall comply with all 
Applicable Laws. All parking lots shall be kept clean, and all fire lanes, handicapped access and parking spaces shall be 
regularly striped. L Landscaping will be maintained in good and live condition throughout the Term of this Agreeme
 11Agreement.  SUBR shall have the right at reasonable times to make reasonable inspections of the Project 
1 during normal business hours with prior notice to Owner and Manager and make recommendations as to proper 
maintenance of the Project.  

(b) Section 5.2. Renovations. Owner shall have the right at any time and from time to time to do such alterations, 
renovations, repairs or replacements to any portion of the Facilities and/or the Facility Equipment as Owner determines is 
reasonably necessary in order to comply with the requirements of the Bond Documents, any Permitted Mortgage, this 
Marketing Agreement or the Management Agreement, subject to the prior approval of SUERSUBR and the Enhancement 
Provider, if applicable, for major alterations, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 15 

Section 5.3. Damage from Casualties. Subject to the other terms of this Agreement, 
the Bond Documents and any Permitted Mortgage, in the event any portion of the Project is 
damaged by fire or otherwise, regardless of the extent of such damage or destruction, as soon 
as practicable thereafter, Owner shall arrange for all affected Tenants to receive a refund of a 
pro rata portion of paid Occupancy Rental pursuant to such Persons'’ Housing Contracts and 
in no event longer than ninety (90) days following the date of such damage or destruction, 
Owner shall commence the work of repair, reconstruction or replacement of the damaged or 
destroyed portions of the Project and prosecute the same with reasonable diligence until the 
same is Substantially Completedsubstantially completed, so that the Facilities shall be restored 
to substantially the same size, function and value (without regard to physical depreciation) as 
the Facilities existing prior to the damage. All or any portion of the insurance proceeds 
payable as a consequence of a casualty affectiaffecting the Facilities shall be deposited and 
disbursed in accordance with such loan documents or contractual agreements with Owner 
pending the completion of repairs to the Facilities. If the proceeds available under the 
insurance required hereunder (or which would be available if such insurance were provided) 
are insufficient, in the reasonable judgment of Owner, to permit restoration in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement, or if payment of the insurance proceeds is contested or not 
settled promptly for any reason, then SUERSUBR shall grant an appropriate extension of the 
time for commencing repairs to allow Owner to obtain reasonable replacement financing or 
to obtain the insurance proceeds. If Owner shall in good faith be unable to (a) obtain 
reasonable replacement financing to restore the Project to substantially the same size, function 
and value as the Facilities existing prior to the damage or (b) obtain the insurance proceeds 
then Owner may terminate this Marketing Agreement by written notice to SUBR. In the event 
of termination under this Section 5.3,, this Agreement shall terminate ten (10) days after the 
date of such notice with the same force and effect as if such date were the date herein fixed 
for the expiration of the Term; provided, however, that subject to payment in full of all of the 
Bonds and all obligations to any Enhancement Provider (i) all remaining insurance proceeds 
and any undisbursed Gross Revenues on the date on which title to the Project is required to 
be conveyed to SUBR pursuant to Section 3.3 hereof shall be promptly paid to SUERSUBR. 

ARTICLE 6. OPERATION AND MANAGEMENT OF FACILITIES 



 24 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Section 6. Operation and Management of Facilities. 

(a) Section 6.1. Management Agreements. Owner shall be responsible for the leasing, management, operation 
and maintenance of the Land and Project in accordance with this Marketing Agreement, all Applicable Laws and SUBR 
Regulations without cost or expense to SUBR. Owner shall have the right to delegate some or all of such responsibilities to 
a Manager approved by SUERSUBR by entering into a_1SL Jia_wement Management Agreement. SUBR has approved the 
Initial Manager. Owner shall require the Manager at all times to keep in effect all real estate, operating and other licenses or 
permits required by Applicable Laws. 

(b) Section 6.2. Books and Records. Owner shall keep, or cause to be kept, accurate, full and complete books 
and accounts showing exclusively its assets and liabilities and all operations, transactions and the financial condition of the 
Project. All financial statements shall be accurate in all material respects, shall present fairly the financial position and 
results of the Project'’s operations and shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP. Owner and the Manager shall determine 
methods to be used in the preparation of financial statements, in connection with all items of income and expense including, 
but not limited to, valuation of assets, the method or 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 16 methods of depreciation, elections, credits and accounting 
procedures. The books, accounts and records of Owner and the Project shall be maintained at 
the principal office of Owner or of the Oversight Consultant. 

(c) Section 6.3. Audits. SUBR may, at its option and at its own expense with reasonable notice to Owner and 
Manager and during customary business hours, conduct or cause to be conducted internal audits of the books, records and 
accounts of Owner, Manager and the Project. Audits may be made on either a continuous or a periodic basis or both and 
may be conducted by employees of or independent auditors retained by SUBR or any Governmental Authority regulating 
SUBR. All such audits shall be conducted without materially or unreasonably interrupting or interfering with the normal 
conduct of business affairs by Owner and the Oversight Consultant. SUBR covenants with Owner to keep the results of any 
such audits confidential, except as required by SUBR Regulations and by Applicable Law. Owner shall cause annual audits 
to be conducted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond Documents. 

(d) Section 6.4. Committee. The Committee shall have responsibility for the following: 

(i) A. Issues including the approval of the Annual Budget, successors to the Initial Manager, and approval 
of the policies and operating procedures governing the Project. 

(ii) B. After the initial construction of the Project is Substantially Completed, theThe Manager will operate 
the Project in conformity with the Annual Budgets. A draft annual budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year, including 
recommendations for Occupancy Rental rates and any estimated capital expenditures for the Project for which 
accumulated Replacement Reserve funds would be needed during such Fiscal Year, will be prepared and submitted 
by the Manager to the Committee not later than May 1 each year for approval by the Committee by June 1 each 
year for the upcoming Fiscal Year. Each Annual Budget will be in such detail as the Committee may reasonably 
require. If at any time during ana Fiscal Year Owner reasonably believes that the amounts set forth in an Annual 
Budget require adjustment, the Manager must submit a revised Annual Budget to the Committee for approval in 
accordance with this Section; provided, however, that no such adjustments shall result in any increase in Occupancy 
Rentals under any Housing Contracts already in effect at the time of such adjustment. 

(iii) C. If the Committee is unable in good faith after using commercially reasonable efforts to reach a 
decision regarding an Annual Budget (including the Occupancy Rentals), then Owner shall operate pursuant to the 
Annual Budget for the previous Fiscal Year for any line item of the Annual Budget in dispute. 



 25 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(iv) D. The Committee may, by resolution, delegate its powers, but not its responsibilities, to employees 
of either SUBR or Owner or to any other Person, to the extent permitted by law. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 17 

E. All actions of the Committee shall be subject to satisfaction and conformity with 
the applicable covenants contained in any Loan Agreement orthe Bond 
Documents. 

(e) Section 6.5. Utilities. Owner shall pay or cause to be paid, before the same become delinquent, all Operating 
Expenses, including any initial connection fees for water, electricity, sewer and any other utilities used on the Premises 
throughout the Term. Owner shall provide, at its expense, all off-site utilities to the perimeter of the Owned Land in sufficient 
capacity to serve the Project. Payments made by Owner pursuant to this Section 6.56(e) shall be paid as Annual Expenses 
under the Annual Budget for the Project. 

(f) Section 6.6. Payment of Taxes. Owner shall pay all Taxes before the same become delinquent, as a portion 
of Operating Expenses, and upon request by SUBR Owner shall provide SUBR evidence of such payment to the appropriate 
collecting authorities. Owner may pay the Taxes in installments if payment may be so made without penalty other than the 
payment of interest. The obligations of Owner to pay Taxes under this Section 6.66(f) shall apply only to the extent that 
Owner and the Project are not exempt from paying such Taxes and to the extent that such Taxes are not otherwise abated. 
Owner shall at all times pay, and cause the Developer and Manager to pay, before the same become delinquent, all income 
taxes and franchise taxes due and owing by such Person. 

(g) Section 6.7. Contested Tax Payments. Owner shall not be required to pay, discharge or remove any Taxes so 
long as Owner is contesting the amount or validity thereof by appropriate proceedings which shall operate to prevent or stay 
the collection of the amount so contested. Owner hereby agrees to indemnify and save SUBR harmless from all liability for 
damages occasioned thereby and shall, in the event of a judgment of foreclosure on any lien arising in respect to such 
contested amounts which are Owner'’s responsibility, cause the same to be discharged and removed prior to the execution 
of such judgment. SUBR shall cooperate with Owner in completing such contest and SUBR shall have no right to pay the 
amount contested during the contest. Upon the termination of such proceeding, Owner shall deliver to SUBR proof of the 
amount due as finally determined and proof of payment thereof. SUBR, at Owner'’s expense, shall join in any such 
proceeding if any law shall so require. 

(h) Section 6.8. Additional Operational Provisions. Owner shall cause the Manager to contract on behalf of the 
Project exclusively with SUBR for the Data/Voice System services, including telephone, cable television and computer 
systems services. The charges to Tenants for telephone and cable television shall not exceed the charges for such services 
at other SUBR sponsored student housing. If SUBR fails, within sixty (60) days after the execution of this Agreement, to 
commit in writing to detailed arrangements reasonably acceptable to Owner to provide the Data/Voice System services at 
rates equal to or less than those available to Manager directly from the carriers or other providers of such services, then 
Manager will be permitted to contract for such Data/Voice System services from sources other than SUBR. 

(i) A. SUERSUBR shall have the right, at its option, to make or cause to be made annual  inspections 
of the Project to ascertain the quality of maintenance provided by Owner. Upon any such inspection, SUBR shall 
notify Owner of all items of repair or replacement deemed reasonably necessary to maintain the Project in a clean, 
safe and presentable condition and in good working order. SUBR shall 



 26 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement 18 provide a copy of such notice to each Permitted 
Mortgagee entitled to notices under this Agreement. Upon receipt of such notice, 
Owner shall make or cause to be made, within thirty (30) days after such notice 
is given, ,siichsuch corrective  maintenance or repair of the Project as reasonably 
necessary to meet  the minimum  ,standard of maintenance or repair of other 
SUBR sponsored student housing.  

(ii) B. Owner shall enforce the Construction Contract, the Development Agreement and the 
Management Contract, and Owner shall cause the Manager to enforce all Housing Contracts, in accordance with 
their terms and shall not agree to any material amendment thereto without SUBR'’s consent. Owner shall lease, 
manage and operate the Project in accordance with the applicable Annual Budgets. 

ARTICLE 7. INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION, SUBROGATION 
Section 7. Insurance, Indemnification, Subrogation. 

(a) Section 7.1. Indemnification by Owner. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless SUBR, the Initial 
Enhancement Provider, their trustees, officers, faculty, employees, agents, representatives and contractors, as applicable, 
from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, damages, expenses, fees, fines, penalties, suits, proceedings, actions 
and causes of action of any and every kind and nature to the extent arising, or growing out of or in any way connected with, 
directly or indirectly, the use, occupancy, leasing, management, maintenance, repair, operation or control of the Project by 
Owner, Developer, Manager or their respective members, officers, directors, employees, agents, representatives, contractors 
or subcontractors. This obligation to indemnify shall include reasonable attorneys'’ fees, costs of court, and third-party 
investigation costs and all other reasonable costs, expenses and liabilities from the first notice that any claim or demand has 
been made. 

(b) Section 7.2. SUBR Not Liable. It is expressly understood and agreed that Owner is and shall be deemed to 
be an independent contractor responsible to all parties for its respective acts or omissions and that SUBR shall in no way be 
responsible therefor. SUBR shall not be liable for any bodily injury, death or personal injury to any Persons or any loss of 
or damage to any property sustained by Owner or other Persons and caused by any act or omission of any occupant of the 
Project. 

(c) Section 7.3. Insurance. Subject to Section 15.18,15(h), Owner shall at all appropriate times maintain, with 
respect to the Project, for the duration of this Agreement and any extensions thereof, insurance issued by a company or 
companies qualified, permitted or admitted to do business in the State of Louisiana in the following types and amounts, 
which companies and the form and substance of such policies shall be subject to SUBR'’s prior approval, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld: 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 19 
TYPE 

(1) Comprehensive General (Public) 
Liability — to include coverage for 
the following, where the exposure 
exists: 

AMOUNT 

Combined Single Limit for Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage in an amount acceptable to 
the SUBR Representative, not to exceed 
$5,000,000. 

(a) Premises/Operations 
(b) Independent Contractors 
(c) Projects/Completed Operations 
(d) Personal Injury 
(e) Contractual Liability (including Owner’s liability under Section 10.1) 
(f) Explosion, collapse and under-ground property damage 



 27 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(g) Contents of the Project owned by Tenants 

(2) All Risk Property Damage Insurance 
– for coverage being for physical 
damage to Facilities and Facility 
Equipment: 

Coverage being for 100% of the replacement 
cost of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(3) Builder’s Risk Insurance – all risk of 
physical loss during term of any 
construction contract and until the 
Facilities and Facility Equipment are 
Substantially Completed: 

Coverage being for 100% of the replacement 
cost of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(4) Business Interruption Insurance.  

(a) Premises/Operations 
(b) Independent Contractors 
(c) Products/Completed Operations 
(d) Personal Injury 
(e) Contractual Liability (including Owner's liability under Section 10.1) 
(f) Explosion, collapse and under-ground property damage 
(g) Contents of the Project owned by Tenants 

(2) A l l  R i s k  P r o p e r t y  D a m a g e  C o v e r a g e  b e i n g  f o r  1 0 0 %  o f  
Insurance - for coverage being the replacement cost of the 
for physical damage to Facilities Facilities and Facility 
and Facility Equipment. Equipment. 

(3) B u i l d e r ' s  R i s k  I n s u r a n c e  -  a l l  C o v e r a g e  b e i n g  f o r  1 0 0 %  o f  
risk of physical loss during term the replacement cost of the 
of any construction contract and Facilities and Facility 
until the Facilities and Facility Equipment 
Equipment are Substantially 
Completed. 

(4) Business Interruption Insurance. 

(d) 7.4 Owner and the Initial Enhancement ProviderTrustee as Insureds. With respect to the above required 
insurance, SUBR and the Initial Enhancement ProviderTrustee shall: 

(i) A. Be named on the property insurance policy and comprehensive general liability  policy described 
above as insureds. SUBR shall promptly endorse insurance checks or otherwise release insurance proceeds, provided 
no Event of Default is continuing hereunder. SUBR shall, regardless of the existence of an Event of Default, 
promptly endorse insurance checks or otherwise'’ release insurance proceeds as required by any Bond Document(s). 

(ii) B. Be provided with thirty (30) days advance notice, in writing, of cancellation or material change in 
coverage. 

(iii) C. Be provided with a certificate evidencing the above required insurance at the time the policies are 
required to be obtained and thereafter with certificates evidencing renewals or replacements of said policies of 
insurance at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration or cancellation of any such policies. 

So- University/Marketing Agreement 20 



 28 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Section 7.5. Additional Insurance. SUBR may review Owner'’s required insurance 
coverages and limits as stated herein at the time of renewal of the said policies or at the time 
of a material change, and SUBR reserves the right to require reasonable additional limits or 
coverages. Owner shall comply with any such reasonable request by SUBR. 

(e) Section 7.6. Blanket Policies. Owner may submit any blanket general insurance policy containing the 
requirements of this Article Seven,Section 7 to SUBR for its approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

ARTICLE 8. OWNER DEFAULTS, REMEDIES 
Section 8. Defaults, Remedies. 

(a) Section 8.1. Owner Events of Default. Any one of the following events shall be deemed to be an Event of 
Default by Owner under this Agreement: 

(i) A. Owner fails to obtain and maintain any insurance required pursuant to this Agreement. 

(ii) B. Owner fails to maintain, repair, or make capital expenditures for scheduled repair and replacement 
of the Facilities or the Facility Equipment according to an annual schedule for maintenance, repair and replacement; 
provide through employees or third party contractors all work, labor and services necessary or appropriate to 
maintain and repair the Premises in accordance with the Annual Budget and Capital Budget unless otherwise 
provided herein; promptly notify SUBR upon learning that the condition of the Premises materially fails to meet any 
standard of maintenance and repair required under any Contract, Legal Requirement or Insurance Requirementcontract, 
legal requirement or insurance requirement; promptly notify SUBR upon learning of any Hazardous Materials 
detection, Casualtycasualty, or Condemnationcondemnation (or threatened Condemnationcondemnation) with respect 
to the Premises; consult with, and make recommendations to, SUBR concerning repairs or replacement after any 
Hazardous Materials detection, Casualty or Condemnationcasualty or condemnation; at the expense of the Owner, 
take such action as SUBR may reasonably determine to be necessary with respect to the maintenance, repair, 
alteration, addition or replacement of or to the Premises; at the expense of the Owner and in accordance with the 
terms of a Management Agreement approved by SUBR, execute all Contractscontracts for such maintenance, repair, 
alteration, addition, 'or replacement of or to the Premises and monitor the performance of such Contractscontracts; 
or fails to perform any other covenant or agreement, other than as described in Subsections A(i) or B(ii) of this 
Section 8.1,8(a), to be performed by Owner under the terms and provisions of this Agreement and such failure shall 
not be cured within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice from SUBR of such failure; provided that if such 
failure is of such nature that it cannot reasonably be cured during such period, then within a reasonable time after 
such notice, provided that Owner commences its curative work promptly upon receipt of such notice and continues 
such work thereafter diligently and without unnecessary delays until such failure is cured. 

(iii) C. The taking by execution of Owner'’s Interestinterest in the Project for the benefit of any Person or 
purchaser at a Foreclosure. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 21 

(iv) D. A court having jurisdiction shall enter an order for relief in any involuntary case commenced 
against Owner, as debtor, under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, as now or hereafter constituted, or the entry of a 
decree or order by a court having jurisdiction over the Premises appointing a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, 
trustee, sequestrator or other similar official of or for Owner or any substantial part of the properties of Owner or 
ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of Owner, and the continuance of any such decree or order 
unstayed and in effect for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days. 

(v) E. The commencement by Owner of a voluntary case under the Federal Bankruptcy Code, as now or 
hereafter constituted, or the consent or acquiescence by Owner to the commencement of a case under such Code or 



 29 
4817-3242-4119.2  

to the appointment of or taking possession by a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or other 
similar official of or for Owner or any substantial part of the properties of Owner. 

(vi) F. Owner fails to diligently pursue financing of the Project;G. Commencement of Construction 
has not occurred within fifteen (15) days after the closing of the financing of the Project, or the Facilities and Facility Equipment 
are not Substantially Completed by August 15, 2004, and such delays or failure to complete are caused by Owner. 

H. An event of default under the terms of the Bond Documents. Section 8.2. 

[RESERVED].  
(b) Section 8.3. SUBR'’s Remedies. Subject to the rights of a Permitted Mortgagee described in Section 8.5.18(d) 

below, upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, SUBR may at its option declare this 
Agreement and all rights and interests created by it to be terminated, may seek any and all damages occasioned by the Event 
of Default or may seek any other remedies available at law or in equity. 

(c) Section 8.4. Assignments. Except as provided in this Section 8.4,8(c), Owner shall not assign this Agreement 
or any interest in this Agreement except with SUBR'’s prior consent. Any assignment made or given without SUBR'’s 
consent, unless such consent is not required pursuant to this Section 8.4,8(c), will be null and void. The Owner shall have 
the right, without SUBR'’s prior consent, to grant the Permitted Mortgagee all of its rights and remedies under this 
Agreement. Furthermore, SUBR hereby agrees to such assignment to the Permitted Mortgagee pursuant to the terms of the 
Bond Documents. 

(d) Section 8.5.1. SUBR'’s Agreements. SUBR hereby agrees to the following for the benefit of any Permitted 
Mortgagee: 

(i) A. SUBR shall not terminate this Agreement (or Owner'’s rights hereunder) for any Event of 
Default without first advising such Permitted Mortgagee, in writing, of such Event of Default and permitting such 
Permitted Mortgagee to cure such Event of Default on behalf of Owner 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 22 within ninety (90) days after SUBR has given notice to such 
Permitted Mortgagee any Event of Default. If, during such ninety (90) day period, the 
Permitted Mortgagee takes action to cure such Event of Default but is unable, by reason of 
the nature of the default involved, to cure such failure within such period, then the Permitted 
Mortgagee, provided it promptly commenced its curative work promptly upon receipt of such 
notice and has diligently and continuously proceeded such curative work thereafter, shall have 
a reasonable time thereafter to cure the same, during which period SUBR shall not terminate 
this Agreement. Further, if any Event of Default is not cured within such period as provided 
above, and (1) the Permitted Mortgagee shall have given the notices necessary to commence 
Foreclosure of its Permitted Mortgage prior to the expiration of such period and thereafter 
Foreclosure is diligently prosecuted (unless the Permitted Mortgagee is enjoined or stayed 
from giving such notices or exercising its right of Foreclosure, in which event such cure period 
shall be extended by the period of such injunction or stay provided that such Permitted 
Mortgagee shall diligently attempt to remove any such injunction or stay), and (2) the 
purchaser or assignee at the Foreclosure has fully cured any monetary default or has promptly 
commenced to cure any non-monetary default that is not reasonably curable within thirty (30) 
days and thereafter diligently pursues completion thereof within a reasonable time thereafter 
in accordance with this Agreement, then SUBR will not terminate this Agreement because of 
the occurrence of such Event of Default. SUBR shall accept amounts paid or actions taken by 
or on behalf of any Permitted Mortgagee to cure any Event of Default during the periods 



 30 
4817-3242-4119.2  

described above. Nothing under this Section 8(8.5.1d) shall be construed to obligate a 
Permitted Mortgagee to either cure any Events of Default or Foreclose the liens and security 
interests under its Permitted Mortgage as a consequence of an Event of Default regardless of 
whether such Event of Default is subsequently cured. 
(ii) B. Those Events of Default, which by their very nature, are not reasonably susceptible to being cured 

(as, for example, the bankruptcy of Owner) shall not constitute grounds of enforcement of rights, recourses or 
remedies hereunder by SUBR including termination of the Agreement, if a Permitted Mortgagee either before or 
after a Foreclosure of its Permitted Mortgage (1) makes all payments and performs all obligations hereunder capable 
of being performed by the Permitted Mortgagee, and (2) thereafter continues to comply with those provisions of 
this Agreement. 

(iii) C. If a Permitted Mortgagee enforces the rights and remedies pursuant to the terms of its Permitted'’ 
Mortgage (including Foreclosure of the Permitted Mortgage) such enforcement shall not constitute an Event of 
Default by Owner hereunder. 

(iv) D. If a Permitted Mortgagee should foreclose its Permitted Mortgage and should, as a result of such 
Foreclosure, succeed to any of the rights of Owner hereunder, then such Permitted Mortgagee shall be subject to 
all the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be entitled to all the rights and benefits of this Agreement; 
provided, however, that (1) such Permitted Mortgagee shall have no responsibility for any act or omission of Owner 
prior to the date of such Foreclosure; and (2) such Permitted Mortgagee shall not be bound by any amendment, 
modification, surrender or waiver of the terms of this Agreement made without the prior written consent of such 
Permitted Mortgagee (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 23 

(v) E. SUBR shall not agree to any termination, amendment, modification, surrender or waiver of the 
terms of this Agreement without the prior written consent of any Permitted Mortgagees, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

(vi) F. In the event of the termination of this Agreement prior to the Expiration Date, except by a Taking 
pursuant to Article FifteenSection 9 hereof, SUBR will serve upon any Permitted Mortgagees written notice that this 
Agreement has been terminated together with a statement of any and all sums which would have at that time been 
due under the Agreement but for such termination and of all other Events of Default, if any, under this Agreement 
then known to SUBR whereupon the Permitted Mortgagee holding the most senior Permitted Mortgage shall have 
the option, but not the obligation, to enter into a new agreement (the "“New Marketing Agreement"”) with 
SUERSUBR relating to the Premises, which shall be in the same form as this Agreement, by giving notice to SUBR 
to such effect within ninety (90) days after receipt by such Permitted Mortgagee of notice of such termination, which 
New Marketing Agreement shall be (1) effective as of the date of termination of this Agreement, (2) for the 
remainder of the Term, and (3) upon all of the agreements, terms, covenants and conditions hereof. In the event such 
Permitted Mortgagee does not exercise its option to enter into such New Marketing Agreement within such ninety 
(90) day period, the University shall have no further obligations whatsoever with respect to the Project or to the 
Permitted Mortgagee or to its successors and assigns. 

(vii) G. All notices given hereunder by SUBR to Owner shall also be given concurrently to each Permitted 
Mortgagee. 

(viii) H. The liability of the Permitted Mortgagee under this Agreement (if not terminated) or any New 
Marketing Agreement shall be limited to the period during which the Permitted Mortgagee shall own or be in 
possession of the Project, or may own the interest of Owner hereunder. Upon the Permitted Mortgagee'’s assignment 



 31 
4817-3242-4119.2  

or transfer of its rights and interests in and to this Agreement or any New Marketing Agreement to a third party, the 
Permitted Mortgagee shall have no further liability for any obligations arising after such transfer date, which liability 
shall be borne by such assignee or transferee. 

(e) Section 8.5.2. Limitation on Liability of Permitted Mortgagee. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, SUBR agrees that any Permitted Mortgagee permitted under this Agreement shall in no manner or respect 
whatsoever be (i) liable or responsible for any of Owner'’s obligations or covenants under this Agreement (nor shall any 
rights of such Permitted Mortgagee be contingent on the satisfaction of such obligations or covenants), or (ii) required to 
cure any default by Owner under this Agreement, provided; however, that if such Permitted Mortgagee becomes the 
successor to the rights of the Owner hereunder, then such Permitted Mortgagee shall be responsible and liable for all 
obligations and covenants accruing during the period in which such Permitted Mortgagee is entitled to the benefits of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 9. MARKETING AGREEMENT 

Section 9.1. Priority Referral to Project. SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents to the 
Facilities as follows: 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 24 

A. Each Semester, SUBR shall refer Eligible Residents specified in clauses (1) and  
(2) of the definition thereof to the Facilities as set forth in attached Exhibit G. In  
order to ensure that the Facilities will be fully occupied by Occupants, SUBR will 
not refer any Occupants specified in such clauses (1) and (2) to any other SUBR 
Sponsored Housing Facility until (based on signed Housing Contracts) the 
Facilities have achieved Minimum Occupancy. SUBR shall notify the Eligible 
Residents of their referral to the Facilities by written notice in substantially the 
form attached as EXHIBIT "G". In order to insure that the Facilities will be fully 
occupied by either Eligible Residents or other Occupants, SUBR will not refer  any 
Occupants to any SUBR Sponsored Housing (off campus) facilities other than the 
Facilities for any Semester until Minimum Occupancy is obtained for that 
Semester. 

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 9.1, SUBR shall not be 
obligated to require any Occupant to lease a unit in the Facilities. Thus, if any 
Occupant rejects a referral to the Facilities, then SUBR may subsequently refer 
such Occupant to another housing facility on or off the Campus. 

C. Owner shall notify SUBR each Semester when the Facilities are sufficiently 
occupied to achieve the Minimum Occupancy for the applicable Semester. 
During each Semester, Owner shall every 2 months notify SUBR of any 
vacancies that occur at the Facilities in order to give SUBR an indication of the 
number of units that will need to be leased for the immediately succeeding 
Semester. 



 32 
4817-3242-4119.2  

D. Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, SUBR reserves the right to 
refer any students to any housing or dormitory facilities located on SUBR's campus, whether 
owned and/or operated by SUER or any third party. 

Section 9.2. Occupancy Rentals; Housing Contracts. Owner shall charge Occupancy 
Rentals to Tenants of the Facilities during each Fiscal Year at the rates set forth in the Annual 
Budget for such Fiscal Year. The Occupancy Rentals shall be established as shall be necessary to 
(i) assure maximum occupancy and use of the Facilities and the services related thereto; (ii) satisfy 
the applicable covenants contained in the Bond Documents, including the payment of the debt 
service on any debt secured by any Bond Documents, the Reserve Amounts and all other payments 
and charges required under the Loan Agreements and the Bond Documents; and (iii) generate 
sufficient revenues for the payment of all other Annual Expenses. 

A. Owner shall arrange for each Tenant to execute and deliver to Owner a Housing 
Contract. Owner shall be entitled to amend the form of Housing Contract from time 
to time, in which event Owner shall deliver the amended form to SUBR for its 
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

B. SUBR will have no obligation to Owner if any Tenant fails to pay the Occupancy 
Rentals in accordance with the terms of its Housing Contract. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 25 

C. SUBR agrees to facilitate the assignment to Owner of the financial aid of any Occupant who is a 
student of SUBR, to pay for Occupancy Rentals, provided Owner obtains the Occupant's written 
consent for the assignment. 

D. Not withstanding any provision within this Agreement to the contrary, SUBR reserves the right to 
build, or cause to be constructed, any academic, athletic, or student housing on its campus, whether 
owned and/or operated by SUBR or by a third party, and to assign its students to such facilities. 

Section 9.3. SUBR Promotions. 

A. SUBR shall actively promote and market the Facilities to Eligible Residents as an 
integral part of the overall housing program of SUBR in the following ways: 

I. Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all response 
mailings to prospective students seeking information about 
enrolling at SUBR. 

2. Include a housing brochure (prepared by Owner) in all mailings to 
student applicants which notify them of their admittance to SUBR. 

3. Provide Owner with a convenient space at no cost on the first floor 
of the Student Center for a project information booth, in a location 
and of a size and design mutually agreeable to the parties, and 
subject to all SUBR Regulations. 



 33 
4817-3242-4119.2  

4. Provide Owner upon request with a list of those students who have 
indicated an interest in living in $UBR-sponsored student housing, 
to the extent same is reasonably available or accessible to SUBR, 
which includes to the extent available their first and last name, 
classification, mailing address and telephone number. 

5. Allow Owner to use a reasonable number of signs, flags and banners 
provided by Owner on the Campus to market the Project. 

6. Incorporate information about the Project in all appropriate SUBR 
publications. 

7. Jointly with Owner organize an "open house" at the Project at the 
beginning of each Semester and invite all deans and faculty of 
SUBR. 

8. Permit the management staff for the Project to participate in all 
residence staff training programs and other similar programs made 
available to the staff of other housing facilities at SUBR. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 26 

9. With the written approval of the Referred Occupant, disburse 
directly to Owner the housing portion of such Referred Occupant's 
financial aid award. 

10. Include the Project on the regularly scheduled bus route of Jag Tran, 
SUBR bus service. 

11. Make reasonable efforts to support and maintain a safe environment 
at the Facilities. 

12. Provide Project staff with copies of University Student Life 
materials, manuals, handbooks, policies and procedures so that 
maximum consistency may be provided. 

13. Provide for and allow residents of the Project the option of utilizing 
the on campus meal plan program, counseling and on-line library 
services afforded to on campus residents. 

14. Upon notification by any undergraduate students of SUBR that they 
do not elect to live on. campus, SUBR shall refer them to the 
Facilities. 

B. Owner shall cooperate in promoting and marketing the Project by causing the 
following actions to be taken, all at Owner's cost: 



 34 
4817-3242-4119.2  

1. Prepare a housing brochure which reflects the floor plans, amenities 
and benefits of the Project; 

2. Maintain an on-site leasing office at the Project. 

3. Prepare color mounted renderings of the Project for use by SUBR 
in its promotion and marketing of the Project. 

Section 9.4. Campus Occupancy Reports. SUER shall use reasonable efforts to provide 
Owner with a report of the information, projections or estimates of SUBR-sponsored student 
housing, including the information described in this Section (the "Campus Occupancy Report"). 
The Campus Occupancy Report shall be a written report certified by the Director of Housing for 
SUBR as being true and correct and shall set forth the following: 

A. A list of all Occupants for the applicable Semester (including a listing of the 
name and address of each occupant); 

B. A schedule showing the amounts of (1) the prepaid Occupancy Rentals and 
security deposits received by SUBR from all Tenants, (2) the Occupancy Rentals 
to be paid by the Tenants for the remainder of the applicable Semester, and (3) the 
Occupancy Rentals charged for other SUBR-sponsored student housing; and 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 27 

C. Such other information or documents as Owner (or the Enhancement Provider) shall 
reasonably request in order for Owner (and the Enhancement Provider) to verify the 
referral of Eligible Residents to the Facilities. Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section to the contrary, SUBR shall not be obligated to include 
any of the foregoing information in a Campus Occupancy Report to the extent 
SUBR is precluded from disclosing such information by Applicable Laws. 

Section 9.5. Dedication of Project to Occupants. Owner shall offer units in the 
Facilities for lease only to Occupants. Owner shall cooperate with SUBR in marketing the Facilities 
to Eligible Residents. 

Section 9.6. Advertising. At least seven (7) Business Days prior to printing any advertisements 
or other promotional material relating to the Project, Owner shall provide SUBR Representative with 
copies thereof. for SUBR's consent, which consent shall be deemed given unless SUBR's 
Representative objects in writing during such seven (7) day period. 

Section 9.7. Restriction on Other SUBR Sponsored Housing. SUBR covenants that it 
will not undertake or otherwise approve additional SUBR Sponsored Housing unless an 
independent consultant acceptable to the Enhancement Provider certifies that the Project is 
then at least ninety percent (90%) occupied by Occupants, and Owner has met the rate covenant 
set forth in Section 8.08 of the Loan Agreement for each of the two (2) preceding fiscal years 
of Owner. 

ARTICLE 10. DEFAULT BY SUBR 



 35 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(f) Section 10.1. SUBR Defaults. If SUBR fails to perform any of its respective obligations or covenants under 
this Agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof, except for the obligations 
of SUBR in Section 9.1.A2(a)(i) for which there shall not be a period to cure,. then Owner shall be entitled to enforce any 
one or more of the following rights and remedies, and shall have all rights and remedies available to it at law and equity. 

(i) A. Owner shall be entitled to perform such obligation or covenant on behalf of SUBR and to offset 
all costs reasonably incurred in connection therewith against any Rent due by Owner hereunder; and 

(ii) B. Owner shall be entitled to require SUBR to specifically perform its obligations under this 
Agreement or restrain or enjoin SUBR from continuing the activities that constitute the default of SUBR. 

ARTICLE 11. CONDEMNATION 
Section 9. Condemnation. 

(a) Section 11.1. Total or Material Taking. Upon the permanent Taking of the entire Premises or a material 
portion thereof such that Owner reasonably determines that the Project cannot be economically and feasibly used for its 
intended purposes, or if the Awardaward payable as a consequence of a Taking (after payment of all or any portion of such 
Award towards amounts owed under any Loan Agreement) is insufficient, in the reasonable judgment of Owner, to permit 
the restoration of the remainder of the Project as required under Section 11.4,9(d), this Agreement 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 28 shall terminate as of the date of such Taking, and both Owner and 
SUBR shall thereupon be released from any liability accruing hereunder after the date of such 
termination. 

(b) Section 11.2. Partial Taking. Upon a temporary Taking or a Taking of less than all or such material portion 
of the Premises, this Agreement shall terminate with respect to the part so taken (but only for the period taken in any 
temporary Taking) and remain in full force and effect with respect the remainder of the Project in accordance with its terms 
for the balance of the Term, except that the Project shall be defined as providing a lower number of beds for Tenants, as 
determined based on the repaired or reconstructed architectural unit or units approved as provided in Section 11.4.9(d). 

(c) Section 11.3. Allocation of Awards. SUBR, Owner and the Permitted Mortgagee shall each receive notice of 
any proceedings relating to a Taking and shall each have the right to participate therein: (a) Upon the Taking as a result of 
which this Agreement is terminated under Section 11.1,9(a), (i) the Permitted Mortgagee shall be entitled (free of any claim 
by Owner) to a portion of the Award equal to the aggregate amount of all sums due under the debt under the Bond 
Documents; and (ii) Owner shall be entitled (free of any claim by SUBR or the Permitted Mortgagee) to the balance of the 
Award. (b) In the event of a Taking as a result of which this Agreement is not terminated, then (i) the Permitted Mortgagee 
shall be entitled (free of any claim by Owner) to the portion of the Award attributable to the part so taken, not to exceed the 
portion of the aggregate amount of the debt secured by the Loan Agreement reasonably allocable to the Premises so taken; 
(ii) Owner shall be entitled (free of any claim by SUBR, other than its right to enforce Section 11.49(d)) to the portion of 
the Award attributable to the damage to the remainder of the Project and relocation benefits, if any, for removal and 
relocation of Facility Equipment from the part of the Premises so taken; and (iii) SUBR shall be entitled (free of any claim 
by Owner or the Permitted Mortgagee) to the balance of the Award. 

(d) Section 11.4. Repair After Taking. Should a Taking occur that does not result in termination as provided by 
Section 11.1,9(a), Owner, at its expense, shall promptly commence and diligently and continuously proceed to repair or 
reconstruct the Facilities to a complete architectural unit or units. Any and all such repairs or reconstruction shall be subject 
to prior reasonable approval of SUBR. The portion of the Award payable to Owner as a consequence of a Taking affecting 
the Project shall be deposited with and disbursed by the Permitted Mortgagee until the repair or restoration of the Premises 
is Substantially Completesubstantially complete. 



 36 
4817-3242-4119.2  

(e) Section 11.5. No Condemnation by SUBR. SUBR does not presently intend to exercise its right of eminent 
domain to condemn all or any portion of the Project, and in the event of any such Taking, all of the Award shall be payable 
to Owner and the Permitted Mortgagee. SUBR acknowledges and agrees that each Permitted Mortgagee and the 
Enhancement Provider is a third-party beneficiary of this prohibition and that the Permitted Mortgagee and the Enhancement 
Provider may rely upon such agreement. 

ARTICLE 12. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 
Section 10. Assignment and Subletting. 

(a) Section 12.1. Assignments. Except as provided in this Section 12.1,10(a), Owner shall not assign this 
MarkedngMarketing Agreement or sublet all or any part of the Project or any interest in this Agreement except with SUBR'’s 
prior consent. Any assignment or sublease made or given 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 29 without SUBR'’s consent, unless such consent is not 
required pursuant to this Section 12.1,10(a), will be null and void. An assignment of any 
ownership interest in Owner (other than to SUBR or to Southern University System 
Foundation, Inc.) shall be deemed to be an assignment of this Agreement by Owner, subject 
to the provisions of this Section 12.1.10(a). The Owner shall have the right, without SUBR'’s 
prior consent, to assign this Agreement to any Permitted Assignee as in conjunction with 
Owner'’s assignment of the Development Agreement, the Management Agreement, all 
Housing Contracts then in effect for the Project, and any and all Deposits paid or payable 
under such Housing Contracts; or merge into or consolidate with any Permitted Assignee; or 
sublease units in the Facilities to Tenants pursuant to Housing Contracts in accordance with 
this Agreement. Owner shall not enter into, or permit to be entered into, any sublease of any 
portion of the Project with any Person providing laundry services, vending machines or other 
ancillary services or amenities to the Facilities, and all such services or amenities shall be 
provided, if at all, pursuant to written license agreements terminable by Owner on not more 
than thirty (30) days’ notice. 

(b) Section 12.2. SUBR'’s Consent. SUBR and Owner acknowledge that Owner is in the business of developing, 
constructing, leasing and managing student apartment housing projects pursuant to development agreements, management 
agreements and other operating or service agreements; and that Owner is a single member limited liability company, the 
sole member of which is a non-profit corporation organized for the purpose of developing student housing projects in 
compliance with its qualification as a tax-exempt entity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. 
In those instances for which SUBR'’s consent to an assignment is required, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed, and such consent shall be based solely on SUBR'’s reasonable determination that the creditworthiness, tax-
exempt status, experience and expertise with development, construction, leasing, management and operation of student 
apartment housing projects of such proposed assignee and its agents is equal to or better than that of Owner, the Developer 
and Initial Manager as of the Effective Date hereof, and that such prospective assignee and its agents are not debarred from 
participating in any federally funded projects under applicable federal procurement regulations and other Applicable Laws. 
With respect to any subleases for which SUBR'’s consent is required, such consent may be withheld in SUBR'’s sole 
discretion. 

ARTICLE 13. FORCE MAJEURE 

Section 13.1. Effect of Force Majeure. Except as otherwise provided in this Marketing 
Agreement, if because of an event of Force Majeure, either party hereto is unable to carry out its 
obligations under this Agreement (other than any obligation to pay money or apply credits or 
adjustments in connection with the performance of this Agreement), the affected Person's 
obligations hereunder shall be excused to the extent made necessary by such event of Force 



 37 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Majeure and during its continuance. The affected Party shall promptly give the other party hereto 
verbal notice followed by a written notice which specifies the nature, duration and the estimated 
remedy time of such event. The Party giving such notice shall use commercially reasonable efforts 
to cure such Force Majeure event insofar as possible with a minimum of delay. Neither Party shall 
be obligated to settle any strike, lockout, or other labor disturbance in a manner contradictory to 
its best business judgment or to comply with any Applicable Law, the validity or applicability of 
which is contested in good faith. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 30 

Section 11. SUBR’s Standard Provisions. 

ARTICLE 14. SUBR'S STANDARD PROVISIONS  

Section 14.1. Dispute Resolution Process. A. SUBR and Owner will attempt to resolve any claim for 

breach of contract made by Owner or Owner'’s agents and contractors, including Developer and 

Manager (all references in this Section 14.111(a) to Owner shall be deemed to include such 

additional Persons). 
(i) 1. A claim by Owner for breach of this Agreement that the parties cannot resolve in the ordinary 

course of business shall be submitted to binding arbitration pursuant to the rules of the American Arbitration 
Association or any other mutually agreed upon arbitration rules. To initiate the process, Owner shall submit written 
notice to SUBR, Office of General Counsel. 

(ii) B. Neither the occurrence of an event nor the pendency of a claim constituteconstitutes grounds for 
the suspension of performance by Owner, in whole or in part. 

(b) Section 14.2. Subject to Southern University System Approval. Owner expressly acknowledges that the 
validity and enforceability of this Agreement is contingent upon acceptance of the contractual terms by SUBR pursuant to 
authorization by the Southern University System Approval. 

(c) Section 14.3. Minority and HUB Participation. Owner agrees to make a good faith effort to award at least 
twenty-five percent (25%) of all procurements and purchases of personal property and all contracts for services to certified 
HUB'’s. 

ARTICLE 15. MISCELLANEOUS 
(d) Section 15.1. Non-Discrimination. Non-discrimination.  Any discrimination by Owner, the General 

Contractor, the Developer, the Manager or their respective officers, employees, agents, representatives, contractors or 
subcontractors on account of race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin or handicap, in employment practices or in the 
performance of the terms, conditions, covenants and obligations of this Agreement, or any agreement or contracts 
contemplated in this Agreement, is prohibited. It is the policy of SUBR to ensure that minority and women business 
enterprises have the opportunity to fully compete for and participate in SUBR contracts. Owner shall use its best efforts, 
and cause the General Contractor, Developer and Manager to use their best efforts, to carry out this policy through award of 
subcontracts to minority and women-owned business enterprises to the extent consistent with the efficient performance of 
this Agreement and all agreements or contracts contemplated in this Marketing Agreement 



 38 
4817-3242-4119.2  

Section 12. Miscellaneous. 

Section 15.2. Conflict of Interest. Owner certifies (and this Agreement is made in 
reliance thereon) that neither Owner nor any person having a financial or economic interest in this 
Agreement by, through or under Owner is a trustee, officer, faculty or employee of SUBR. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 31 

Section 15.3. Notices. All notices and other communications to SUBR or Owner 
required or appropriate under this Agreement shall be in writing, effective (a) upon receipt 
when sent by (1) personal delivery or (ii) expedited delivery service with proof of delivery, or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (iii) telecopy with confirmation of 
completed transmission on a Business Daybusiness day; or (b) two (2) Business Daysbusiness 
days after deposit with the U.S. Postal Service, sent by registered or certified United States 
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid; in all cases addressed as follows: 

if to SUBR: 

Dr. Edward R. Jackson 
Chancellor 
Southern University A&M College at Baton Rouge 
P.O. Box 13405 
Baton Rouge, LouisianaLA 70813 

With a copy to: 

Winston DeCuir, Esq. 
Winston & DeCuir, LLP 
1961 Government Street 
Baton Rouge, LaLA 70806 
Fax: (225) 336-1950 

if to Owner: 

Baton Rouge Student Housing, L.L.C. 
Cc/o Student Housing of America, Inc. 
One Buckhead Plaza, Suite 9001150 
3060 Peachtree Road, N.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30305 
Fax: (404) 760-3443 

with a copy to: 

Peter M. Wright, Esq. 
One Buckhead Plaza, Suite 900 
3060 Peachtree Road, N.W. 
Atlanta, GA 30305 
Fax: (404) 760-3443 



 39 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement 32 

If to Initial Enhancement Provider: 

ACA Financial Guaranty Corporation 
140 Broadway 
47th Floor 

New York New York, 10005 
Attention: Surveillance 
Fax: (212) 375-2100 



 40 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement 33 

If to Developer: 

Charles Frazier 
President 
Educational Development Company of America, L.L.C. 
4909 N. Monroe 
Tallahassee, FL 32303 

or to such other address or to the attention of such other person as hereafter shall be designated bybe such party by ten (10) 
days'’ prior notice given in accordance herewith. 

(a) Effect of Force Majeure. Except as otherwise provided in this Marketing Agreement, if because of an event 
of Force Majeure, either party hereto is unable to carry out its obligations under this Agreement (other than any obligation 
to pay money or apply credits or adjustments in connection with the performance of this Agreement), the affected Person’s 
obligations hereunder shall be excused to the extent made necessary by such event of Force Majeure and during its 
continuance. The affected Party shall promptly give the other party hereto verbal notice followed by a written notice which 
specifies the nature, duration and the estimated remedy time of such event. The Party giving such notice shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to cure such Force Majeure event insofar as possible with a minimum of delay. Neither 
Party shall be obligated to settle any strike, lockout, or other labor disturbance in a manner contradictory to its best business 
judgment or to comply with any Applicable Law, the validity or applicability of which is contested in good faith. 

(b) Conflict of Interest.  Owner certifies (and this Agreement is made in reliance thereon) that neither Owner 
nor any person having a financial or economic interest in this Agreement by, through or under Owner is a trustee, officer, 
faculty or employee of SUBR. 

(c) Section 15.4. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or construed by the parties 
hereto, or by any third party, as creating the relationship of principal and agent, partners, joint venturers, or any other similar 
such relationship, between the parties hereto. It is understood and agreed that no provision contained herein nor any acts of 
the parties hereto creates a relationship other than the relationship of SUBR and Owner. 

(d) Section 15.5. Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Louisiana, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in East Baton Rouge Parish, 
Louisiana. 

(e) Section 15.6. Approval of Ancillary Agreements. SUBR agrees that in the event it becomes necessary or 
desirable for SUBR to give written approval for any ancillary agreements or to perform any ministerial acts or documents 
concerning the Project or concerning the construction, operation or maintenance of the Facilities or to alter or amend any 
such ancillary agreements between SUBR and Owner or to give any approval or consent of SUBR required under the terms 
of this Agreement, SUBR hereby authorizes, designates and empowers SUBR Representative to execute any such 
agreement, approvals or consents necessary or desirable. However, any agreements to amend or alter this Agreement in any 
material way must be approved by Southern University System and SUBR. 

(f) Section 15.7. Rights Cumulative.  All rights, options, and remedies of SUBR and Owner contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed and held to be cumulative and no one of them shall be exclusive of the other. SUBR and 
Owner shall each have the right to pursue any one or all of such remedies or any other remedy or relief which may be 
provided by law or in equity whether or not stated in this Agreement. 

(g) Section 15.8. Non-Waiverwaiver.  No waiver by SUBR or Owner of a breach of any of the covenants, 
conditions or restrictions of this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach of any of the covenants, 



 41 
4817-3242-4119.2  

conditions or restrictions of this Agreement. The failure of SUBR or Owner to insist in any one or more cases upon the strict 
performance of any of the covenants of the • Agreement, or to exercise any option herein contained, shall not be construed 
as a waiver or relinquishment for the future of such covenant or option. A receipt by SUBR or acceptance of payment by 
SUBR of Net Cash Flow with knowledge of the breach of any covenant hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach. 
No waiver, change, modification or discharge by SUBR or Owner of any provision of this Agreement shall be 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 34 deemed to have been made or shall be effective unless 
expressed in writing and signed by the party to be charged. 

(h) Section 15.9. Severability. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or unenforceable 
under present or future laws'’ effective during the Term of this Agreement, then and in that event, it is the intention of the 
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

(i) Section 15.10. Entire Agreement. This Marketing Agreement, together with the exhibits attached hereto, 
contains the final and entire agreement between the parties hereto and contains all of, the terms and conditions agreed upon, 
and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to 
bind the parties hereto; it being the intent of the parties that neither shall be bound by any term, condition or representations 
not herein written. 

(j) Section 15.11. Amendment. No amendment, modification or alteration of this Agreement shall be binding 
unless the same be in writing, dated on or subsequent to the date hereof and duly executed by the parties hereto. No such 
amendment, modification or alteration, and no termination of this Agreement, shall be effective without the prior written 
consent of the Enhancement Provider. 

(k) Section 15.12. Successors and Assigns. All of the covenants, agreements, terms and conditions to be observed 
and performed by the parties hereto shall be applicable to and binding upon their respective successors and assigns including 
any successor by merger or consolidation of SUBR into another educational institution. 

Section 15.13. Hazardous Materials. Notwithstanding anything contained in this 
Agreement to the contrary, if Owner finds any Hazardous Materials on the Owned Land within 
thirty (30) days following the execution hereof, then Owner shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement by delivering written notice thereof to SUER no later than forty-five (45) days 
following the execution hereof. If Owner terminates this Agreement as a result of finding 
Hazardous Materials on the Owned Land, then neither party hereto shall have any further rights, 
duties or obligations hereunder. 



 42 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So, University/Marketing Agreement 35 

Section 15.14. Bonds. Owner will cause the Issuer to issue the Series 2003 Bonds 
to provide both construction and permanent financing for the Facilities and will cause the Series 
2003 Bonds to be credit-enhanced or insured by an Enhancement Provider. Bonds.  Following 
the issuance of any Bonds, and so long as any thereof remain outstanding: 
(i) A. The Enhancement Provider and the trusteeTrustee for the Bonds shall be third-party beneficiaries 

of this Agreement entitled to enforce the terms hereof. 

(ii) B. Owner shall provide written notice to the Enhancement Provider if this Agreement is terminated 
as a result of a Taking pursuant to Article 11Section 9 hereof. 

(iii) Owner agrees that it will not amend any of the Bond Documents, or enter into any Credit Facility 
other than the Initial Credit Facility, or cause any Bonds other than the Series 2003 Bonds to be issued, without the 
prior written consent of SUBR, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. It shall not be unreasonable for SUBR to 
withhold its consent to any such action if such action would adversely affect any of its rights hereunder. 

(l) Section 15.15. Continuing Disclosure. SUBR shall provide Owner with any information concerning SUBR 
required for Owner- to comply with its annual continuing disclosure requirements pursuant to a continuing disclosure 
agreement and SEC Rule 15c2-12 entered into with respect to any bonds issued to finance the development, construction, 
procurement and installation of the Facilities and Facility Equipment. 

(m) Section 15.16. Privacy of Information. Unless otherwise provided herein, and subject to Applicable Laws, 
any information provided by SUBR pursuant to this Agreement shall not be disseminated to third parties without SUBR'’s 
prior written consent. 

(n) Section 15.17. Legal Opinion.  In connection with the issuance of any bonds or other obligations for the 
Project, SUBR agrees to deliver a legal opinion from outside counsel to SUBR that this Agreement has been duly authorized 
by SUBR, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of SUBR, and is enforceable against SUBR in accordance with 
its respective terms, subject to customary exceptions and qualifications. Such legal opinion shall be in a form and substance 
reasonably acceptable to bond counsel to any such financing. 

(o) Section 15.18. Subordination to Bond Documents. Notwithstanding anything else herein contained, the 
provisions of the Bond Documents shall control in all respects the Owner'’s obligations to maintain insurance coverage, to 
repair, replace, rebuild, restore and re-equip the Facilities and Facility Equipment and the receipt, handling and application 
of any and all insurance proceeds, including the use of insurance proceeds to redeem Bonds, it being acknowledged and 
agreed that the Trustee shall have a first and prior security interest therein. 

(p) Section 15.19. No Liability of the Member or Mangers. No Liability of the Member or Mangers. 
Notwithstanding anything else herein contained, no Person that was at any time the Member or a Manager of the Owner 
shall have any liability on account of the covenants of the Owner contained herein, except for actions taken by such Person 
that were fraudulent or unlawful. 

Notwithstanding anything else herein contained, no Person that was at any time the 
Member or a Manager of the Owner shall have any liability on account of the covenants of the 
Owner contained herein, except for actions taken by such Person that were fraudulent or unlawful. 

So. University/Marketing Agreement 36 



 43 
4817-3242-4119.2  

EXECUTED in multiple counterpart originals effective as of the Effective Date. 

OWNER 

BATON ROUGE STUDENT HOUSING, L.L.C., 
A Louisiana limited ty company 
DATE: 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE AT BATON ROUGE 
So. University/Marketing Agreement 37 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of Land 

  

By: 
President 



 44 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement A-1 

EXHIBIT B 

Permitted Encumbrances 



 45 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement B-1 

EXHIBIT C 

Description of Plans and Specifications 



4817-3242-4119.2  

   

     
         

EXHIBIT D 

Development Agreement 



 47 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement D-1 

EXHIBIT E 

Address of Permitted Mortgagee 

The Bank of New York Trust Company of Florida, N.A.  
10161 Centurion Parkway  

Attention: Corporate Trust Department  
Fax: (904) 645-1997 



 48 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement 

EXHIBIT F 

Form of Management Agreement 

E-1 



 49 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement F-1 

 

EXHIBIT G 

Form of Referral to Housing Facilities 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE AT BATON 
ROUGE 

HOUSING REFERRAL CONFIRMATION SHEET 

Please check your preference. 

Complete this section only if you are accepting the referral to the Palisades @ Jaguar City. 

I desire the following unit type in order of preference to the Palisades @ Jaguar City: 

One Bedroom/One Bathroom  
Two Bedroom/Two Bathroom  
Three Bedroom/Two Bathroom  
Four Bedroom/Four Bathroom 

Apartment cost and payment schedules must be obtained from the management of the Palisades. 

Residents are required to bring their own linens and cooking utensils. All units are pre-wired for cable 
television, phone and high-speed Internet service. However, televisions and telephones are not provided.. 
Students are also responsible for their own utility services, which are expected to range from $20-45 per 
month per student for normal usage. 

While living at the Palisades at Jaguar City, I would like to: 

Prepare my own meals 
Purchase an optional meal plan through the University's food service 

Signature Date 

PLEASE PRINT NAME AND HOME ADDRESS IN THE SECTION BELOW 



 50 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement G-1 

 
Full Name   

   

Street City, State, Zip 

This confirmation sheet must be returned to the Housing Office. 

TO BE MAILED WITH THE HOUSING APPLICATION 



 51 
4817-3242-4119.2  

So. University/Marketing Agreement G-2 

EXHIBIT H 

Form of Housing Contract 

The Palisades Apartments @ Jaguar City LEASE AGREEMENT 

Base Utilities Inclusive Option 

THIS LEASE, made this ________ day of _______________ , 200 ____  whereby 
University Management Company, agent for the owner of the The Palisades Apartments @ Jaguar City, hereinafter referred to as Landlord, does 
hereby lease unto 
 _______________________________ , hereinafter referred to as Tenant, Bedroom No, 
 ______________  hereinafter referred to as the Bedroom, in the premises known as The 
Palisades Apartments @ Jaguar City, Apartment __________ , (the "Apartment"), along 
with the right to use in common with other tenants of the Apartment and such tenants' agents and guests, the living room, kitchen and any 
bathroom(s) located within the Apartment not leased to another tenant for that tenant's exclusive use within said Apartment, with the Bedroom, 
Bathroom and those portions of the apartment which Tenant may use in common with others being hereinafter referred to as the Premises, 
for a period commencing on the later of the day of _____________________   
200 , or the date Landlord tenders possession of the Premises to Tenant, and ending  
on the Tim day of July, 20 , at a total base rental determined as either: (i) indicated on the Base Utilities Inclusive Option, If an Addendum for the 
same is executed and attached hereto on the date this Lease is executed; or, (ii) an annual base rental of 
 _______________________________________  ($ _________ ), payable in twelve (12) 
equal monthly installments of  ___________________________________ ($ __________   
), in advance, without notice, deduction, setoff, or demand, on the lease commencement date and then the first day of each month until the end of the 
Lease term. 

This Lease is on the following terms, covenants, rules, and regulations which the Landlord and Tenant agree to keep and perform. 
LANDLORD AND TENANT AGREE THAT: 

1. SECURITY DEPOSIT: Landlord hereby acknowledges receipt from 
Tenant of the sum of $$300 of which $100 is non-refundable, paid prior hereto, to be held as security for the faithful performance by the Tenant of 
the covenants, conditions, rules and regulations contained herein. The security deposit shall be held in non-interest bearing account in a Mississippi 
Banking institution. The landlord shall notify tenant in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the security deposit, of the name and address of the 
institution holding the security deposit and of the fact that the funds are not being held with other funds of the landlord and shall further provide 
tenant with a 
copy of the provisions of Mississippi Statutes ____________ , The Security Deposit, or any  
portion thereof, may be withheld for unpaid rent, damage due to breach of this Lease or for damage by Tenant or the Tenant's agents, employees, 
guests or invites in excess of ordinary wear and tear to the Premises, common areas, major appliances and furnishings owned by the Landlord. It is 
understood and agreed, however, that irrespective of said Security Deposit, rent shall be paid when due, in accordance with the terms hereof. The 
Tenant shall have the right to be present when the Landlord, or the Landlord's agent, inspects the Premises in order to determine if any damage was 
done to the Premises, if the Tenant notifies the Landlord by certified mail of the Tenant's intention to move, the date of moving, and the Tenant's new 
address. The notice to be furnished by the Tenant shall be mailed to the Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date of moving. Upon receipt 
of the notice, the Landlord shall notify the Tenant by certified mail of the time and date when the Premises is to be inspected. The date of inspection 
shall occur within five (5) days before or five (5) days after the date of moving 

3 
as designated in the Tenant's notice. In the event of sale or transfer of the Premises by Landlord, the Landlord shall have the right to transfer, in accordance 
with applicable law, the Security Deposit to the vendee, or other transferee, and Landlord shall be considered released by Tenant for all liability for the return 
of such Security Deposit and Tenant shall look to Landlord's transferee solely for the return of said Security Deposit. It is agreed that this shall apply to every 
transfer or assignment made of the Security Deposit to any such transferee. The Security Deposit shall not be mortgaged, assigned or encumbered by Tenant 
without the prior written consent of Landlord and any attempt to do so shall be void. 

The Landlord shall return the security deposit or send to the tenant, by first class mail, delivered to the last known address of the Tenant, a written 
list of the charges against the Security Deposit claimed by the Landlord and the actual costs, within fifteen (15) days after the termination of the tenancy. Unless 
the tenant objects to the imposition of the Landlord's claim or the amount thereof within 15 days after receipt of Landlord's motive of intention to impose a claim, 
the Landlord may then deduct his or her claim and permit to Tenant the balance, if any, within 30 days. 

2. DELIVERY DATE OF PREMISES: The Landlord has not guaranteed a specific delivery date for the Premises, and that the Tenant will only be 
charged rent from the later of the commencement date specified at the beginning of this Lease or the date Landlord tenders possession of the Premises to 
Tenant. 

3. POSSESSION PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF LEASE: USE OF  TEMPORARY PREMISES: If permission is given to Tenant to enter into 
possession of the Premises prior to the date specified for the commencement of the term of this Lease, and/or to occupy any apartment of Landlord other 
than the Premises at any time, Tenant covenants and agrees that such occupancy shall be deemed to be under all of the terms, covenants, rules and 
regulations of this Lease, with the rent provided for under this Lease to be apportioned for such period of occupancy (as to space on a square foot basis, 
and as to time, on a daily basis) unless otherwise agreed to between the parties. 

4. BANK RETURNED CHECKS: Rent payments made by check which do not clear the bank cost the Landlord additional expenses for bookkeeping 
and clerical services and that, therefore, Tenant will pay to Landlord TWENTY-FIVE ($25.00) DOLLARS for each such bank returned check. 



 52 
4817-3242-4119.2  

5. DEFINITION OF RENT: All payments from Tenant to Landlord required under the terms of this Lease, including, but not limited to, Court costs, 
shall be deemed rent. 

6. ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY FEES: In the event Tenant, Tenant's family, agents, employees or guests violate any term or provision of 
this Lease, or the rules and regulations thereof, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, in addition to any other damages and expenses incurred by Landlord as a result 
thereof, an Administrative Fee, in the amount of ten percent (10%) of Tenant's then current monthly rental, to help defray Landlord's costs incurred in connection 
with having Tenant remedy such Lease violation. Should Landlord file an action against Tenant and provide that Landlord prevails in the action against Tenant, 
Tenant shall pay such reasonable attorney fees and Court Costs as are incurred by the Landlord. In the event Tenant prevails in any such action, Landlord 
shall pay Tenant a reasonable attorneys fee and Court Costs incurred by Tenant. 

7. WAIVER: The failure of the Landlord to insist upon a strict compliance with any of the covenants, rules or regulations of this Lease, or to exercise 
any option herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver of such covenant, rule, regulation or option, but that all covenants, rules, regulations and options 
shall remain in full force and effect. Landlord shall not be liable or responsible to Tenant for the violation of any covenant, rule or regulation in any other lease 
by any other tenant. 

8. ALTERATIONS: Any alterations, additions or improvements of a permanent nature which may be made to the Premises in compliance 
with Section 35 shall be the property of the Landlord and shall remain with the Premises. 

4 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH RULES AND REGULATIONS: The Tenant, Tenant's family, employees, agents and guests, will observe and 
comply with the rules and regulations set forth in this Lease and which are to be considered a part hereof, and with such further rules and 
regulations as the Landlord may adopt so long as such additional rules and regulations are reasonably necessary for the preservation of the 
apartment community or the Landlord's personnel or other persons. 

10. LEASE VIOLATIONS: If any of the representations made in Tenant's Lease Application are misleading or untrue, or if Tenant, Tenant's 
employees, agents, invites or guests violate any provision of this Lease or any rule or regulation herein imposed, or if Tenant violates the University, 
Student Code of Conduct, then Landlord may treat such representation or Lease violation as forfeiture under the terms of this Lease, with Tenant's 
possession of the Premises terminating on the date specified in Landlord's notice. Under such circumstances, Landlord may re-enter and take 
possession of the Premises by utilizing applicable law. If Tenant's possession of the Premises should be so terminated, or if the Premises should 
otherwise become vacant during the term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof, the Tenant will remain liable to the Landlord for the 
rent through what would have been the expiration date of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof, had Tenant's possession not been so 
terminated: and shall further remain liable for such other damages sustained by the Landlord due to Tenant's breach of Lease and/or Tenant's 
termination of possession of the Premises so long as such liability is not expressly prohibited by applicable law. Such other damages shall include, 
but are not limited to, costs incurred in recovering possession of the Premises, costs incurred in re-letting the Premises (such as rental commissions 
and administrative expenses), utility costs for the Premises for which Tenant, pursuant to the Lease, is responsible while same remains vacant, 
and costs incurred in redecorating the Premises, 

11. INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE: The Tenant will receive no rent reduction, nor will Landlord be liable to Tenant, due to repairs or 
interruption of services to utilities, appliances or equipment in or about the Premises or due to defects in the Premises not caused by Landlord's 
fault, omission, negligence or other misconduct; or due to the inability of Landlord to obtain proper utilities, or repair/replacement parts. In case 
it shall become necessary at any time, from accident or repairs, or to improve the condition or operation of the Premises, or any equipment or 
utilities appertaining thereto, for Landlord to stop or curtail the operation of said equipment or utilities, Landlord may do so, but in such case 
due diligence shall be used to complete the work. The parties further acknowledge that rent escrow, if utilized in accordance with applicable 
law, is a lawful Tenant remedy. 

12. RIGHT OF ENTRY: Except in the event of an emergency affecting the health, safety or welfare of the Landlord or any tenant or any 
property thereof, the Landlord shall give the Tenant at least 24 hours written or oral notice of the Landlord's intent to enter the Premises and shall 
enter only during normal business hours or at such other time as is mutually agreed to by the Landlord and the Tenant. Landlord may enter the 
Premises by master key or, in the event of an emergency, by force. Landlord shall have the right to enter the Premises to inspect the Premises, to 
make repairs/alterations in the Premises or elsewhere on Landlord's property, to enforce any provision of this Lease or to show the Premises to 
prospective future tenants or purchasers without being liable to prosecution therefore or damages by reason thereof. 

13. RE-ENTRY OF PREMISES: In the event Tenant abandons the Premises or is required to vacate the Premises due to Landlord 
exercising its rights upon Tenant's breach of Lease, then the Landlord shall have the right to enter the Premises for the purpose of making 
alterations and repairs, and may relet the Premises for a term which may, at Landlord's option, be less than or exceed the period which would 
otherwise have constituted the balance of the term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension thereof, all without relieving the Tenant of the 
liabilities imposed by applicable law and this Lease Agreement. Landlord shall further have the right, without further notice, to dispose of any 
personal property left in or about the Premises or storage area by the Tenant, after the Tenant has vacated. 

5 
14. APPLICABLE LAW: This Lease shall be given effect and shall be construed by application of the law of the State of Mississippi. 
15. REPAIRS: Landlord shall be responsible for repairs to the Premises, its equipment and appliances furnished by Landlord, except that Tenant 

agrees to pay the cost for all labor and material for repairs or replacement if the damage or malfunction to the Premises, its equipment or appliances or any other 
part of the apartment community, is due to the Tenant, Tenant's invites, guests, agents or employees. Landlord shall provide to Tenant 12 hours prior notice of 
its intent to repair the premises and shall carry out such work between the hours of 7:30 A.M. and 8:30 P.M. 

16. DAMAGE TO PREMISES: In case of damage to the Premises by fire or 
the elements (not caused by the fault, omission, negligence or other misconduct of Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents, invites or guests), the Landlord will 
repair the damage, the rent being suspended only for such time as the Premises, in the sole opinion of Landlord, shall remain untenantable; but if the Premises 
are so damaged that 



 53 
4817-3242-4119.2  

the Landlord shall decide that it is not advisable to repair the Premises with the Tenant occupying same, this Lease shall terminate and the Tenant shall only 
be liable for rent to the date of damage. 

17. SECTION HEADINGS AND NUMBERS: Section Headings and Section Numbers appearing in this Lease are inserted only as a matter of 
convenience and in no way define, construe or describe the scope or intent of such sections or in any way affect this Lease. 

18. HEIRS AND ASSIGNS: This Lease, and all covenants, conditions, rules and regulations herein contained, are binding upon and shall inure to 
the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Landlord and the heirs, administrators and those assigns of the Tenant who shall have been approved in 
accordance with Section 32 of this Lease. 

19. NOTICES: All notices from Tenant to Landlord shall be sent by certified mall, return receipt requested, and addressed to Landlord 
at All notices from Landlord to Tenant shall be delivered personally or to the Apartment, or sent by First Class or Certified 

Mail, addressed to Tenant at the Apartment. 
20. AGENCY: If any employee of Landlord's at Tenant's request, moves, handles or stores anything, or drives or parks Tenant's motor vehicle, then 

and in every case, such employee shall be deemed Tenant's agent, and Landlord shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense in connection therewith. 
21. SUBORDINATION OF LEASE: This Lease is subject and subordinate to any mortgage or deed of trust now or hereafter covering the property 

of which the Premises leased hereby is a part and is subject and subordinate also to any extension, renewal, modification, replacement or consolidation of 
any such mortgage or deed of trust. The provisions of this Section shall be self-operative and no further instrument of subordination shall be necessary. 
Promptly upon the request of any person succeeding to the interest of the owner of the property of which the Premises hereby leased is a part, whether 
through the enforcement of any remedy provided for by law or by any such mortgage or deed of trust or as the result of any voluntary or involuntary conveyance 
or other transfer of such interest in lieu of foreclosure, the Tenant automatically, without the necessity of executing any further document, will become the 
tenant of such successor in interest. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This Lease contains the entire agreement between Landlord and Tenant, and can only be changed in writing, signed 
by both parties. 

23. SEVERABILITY: If any provision of this Lease or application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect other 
provisions or applications of this Lease which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application; and to this end, the provisions of this Lease are 
declared to be severable. 

24. UTILITIES: UNLESS AMENDED BY EXECUTION OF BASE UTILITIES INCLUSIVE OPTION, BY ATTACHED ADDENDUM, Landlord will pay 
all charges for water, sewerage, and basic cable used in the Apartment during the term of this Lease, 

6 
and any extension thereof. Tenant shall, however, for each three month period in which the total of such charges exceed $218, immediately reimburse Landlord, 
as additional rent, Tenant's pro rata portion of such excess utility charges. Landlord agrees to bill Tenant on or about the 25th of the month following the end of 
each three-month period for the amount due from Tenant on the first of the following month. Landlord further agrees to make available utility and governmental 
bills and all calculations determining Tenants pro-rata share in Landlord's office on the same day the bills are mailed and for seven days thereafter. The Tenant's 
share will be computed as follows: The total water, sewerage and basic cable bills paid by the Landlord during the previous three months for the said Apartment 
will be divided by the number of bedrooms occupied in the apartment. 

25. RELOCATION OF TENANT: To promote the well-being of its student residents; to maintain, operate or renovate facilities; to establish a special 
interest building, floor, unit or section; to convert rooms for occupancy by the opposite sex; to fill an apartment; or for the other reasonable purposes, Landlord 
may require Tenant, upon seven days prior notice, to relocate to another apartment within the The Palisades Apartment @ Jaguar City. 

LANDLORD AGREES THAT: 
26. CONDITION OF PREMISES: The Premises will be made available such that it will not contain conditions which constitute, or if not promptly 

corrected will constitute, a fire hazard or a serious and substantial threat to the life, health or safety of occupants. At all times during the tenancy, Landlord will 
comply with all applicable provisions of any Federal, State, County or municipal statute, Code, regulation or ordinance governing the maintenance, construction, 
use or appearance of the Premises and the property of which it is a part. 

27. EXISTING DAMAGES: Upon written request of Tenant (sent in accord  
with Section 19 of this Lease Agreement) within fifteen (15) days of occupancy, Tenant shall have the right to have the Premises inspected by the Landlord, in 
the Tenant's presence, for the purpose of making a written list of damages that exist at the commencement of the tenancy. Within five (5) days after the Tenant 
receives Landlord's list, Tenant shall, if Tenant disagrees with the Landlord's written list of existing damages, serve on the Landlord a statement itemizing those 
portions of Landlord's list with which Tenant disagrees. 

28. FURNISHINGS: Tenant hereby acknowledges that the Premises contain the furnishings specified in Exhibit A attached hereto, hereinafter referred 
to as the "Furnishings", and that except as specified in said Exhibit A, the Furnishings are in good condition and further agrees that when Tenant vacates the 
Premises, all of the Furnishings will remain in the Premises and be in the same condition as when Tenant occupied the Premises, reasonable wear and tear 
excepted. 

29. VEHICLE PARKING: Tenant will obey all parking and speed regulations which Landlord may promulgate or post and park, in the designated 
parking areas, only one properly tagged and functioning passenger motor vehicle or truck (with no commercial lettering) not in excess of 3/4 ton GVW, whose 
appearance, in Landlord's sole opinion, does not detract from the apartment community, in designated parking areas and will not permit nor maintain any 
commercial vehicles or trucks in excess of 3/4 ton GVW, trailers, campers or boats in or about the apartment community, Tenant shall not use any parking area 
on Landlord's property for the storage or repair of any motor vehicle or other property and will remove any unauthorized vehicles or other property from said 
parking areas promptly at the request of Landlord. Any vehicle parked by Tenant in the parking areas must display, on the front passenger window of 
the vehicle, a valid parking sticker as provided by Landlord. If Tenant shall fail to  
comply with this Section 29, Tenant agrees to pay Landlord, at the rate of $10.00 per day, for the use of said parking area and does hereby grant to Landlord a 
lien on said unauthorized vehicles or other property for the payment of the parking rent, which lien may be enforced by Landlord in the same manner as such 
liens may be enforced by garage keepers under the applicable laws of the City/County and State in which the 

7 



 54 
4817-3242-4119.2  

parking area is located and/or Landlord, at its option, may have said unauthorized 
vehicles or other property towed away, or otherwise removed, and stored at Tenant's risk and expense. Tenant does hereby further irrevocably constitute 
and appoint Landlord as Tenant's attorney in fact to remove any unauthorized vehicles or other property parked or stored in violation of this Lease, and to 
store the same at the expense of Tenant in such place or places as Landlord, in its sole discretion, may deem proper. Any vehicle or other property parked, 
or stored, so as to block or inhibit access to any dumpster or fire lane will be towed, or otherwise removed, at its owners risk and expense. 

30. PAYMENT OF RENT: This Lease Agreement shall not be valid and occupancy shall not be granted without prior payment of the first month's rent 
and delivery of a properly executed and duly enforceable Parental Guaranty. Tenant shall pay the rent at the Landlord's office or at such other place as may be 
designated by the Landlord. Except as may otherwise be required by law, or by the Landlord, all rental payments made by Tenant to Landlord shall be by check, 
money order or by credit card (if Landlord has the necessary facilities with which to process a credit card payment), Should any check given by Tenant to 
Landlord be dishonored by Tenant's bank, Landlord shall have the right to require that all future rent payments, except as may otherwise be required, by law, 
be paid by money order or certified check. Landlord shall provide Tenant with a written receipt for all cash monies received by the Landlord from the Tenant. 
Rent will be accepted by the Landlord during Landlord's business hours as same may be posted, from time to time, at Landlord's business office. If the Tenant 
fails to make payment where due and the default continues for 3 days, excluding Saturday, Sunday, and legal holidays, after delivery of written demand by the 
Landlord for payment of the rent or possession of the premises, the Landlord may terminate the agreement. 

Should Landlord employ an Agent to institute proceedings for rent and/or repossession of the Premises for non-payment of any installment of 
rent, and should such rent be due and owing as of the filing of said proceedings, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the reasonable costs incurred by Landlord in 
utilizing the services of said Agent. 

31. LATE CHARGE: Tenant will pay, as additional rent, a charge of twenty-five ($25) and five ($5) per day thereafter as a late charge in the event 
that Tenant shall fail to pay, both while occupying the Premises and after vacating same, an installment of the rent for a period of three (3) days beyond the 
date on which it became due and payable. This shall not constitute a waiver of the- Landlord's right to institute proceedings for rent, damages and/or 
repossession of the Premises for non-payment of any installment of rent. 

32. ASSIGNMENT & SUBLETTING: Tenant will not assign this Lease, or sublet said Premises, or any part thereof, nor permit the Premises to be 
occupied by anyone other than Tenant and such other tenants of the Premises as may be authorized by Landlord, without the prior written consent of Landlord, 
which consent may be withheld in the sole and absolute subjective discretion of the Landlord, nor use or permit the Premises to be used for any purpose other 
than that of a private dwelling, In the event Landlord agrees to an assignment of this Lease or a subletting of the Premises, Tenant will be charged a fee of $50.00 
for the additional office work involved. 

33. NOISE & BEHAVIOR: Tenant will not make, permit or facilitate any unseemly or disturbing noises or conduct by the Tenant, Tenant's family, 
employees, agents and/or guests; nor do, permit or facilitate any illegal or immoral conduct or obstruct or interfere with the rights, comforts or convenience of 
other tenants or Landlord. Tenant will not permit to enter the Premises or to remain therein any person of bad or loose character or of improper behavior. 
Tenant further agrees not to conduct, give or permit vocal or instrumental instruction or practice. Tenant shall further prevent any person on the Premises with 
Tenant's permission from willfully or wantonly destroying, defacing, damaging, impairing or removing any part of the building or the Premises or the facilities, 
equipment or appurtenances thereto, nor may the Tenant do any such thing. 

34, ILLEGAL ❑RUGS: If Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents, invites and/or 'guests, engage in, permit or facilitate any drug-related criminal activity 
on or about the 
Premises, Tenant will be deemed to have substantially and materially breached this Lease Agreement with such breach being grounds to terminate Tenant's 
occupancy of the Premises. The term "drug-related criminal activity" means the illegal manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensing, storage, use or possession of 
a "controlled substance" as defined under Section 102 of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act (21 USC 802(6), as amended) or under 
relevant Mississippi Statues or to attempt, endeavor or conspire to manufacture, sell, distribute, dispense, store, use or possess a Controlled dangerous 
substance or controlled substance. 

35. ALTERATIONS TO PREMISES: Tenant will leave the Premises at the end of the Lease term, or any renewal or extension thereof, in as good 
condition as received, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and will not, without written permission of the Landlord, make any alterations, additions or 
improvements (including painting and papering) to the Premises. 

36. SURRENDER OF PREMISES: If the Tenant does not surrender the Premises at the end of the Lease term, or any renewal or extension thereof, 
the Tenant will make good to the Landlord all of the damages which the Landlord suffers as a result thereof, and will further indemnify the Landlord against 
all claims made by any succeeding tenant against the Landlord founded upon delay by the Landlord in delivering possession of the Premises to said 
succeeding tenant, so far as such delay is caused by the failure of Tenant to surrender the Premises. 

37. WAIVER OF BREACH: Receipt by the Landlord of rent with knowledge of the violation of any term or provision of this Lease or the rules or 
regulations thereof, shall not be deemed a waiver of such breach. 

38. INDEMNIFICATION: Tenant agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Landlord against ail liability, including liability arising from death or injury 
to person or property, during the term of this Lease, and any renewal or extension thereof, caused by any act or omission of the Tenant, or of the family, 
guests, agents or employees of the Tenant. 

39. LIABILITY OF LANDLORD: Landlord shall not be liable for any injury, damage or loss to person or property caused by other tenants or other persons, 
or caused by theft, vandalism, fire, water, smoke, explosions or other causes unless the same is exclusively due to the omission, fault, negligence or other misconduct 
of the Landlord. Failure or delay in enforcing Lease covenants of other tenants shall not be deemed negligence, etc. on the part of the Landlord. Tenant shall defend 
and indemnify Landlord from any claim or liability from which Landlord is hereby exonerated. 

40. TENANT HOLDING OVER: If Tenant shall continue to occupy the Premises after the expiration of this Lease Agreement, or any renewal or extension 
thereof, and if the Landlord shall have consented to such continuation of occupancy, such occupancy shall (unless the parties hereto shall otherwise agree in 
writing) be deemed to be under a month to month tenancy, at twice the rental payable hereunder just prior to the Tenant holding over, which shall continue until 
either party shall mail notice to the other (pursuant to Section 19 of this Lease) at least one (1) month prior to the end of any calendar month, that the party giving 
such notice elects to terminate such tenancy at the end of such calendar month, in which event such tenancy shall so terminate. As long as the Tenant is in 
possession of the Premises, all of the obligations of the Tenant and all rights of the Landlord applicable during the term of this Lease shall be equally applicable 
during such period of subsequent occupancy. 

41. CONDEMNATION: In the event the Premises, or any part thereof, shall be taken under the power of eminent domain by any public or quasi-
public authority, this Lease shall terminate as of the date of such taking and Tenant shall thereupon be released from any further liability hereunder. Under 
such circumstances Landlord shall be entitled to receive the entire award in the condemnation proceeding. 

42. INSURANCE: During the term of this Lease, and any extension thereof, Tenant should, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, purchase renter's form 
homeowner's insurance coverage providing for personal liability (bodily injury and property damage) 



 55 
4817-3242-4119.2  

9 
coverage with a limit of not less than $500,000.00 each occurrence and $5,000.00 in medical payments coverage; and further, providing coverage to keep 
Tenant's personal property on and in the Premises insured for the benefit of Tenant against loss or damage resulting from broad form named perils on a 
replacement cost basis. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord does not carry any insurance on Tenant's personal possessions. 

Tenant's Initials 
43, TENANT INDEMNIFICATION: Tenant shall indemnify and save Landlord  

harmless from all liability, damage or expense incurred by Landlord as a result of death or injury to persons, or damage to property (including the Premises) 
where this Lease Agreement required the Tenant to procure insurance for said liability, damage or expense, and Tenant failed to do so. 

44. PREJUDGMENT INTEREST: If Tenant violates this Lease Agreement and said violation results in a monetary loss to Landlord, then Landlord 
shall be entitled to prejudgment interest at the highest rate allowed by law, but in no event more than ten percent (10%) per annum, on the amount due Landlord, 
from the date the Landlord mails its written list of damages to Tenant. 

45. QUIET ENJOYMENT: The only covenant of quiet enjoyment applicable to this tenancy, express or implied, is that established by 
46. SMOKE DETECTOR: Landlord has installed at least one smoke detector in the premises and that said detector(s) is in good condition and 

proper working order as of the beginning of the Lease term. Tenant agrees not to obstruct or tamper with said detector(s) or otherwise permit the detector(s) 
to be obstructed or tampered with for any reason whatsoever. Tenant further agrees to test the detector(s) periodically and to report any malfunction therewith 
promptly to Landlord. Tenant assumes all liability to test the detector(s) and hereby waives and exonerates Landlord from any and all liability resulting from 
any defective detector(s) which Tenant shall not have specifically reported to Landlord. 

47. SECURITY: Except for locks on doors and windows and a Monitored Alarm Service, Landlord does not provide any type of security protection in, 
on or about the Premises, Whereas, it is the Tenant's option as to whether to activate the Monitored Alarm Service, but in order for Tenant to have the Monitored 
Alarm Service, Tenant will be required to execute a Resident Contract for Monitored Alarm Services with 
 _______________________ , a copy of which is available at the time the Tenant takes  
possession of the Premises. Tenant acknowledges that Tenant has been instructed on how to operate and test the alarm system. Tenant also acknowledges 
and understands that this alarm system, like all alarm systems, may malfunction or be rendered inoperable. Tenant agrees to periodically test the alarm system 
and acknowledges that it is Tenant's responsibility to immediately report any malfunction to 
 _______________________ . Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant for any  
malfunction or inoperability of the alarm system, or any failure of the Monitored Alarm Service, unless caused by Landlord's fault, omission, negligence or other 
misconduct. 

48, STUDENT STATUS: Tenant represents that at the time the Tenant commences occupancy of the Premises he/she is or will be a matriculated 
student. Tenant grants Landlord permission to verify Tenant's student status with the University. If Tenant's representation in this paragraph are false or if 
Tenant loses his or her status as a student during the term hereof, Tenant shall be in default hereunder and Landlord shall be entitled to exercise all rights and 
remedies provided for herein or that are available at law or in equity. 

BY SIGNING THIS RENTAL AGREEMENT TENANT AGREES THAT UPON SURRENDER OR ABANDONMENT, AS DEFINED BY THE MISSISSIPPI 
STATUES, THE LANDLORD SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR STORAGE OR DISPOSITION OF THE TENANT'S PERSONAL PROPERTY. 

1 0  
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

TENANT AGREES NOT TO: 

1. ANIMALS: Tenant will not keep any pets in or about the Premises. If, however, Tenant 
is blind or deaf, Tenant may keep and maintain a dog, certified as being specially trained to aid the 
Tenant in his/her handicap, within the Premises, the rental facility and all other related structures in 
accordance with applicable laws. 

2. APPLIANCES: Install any washing machines, dryers, dishwashers, air 
conditioners or other appliances in the Premises. 

3. FURNITURE: Keep any water-containing furniture in the Premises. 

4. WALLS AND WOODWORK: Drive nails into the woodwork or walls of the Premises. 

5. WALLPAPER. PAINT AND MIRRORS: Apply contact paper, wallpaper or mirrors to 
the Premises and will not change the type or color of paint within the Premises from that utilized by 
Landlord. 

6. PORTABLE HEATERS: Store, install or operate, in or about the Premises, unvented, 
portable kerosene-fired heaters. 

7. LOCKS: Change the locks on the doors of the Premises or install additional locks, 
chains or other fasteners without the prior written permission of the Landlord. Upon termination 
of the tenancy, all keys to the Premises must be returned to the Landlord. If Tenant shall fail to 
comply with this Rule, Tenant shall pay Landlord $50.00 for reimbursement of the cost of changing 
or re-keying the locks. Notwithstanding the above, Tenant shall provide to the Landlord a copy of 
the key(s) necessary to gain access to the Premises if locks have been added, altered or changed by 
the Tenant from the date of this Lease Agreement. 



 56 
4817-3242-4119.2  

8. PERSONAL BELONGINGS: Leave any personal belongings (including lawn furniture) 
in the parking areas, public halls, sidewalks, lawn areas or other common areas of the apartment 
community. 

9. APPLIANCES & UTILITIES OBSTRUCTIONS: Misuse or overload appliances or 
utilities furnished by the Landlord. In addition, Tenant shall properly use and operate all electrical 
and plumbing fixtures and shall keep all plumbing fixtures as clean and sanitary as their condition 
permits. 

10. OBSTRUCTIONS: Obstruct or use for any purpose other than ingress and egress the 
sidewalks, entrances, passages, courts, vestibules, stairways and halls. 

11. ADVERTISING: Display any advertisement, sign, or notice, inside or outside the 
Premises. 

12. FIRE RISK: Store in the Premises or any storage area any material of any kind or 
description that is combustible, or would increase the risk of fire. 

13. LITTER: Litter or obstruct the public halls or grounds. 

14. LAWS AND INSURANCE: Do anything that would violate any law or increase the 
insurance rates on the building in which the Premises are situated. 

15. THROWING OF ARTICLES: Throw, or allow to be thrown, anything out of the 
windows or doors or down the passages of the building, or from the balconies or patios. 

1 1  

16. WINDOW SILLS: Place anything on the outer edges of the sills of windows. 

17. COMMON AREAS: Permit Tenant or Tenant's family, employees, agents or 
guests to play in public areas, stairways, elevators (if any), laundry rooms, or storage areas. 

18. AUTOMOBILES: Hose wash automobiles. 

19. OBSTRUCTION OF WINDOWS, ETC.: Cover or obstruct the windows, doors  
and skylights that reflect or admit light into passageways, or into the common areas of any of  
Landlord's buildings. 

20. CLEANING OF RUGS, MOPS, ETC.: Shake or clean any tablecloths, rugs,  
mops or other articles in any of the public halls or from any of the windows, doors or landings of  
any of Landlord's buildings. 

21. CANVASSING: Cause the distribution in common areas of the apartment 
community or under apartment doors, of handbills, circulars, advertisements, papers or other 
matter which if discarded would tend to litter such area. Canvassing, soliciting and peddling in 
the apartment community is prohibited. The foregoing shall not prohibit Tenant from using direct 
mail solicitation or advertising in the regular communications media. 

22. CHARCOAL GRILL: Use or store any charcoal or gas grills or other open flame 
cooking devises, or do any open cooking on balconies or patios. 

23. DAY CARE CENTER: Provide, for consideration, in or about the Premises, 
substitute parental or guardianship care or supervision to children not related to the Tenant by 
blood. 

24. CLOTHES LINES: Install, erect or utilize exterior clothes lines within the 
apartment community. 

TENANT AGREES TO: 

25. GARBAGE & RUBBISH: Place Tenant's garbage and rubbish for disposal only 
as Landlord directs and to dispose from the Premises all rubbish, garbage and other organic and 
flammable waste in a clean and sanitary manner. 



 57 
4817-3242-4119.2  

26. USE OF FACILITIES: Use all facilities which Landlord provides for Tenant's 
comfort, such as a swimming pool, parking areas, tennis court, fitness center, clubhouse and 
computer center (none of which facilities are included in the rent) solely at Tenant's own risk, and 
Tenant agrees that Landlord shall not be responsible for any injury to person or loss or damage 
to property arising out of Tenant's use thereof, unless the same is caused solely by Landlord's 
fault, omission, negligence or other misconduct. Use of any of these facilities may be revoked by 
the Landlord without effecting the remainder of this Lease. 

If Landlord should provide a swimming pool for Tenant's use in common 
with others, Tenant agrees to comply with, and to cause Tenant's family and guests to comply 
with, all rules and regulations relating to the use thereof, which Landlord posts at or near the pool 
or mails to Tenant (in accordance with Section 19 of this Lease Agreement). A failure to comply 
with said rules and regulations may result, at Landlord's option, in Landlord revoking Tenant's 
use of the pool. 

1 2  
(q) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed, approved and delivered in any number of counterparts, each 

at which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 



 

4817-3242-4119.2  

27. CONDITION OF PREMISES: Keep the Premises in a neat, clean, good and  
sanitary condition. 

28. BALCONIES AND PATIOS: Keep balconies and patios free of all personal  
belongings, except that Tenant may maintain lawn furniture thereon provided the same is  
maintained in a neat and orderly manner. 

29. DRAPERIES: Only use draperies and window shades provided by Landlord and  
which present a white exterior coloration. 

30. LOCK-OUT; Pay a $50.00 service charge to Landlord each time that Tenant  
locks himself/herself out of the Premises, and requests Landlord's assistance in gaining entry to  
the Premises after 5:00 p.m. on weekdays, and at any time on weekends and holidays, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executedeach caused this Lease Agreement 
the day  
and yearto be executed in their respective names as of the date first above written. 

WITNESS/ATTEST: University Management Company, 
agent for:  _______________   

( p h o n e )   
( f a x )  

By: _______________________________  

- Landlord - 

- Tenant - 

Landlord's emergency telephone number is 

 
So. University/Marketing Agreement J-1 



 

4817-3242-4119.2  

 

) 



 

4817-3242-4119.2  

  The Palisades Apartment 

Bedroom No. ________   

EXHIBIT A 

(-----,, Jaguar City  
Date 

Tenant hereby acknowledges that the Premises were leased to Tenant furnished containing the 
following furnishings (the "Furnishings"): 

COMMON AREA 

1. one (1) sofa 
2. one (1)cocktail table 
3. one (1) end tables 
4. one (1) lamps 
5. one (1) entertainment center 
6. one (1) microwave 
7. one (1) refrigerator 
8. one (1) electric range 
9. one (1) dishwasher 
10. one (1) washer 
11. one (1) dryer 
12. one (1) dining table (4 bedroom units only) 
13. four (4) dining chairs (4 bedroom units only) 
14. two (2) bar stools (2 bedroom units only) 

TENANT BEDROOM 

1. One (1) full size bed, box spring, and frame 
2. One (1) desk 
3. One (1) desk chair 
4. One (1) dresser 

Tenant acknowledges that except as specified above, the Furnishings are in good condition and 
agrees that when Tenant vacates the Premises, all the Furnishings will remain in the Premises in the 
same condition as when leased, reasonable wear and tear excepted. 

University Management Company,  
agent 

By: _______________________________   

- Landlord - 

 
So. University/Marketing Agreement J-2 



 

4817-3242-4119.2  

739081 1.DOC 

So. University/Marketing Agreement J-3 

 



 

 62 
4817-3242-4119.2  

 
 
 
 

BATON ROUGE STUDENT HOUSING, L.L.C., a 
Louisiana limited liability company 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AND A & M COLLEGE 
AT BATON ROUGE 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
 
 

 
 



 

 

Document comparison by Workshare 9.5 on Friday, March 27, 2020 11:20:31 
AM 
Input: 

Document 1 ID file://C:\Users\OMARXS1\Desktop\JLP 27\Palisades 
Marketing Agreement.docx  

Description Palisades Marketing Agreement  

Document 2 ID 
file://C:\Users\OMARXS1\Desktop\JLP 27\Amended and 
Restated Management Agreement 4817-3242-4119 
v.2.docx  

Description Amended and Restated Management Agreement 4817-
3242-4119 v.2  

Rendering set Kutak Option 1 
 
Legend: 

Insertion  
Deletion  
Moved from  
Moved to  
Style change  
Format change  
Moved deletion  
Inserted cell   
Deleted cell   
Moved cell  
Split/Merged cell  
Padding cell  
 
Statistics: 

 Count 
Insertions 584 
Deletions 1016 
Moved from 70 
Moved to 70 
Style change 0 
Format changed 0 



 

 

Total changes 1740 
 

















1 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
between 

Southern University at New Orleans and 
West Chester University of Pennsylvania 

 
I.  GENERAL 

 
A. Parties to the Agreement 

 
This Memorandum of Agreement is between the Southern University at New Orleans (hereinafter "SUNO") and 
West Chester University of Pennsylvania, USA (hereinafter "West Chester University"). The two institutions 
shall be referred to collectively as the "Participating Institutions" in the Memorandum of Agreement. 

B. Purpose of the Agreement 
 
To increase their cooperation in education and student exchange, the parties to the Agreement, after approval 
by their responsible authorities, agree to support this Memorandum on academic cooperation. The purpose of 
this Memorandum is to facilitate and to enhance the academic cooperation between the parties to the 
Agreement.  This agreement establishes the formal understanding of the scope of operations between these 
two educational institutions and commits to writing the intent and mutual assent of both parties to engage in 
the following activities, subject to future terms and conditions agreed upon by both parties and set forth in 
new written agreements or amendments as necessary to further the purpose of this Agreement.  This 
agreement shall be carried out subject to availability of funds of either party and subject to the approval and 
signature of the presidents of both Universities. 
 

C. Modes of Collaboration 
 
The Participating Institutions shall endeavor to promote collaboration through a broad range of strategies, 
which in the initial stages of this cooperation shall include but are not limited to: 
 
1.  The design of collaborative teaching or research projects, including the development of formal 

proposals for funding of such teaching or research; and 
 
2.  Student exchange programs implemented as external funding for partial or full support of such 

exchanges at the graduate and undergraduate level as available. 
 

D. Definitions 
 

1. For purposes of this Agreement, the party sending students shall be referred to as the “Home 
Institution.” 

 
2. For purposes of this Agreement, the party receiving students shall be referred to as the “Host 

Institution.” 
 

3. For purposes of this Agreement, “Student” refers to the students within the student exchange balance 
between the institutions, one for one exchange of Students from each university, or Students visiting 
the other university for research during fall, spring, or summer semesters through funding from Home 
Institution. 
 
 
 



2 

II. TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 

A. Areas of Initial Concentration 
 
The Participating Institutions agree to develop collaborative programs in areas of mutual interest.  Recognizing 
the importance of practical first steps based on a definition of shared institutional priorities for teaching, 
program development, and fundamental research, the Participating Institutions agree to implement 
collaborations through student placement for summer research initially in the Biological Science. 

B. Activities in Support of Collaboration 
 
The Participating Institutions recognize the importance of certain ancillary activities in support of these areas 
of teaching and research collaboration.  Principal among these shall be, when appropriate, 
 
1.     The regular exchange of relevant publications and information generated by the parties to the 

Agreement; and 
 

2.  Regular communication concerning the technologies necessary to enable and enhance the substantive 
areas of collaboration referred to in Section II. A. 

 
C. Student Placement 

   
1.        Transportation and living expenses, costs of accommodation and health insurance, and other study 

costs (e.g., textbooks, students’ clubs, campus-sponsored excursions) shall be incurred by the 
Students.  Parties to the Agreement shall secure suitable housing for the Students. 

 
2.  Students shall have the same rights and duties as Students attending the Host Institution. 
 
3.  Students from SUNO applying to West Chester University Graduate program in Biology must satisfy the 

graduate school admission requirements to secure graduate assistantships.  
  
4.  Students shall be subject to all regulations, policies, rules, procedures and standards of academic 

performance and personal conduct of students of the Host Institution. They will also be subject to 
the laws of the host state during their term of stay. Students who violate any such regulations, 
rules or standards are subject to expulsion from the exchange program.  Prior to arrival at the host 
institution, each individual student shall receive the applicable regulations, policies and rules of 
the host institution.  Each individual Student shall acknowledge, in writing, receipt and 
understanding of the host institutions regulations, policies, rules, procedures, and standards.  

 
III. ADMINISTRATIVE TERMS 

 
A. Elaboration of this Memorandum 

 
It is the intent of the Participating Institutions that general provisions of this Memorandum be translated into 
specific programs of activity as expeditiously as financing and other institutional capabilities permit.  Such 
programs shall be set forth in specific implementing project memoranda approved in writing by the 
designated operational officers of both institutions.  No implementing memorandum shall amend or contradict 
the provisions of this Memorandum of Agreement.  Nothing in the initial version of this Memorandum shall 



3 

be interpreted as constraining the development of future programs not mentioned in this document. 
 

B. Responsible Administrative Personnel 
 
1.  The Participating Institutions shall be represented in formal negotiation or renegotiation of this 

Memorandum by the Presidents of the Participating Institutions or by their designated representatives. 
 
2.  The designated operational units of the parties, for purposes of developing and implementing the 

terms of this Agreement are: 
  
 For West Chester University: Dr. Giovanni Casotti 
  
 For Southern University at New Orleans: Dr. Carl P. Johnson 
  
3. Either party may change its designated operational officer by written amendment to the Agreement to 

the designated operational officer of the other party. 
 

C. Other Provisions 
 
1.  Nothing in this Memorandum shall create binding obligations that may not be overridden by 

written agreement in the form of an amendment with the same formality as this written agreement. 
This Agreement shall only be modified in writing with the same formality as the original Agreement. 

 
2.  This Memorandum will expire after the duration of three years from the date of all required 

signatures, with the ability to renew the Agreement on a yearly basis up to a maximum of five years. 
The terms of the Agreement may be re-examined, and the program adjusted, as deemed necessary, 
based on a mutually agreed-to assessment of the program by the appropriate authorities at 
Participating Institutions in writing.  

 
3.  This Memorandum of Agreement may be terminated by any of the parties to the Agreement on 

prior written notice of 90 days before the end of the respective academic years.  Either party can 
terminate this Agreement for cause at any time.  Any current participants in the program established 
by this Agreement shall, however, in any case retain their current status until the end of the 
academic year in which the termination of the Agreement occurs. 

 
 

IV. LEGAL PROVISIONS 

A. Equal Access Policy 
 
Both institutions are committed to the policy that all persons shall have equal access to programs, facilities, 
admission, and employment without regard to personal characteristics not related to ability, performance, or 
qualifications as determined by the Participating Institutions’ policies. Neither institution will discriminate 
against any person because of age, ancestry, color, disability or handicap, national origin, race, religious 
creed, sex, sexual orientation, or veteran status.  The Participating Institutions shall abide by these principles 
in the administration of this Agreement, and neither institution shall impose criteria for the exchange of 
faculty, scholars or students which would violate the principles of nondiscrimination. 
 



4 

B.  Nondiscrimination 
 
The parties agree to continue their respective policies of nondiscrimination based on Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 in regard to sex, age, race, color, creed, and national origin, Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972 and other applicable laws, as well as the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act.  SUNO agrees to cooperate with West Chester University in its investigation of claims of discrimination 
or harassment. 
 

C.  Reporting of Sexual Violence and Sexual Harassment 
 
SUNO and WCUPA shall report any incident in which a student is the victim of sexual assault, dating 
violence, domestic violence, stalking or sexual harassment to the West Chester University Title IX 
Coordinator, Lynn Klingensmith at (610) 436-2433. 
 

D. Non-Appropriation 
 
The Participating Institutions recognize that the performance of either institution may be dependent upon 
the appropriation of funds by the government.  Should the government fail to appropriate the necessary 
funds or if an institution’s appropriation is reduced during the fiscal year, the President of either 
institution may reduce the scope of this Agreement if appropriate or cancel the Agreement without further 
duty or obligation. The Participating Institutions agree to notify each other as soon as reasonably possible 
if the appropriated funds become unavailable. 
 

E.  Liability 
 
Neither of the parties shall assume any liabilities to each other.  As to liability to each other or death to 
persons, or damages to property, the parties do not waive any defense as a result of entering into this 
contract.  This provision shall not be construed to limit the University’s or Commonwealth’s rights, 
claims, or defenses which arise as a matter of law pursuant to any provisions of this contract.  This 
provision shall not be construed to limit the sovereign immunity of the Commonwealth or of the State 
System of Higher Education or the University. 
 

F. Commercial Property 

Neither Participating Institution will use the trademarks, trade name, logos, trade dress, or other 
commercial property of the other Party hereto without the express written approval of the other Party. 

 
 

G. Confidentiality 
 
Participating institutions shall protect the confidentiality of student records and shall release no information 
absent written consent of the student unless required to do so by law or as dictated by the terms of this 
Agreement.  Each party shall comply with the requirements of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
(FERPA), 20 USC 1232g, et seq. and regulations issued thereunder. 

H. Integration 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties.  No other prior or contemporaneous 
oral or written understandings or promises exist in regards to this relationship.  Both parties recognize that they 
are permitted to amend the Agreement as long as the amendments are in writing, mutual, and executed with 



5 

the same formality as the original Agreement. 

I. Interpretation of Terms 

In the event doubts should arise in the interpretation of the provisions of this agreement or problems about 
matters not described therein, where applicable, the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania shall govern 
the interpretation and enforcement of this agreement. 

J. Relationship 

Although the respective Universities shall collaborate to form a mutually beneficial program, the relationship 
between the parties is that of independent contractors, and nothing herein shall be construed to create an 
agency relationship or any employment relationship between the institutions for any faculty or staff provided 
during the exchange program. 

H. Binding Signatures 

For the purpose of this Agreement, a copy of the party’s original signature shall be considered to be an original 
signature; and as such shall be sufficient to bind such parties. 

 

 

FOR SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY AT 
NEW ORLEANS 
 
______________________________________ 
Dr. James H. Ammons, Jr., Chancellor 
 
Date: 
____________________________________ 
 
______________________________________ 
Southern University System Legal 
Counsel______________________________ 
Southern University at New Orleans 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 FOR WEST CHESTER UNIVERSITY 
OF PENNSYLVANIA 
 
___________________________________ 
Todd E. Murphy, Vice President for Finance 
and Administration 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 
___________________________________ 
Dr. Jeffery L. Osgood, Jr., Vice President 
for Academic Operations 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
o form and legality: 
__________________________________ 
University Legal Counsel West Chester 
University 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

6/30/21


































	July 2021 BOS Meeting Packet
	Academic Affairs
	Facilities and Property
	Finance
	Governance
	Personnel
	Full Board
	PAF Mr. Peter Bonee.pdf
	Personnel Action Form
	Profile of Person Recommended
	Personnel Action
	COMMENTS:





